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Unless the context requires otherwise, referencesin this Annual Report to "CenturyLink," "we," "us" and "our" refer to CenturyLink, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries.

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are an integrated communi cations company engaged primarily in providing an array of communications services to our residential and
business customers. Our communications services include local and long-distance voice, high-speed Internet, Multi-Protocol Label Switching
("MPLS"), private line (including special access), dataintegration, Ethernet, colocation, managed hosting (including cloud hosting), network, public
access, video, wireless and other ancillary services. We strive to maintain our customer relationships by, among other things, bundling our service
offeringsto provide our customers with a complete offering of integrated communications services.

Based on our approximately 11.7 million total access lines at December 31, 2015, we believe we are the third largest wireline
telecommunications company in the United States. We operate 74% of our total access linesin portions of Colorado, Arizona, Washington,
Minnesota, Florida, North Carolina, Oregon, lowa, Utah, New Mexico, Missouri, and Nevada. We also provide local servicein portions of Idaho,
Ohio, Wisconsin, Virginia, Texas, Nebraska, Pennsylvania, Montana, Alabama, Indiana, Arkansas, Wyoming, Tennessee, New Jersey, South
Dakota, North Dakota, Kansas, L ouisiana, South Carolina, Michigan, Illinois, Georgia, Mississippi, Oklahoma, and California. In the portion of these
37 states where we have access lines, which we refer to as our local service area, we are the incumbent local telephone company.

At December 31, 2015, we served approximately 6.0 million high-speed I nternet subscribers and 285 thousand Prism TV subscribers. We also
operate 59 data centers throughout North America, Europe and Asia.

We were incorporated under the laws of the State of Louisianain 1968. Our principal executive offices are located at 100 CenturyLink Drive,
Monroe, Louisiana 71203 and our telephone number is (318) 388-9000.

For adiscussion of certain risks applicable to our business, see "Risk Factors' in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report. The summary
financial information in this section should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified by reference to, our consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto in Item 8 and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Item 7 of Part Il of this
Annual Report.

Financial and Operational Highlights
The following table summarizes the results of our consolidated operations:

Years Ended December 31,
20150 20142 2013®
(Dollarsin millions)

Consolidated statements of operations summary results:

Operating revenues $ 17,900 18,031 18,095
Operating expenses 15,295 15,621 16,642
Operating income $ 2,605 2,410 1,453
Net income (l0ss) $ 878 772 (239)

@ During 2015, we recognized an incremental $215 million of revenue associated with the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") Connect America Fund

Phase 2 support program. For additional information, see Note 1—Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to our consolidated
financial statementsin Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.

@ During 2014, we recognized a $60 million tax benefit associated with a deduction for the tax basis for worthless stock in a wholly-owned foreign subsidiary and a

$63 million pension settlement charge. For additional information, see Note 13—Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) to our consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.

® During 2013, we recorded a non-cash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairment charge of $1.092 billion for goodwill attributed to one of our previous operating

segments and a litigation settlement charge of $235 million.






The following table summarizes certain selected financial information from our consolidated bal ance sheets:

Asof December 31,

2015 2014

(Dollarsin millions)
Consolidated bal ance sheets summary information:

Total assets @ $ 47,604 49,103
Total long-term debt @ 2 20,225 20,503
Total stockholders' equity 14,060 15,023

() We adopted both ASU 2015-03 "Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs" and ASU 2015-17 "Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes" by
retrospectively applying the requirements of the ASUs to our previously issued consolidated financial statements. See further discussion in Note 1—Basis of
Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part 11 of this Annual Report.

(@  Total long-term debt is the sum of current maturities of long-term debt and long-term debt on our consolidated balance sheets. For additional information on
our total long-term debt, see Note 3—L ong-Term Debt and Credit Facilities to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report.
For information on our total obligations, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Future Contractual
Obligations" in Item 7 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.

The following table summarizes certain of our operational metrics:

Asof December 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in thousands except for data centers, which are actuals)

Operational metrics:

Total accesslines® 11,748 12,394 13,002
Total high-speed Internet subscribers @ 6,048 6,082 5,991
Total Prism TV subscribers 285 242 175
Total data centers @ 59 58 55

@ Access lines are lines reachi ng from the customers' premises to a connection with the public network and high-speed Internet subscribers are customers that

purchase high-speed Internet connection service through their existing telephone lines, stand-al one telephone lines, or fiber-optic cables. Our methodology for
counting our access lines and high-speed Internet subscribers includes only those lines that we use to provide services to external customers and excludes lines
used solely by us and our affiliates. It also excludes unbundled loops and includes stand-alone high-speed Internet subscribers. We count lines when we install the
service.
@ We define a data center as any facility where we market, sell and deliver either colocation services, multi-tenant managed services, or both. Our data centers are
located in North America, Europe and Asia.

Our methodology for counting access lines, high-speed Internet subscribers, Prism TV subscribers and data centers may not be comparable
to those of other companies.

Substantially all of our long-lived assets are located in the United States and substantially all of our total consolidated operating revenues are
from customers located in the United States. We estimate that approximately 2% of our consolidated revenuesis derived from providing
telecommunications, col ocation and hosting services outside the United States.



Operations

Segments

We are organized into operating segments based on customer type, business and consumer. These operating segments are our two
reportable segmentsin our consolidated financial statements:

»  Business Segment. Consists generally of providing strategic, legacy and data integration products and services to small, medium and
enterprise business, wholesale and governmental customers, including other communication providers. Our strategic products and
services offered to these customers include our MPLS, private line (including special access), Ethernet, high-speed Internet, col ocation,
managed hosting, cloud hosting and other ancillary services. Our legacy services offered to these customers primarily include switched
access, local and long-distance voice services, including the sale of unbundled network elements ("UNES") which allow our wholesale
customersto use al or part of our network to provide voice and data servicesto their customers. Our data integration offerings include the
sale of telecommunications equipment located on customers' premises and related professional services. These services include network
management, installation and maintenance of data equipment and the building of proprietary fiber-optic broadband networks; and

«  Consumer Segment. Consists generally of providing strategic and legacy products and servicesto residential customers. Our strategic
products and services offered to these customers include our high-speed Internet, video (including our Prism TV services) and wireless
services. Our legacy services offered to these customersinclude local and long-distance voice service.

The following table shows the composition of our revenues by segment under our current segment categorization for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013;

YearsEnded December 31, Percent Change
2015 2014 2013 2015vs2014 2014 vs2013
Percentage of revenues:
Business segment 59% 61% 61% (2)% —%
Consumer segment 34% 33% 33% 1% —%
Other operating revenues 7% 6% 6% 1% —%
Total operating revenues 100% 100% 100%

For additional information on our segment data, including information on certain centrally-managed assets and expenses not reflected in our
segment results, see Note 12—Segment Information to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part 11 of this Annual Report and
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 of Part I of this Annual Report.

Products and Services

Our products and services include local and long-distance voice, high-speed Internet, MPLS, private line (including specia access), data
integration, Ethernet, colocation, managed hosting (including cloud hosting), network, public access, video, wireless and other ancillary services.

We offer our customers the ability to bundle together several products and services. For example, we offer integrated and unlimited local and
long-distance voice services. Our customers can also bundle two or more services such as high-speed Internet, video (including DIRECTV through
our strategic partnership), voice and Verizon Wireless (through our strategic partnership) services. We believe our customers value the
convenience and price discounts associated with receiving multiple services through a single company.

Most of our products and services are provided using our telecommunications network, which consists of voice and data switches, copper
cables, fiber-optic cables and other equipment. Our network serves approximately 11.7 million access lines and forms a portion of the public
switched telephone network, or PSTN. For more information on our network, see “ Business—Network Architecture” below.



Described in greater detail below are our key products and services.
Strategic Services

We primarily focus our marketing and sales efforts on our “strategic” services, which are those services for which demand generally remains
strong and that we believe are most important to our future performance. Generally speaking, our strategic services enable our customers to access
the Internet, connect to private networks and transmit data, and enhance the security, reliability and efficiency of our customers communications.
Our strategic services are comprised of the following:

+ High-speed Internet. Our high-speed Internet services allow customersto connect to the Internet through their existing telephone lines or
fiber-optic cables at high speeds. Substantially all of our high-speed I nternet subscribers are located within the local service area of our
wireline telephone operations;

*  MPLS Multi-Protocol Label Switching is standards-approved data networking technol ogy that we provide to support real-time voice and
video. Thistechnology allows network operators flexibility to divert and route traffic around link failures, congestion and bottlenecks;

* PrivateLine. A private line (including specia access) isadirect circuit or channel specifically dedicated for the purpose of directly
connecting two or more sites. Private line service offers a high-speed, secure solution for frequent transmission of large amounts of data
between sites, including wireless backhaul transmissions;

»  Ethernet. Ethernet services include point-to-point and multi-point equi pment configurations that facilitate data transmissions across
metropolitan areas and wide area networks. Ethernet services are also used to provide transmission services to wireless service providers
that use our fiber-optic cables connected to their towers;

*  Colocation. Colocation services enable our customersto install their own information technology ("I1T") equipment in our data centers;

* Managed Hosting. Managed hosting includes provision of centralized I T infrastructure and a variety of managed servicesincluding cloud
and traditional computing, application management, back-up, storage, and other advanced services including planning, design,
implementation and support services;

* Video. Our video servicesinclude our facilities-based video, marketed as CenturyLink Prism TV, which is a premium entertainment service
that allows our customersto watch hundreds of television or cable channels and record up to four shows on one home digital video
recorder. We also offer satellite digital television under an arrangement with DIRECTYV that allows us to market, sell and bill for its services
under its brand name;

* VolP. Voiceover Internet Protocol, or VolP, is areal-time, two-way voice communication service (similar to our traditional voice services)
that originates over a broadband connection and often terminates on the PSTN; and

+ Managed Services. Managed services represents a blend of network, hosting, cloud, and I T services that typically require ongoing
support from our staff. These services frequently involve equipment or networks owned, acquired or controlled by the customer and often
include consulting or software devel opment.

L egacy Services
Our "legacy" services represent our traditional voice, data and network services, which include the following:

» Local Voice Services. We offer local calling servicesfor our residential and business customers within the local service area of our wireline
markets, generally for afixed monthly charge. These servicesinclude a number of enhanced calling features and other services, such as
call forwarding, caller identification, conference calling, voice mail, selective call ringing and call waiting, for which we generally charge an
additional monthly fee. We also generate revenues from non-recurring services, such as inside wire installation, maintenance services,
service activation and reactivation. For our wholesale customers, our local calling service offeringsinclude primarily the resale of our voice
services and the sale of UNES, which allow our wholesal e customersto use all or part of our network to provide voice and data services to
their customers. Local calling services provided to our wholesale customers allow other telecommuni cations companies the ability to
originate or terminate telecommunications services on our network;

+ Long-distance Voice Services. We offer our residential and business customers domestic and international long-distance services and toll-
free services. Our international |ong-distance servicesinclude voice calls that either terminate or originate with our customersin the United
States;






»  Switched Access Services. As part of our wholesal e services, we provide various forms of switched access servicesto wireline and
wireless service providers for the use of our facilitiesto originate and terminate their interstate and intrastate voice transmissions;

* |SDN. Weoffer integrated services digital network ("ISDN") services, which use regular telephone lines to support voice, video and data
applications; and

+  WAN. We offer wide area network ("WAN") services, which allow alocal communications network to link to networksin remote locations.
Data Integration

Dataintegration includes the sale of tel ecommunications equipment located on customers' premises and related professional services. These
servicesinclude network management, installation and maintenance of data equipment and the building of proprietary fiber-optic broadband
networks for our business customers.

Other Operating Revenues

Other operating revenues consist primarily of Connect America Fund ("CAF") support payments, Universal Service Fund ("USF") support
payments and USF surcharges. We receive federal support payments from both CAF Phase 1 and CAF Phase 2 programs, and support payments
from both federal and state USF programs. These support payments are government subsidies designed to reimburse us for various costs related to
certain telecommunications services, including the costs of deploying, maintaining and operating voice and high-speed Internet infrastructurein
high-cost rural areas where we are not able to recover our costs from our customers. USF surcharges are the amounts we collect based on specific
itemswe list on our customers' invoices to fund the Federal Communications Commission's ("FCC") universal service programs. We also generate
other operating revenues from leasing and subleasing of space in our office buildings, warehouses and other properties. Because we centrally
manage the activities that generate these other operating revenues, these revenues are not included in our segment revenues.

Additional Information
From time to time, we also make investments in other communications or technology companies.

For further information on regulatory, technological and competitive changes that could impact our revenues, see "Regulation” and
"Competition" under thisItem 1 below and "Risk Factors" under Item 1A below. For more information on the financial contributions of our various
services, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Item 7 of Part Il of this Annual Report.

Patents, Trade Names, Trademarksand Copyrights

Either directly or through our subsidiaries, we have rightsin various patents, trade names, trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual
property necessary to conduct our business, such as our CenturyLink® and Prism® brand names. Our services often use the intellectual property of
others, including licensed software. We also occasionally license our intellectual property to others as we deem appropriate.

We periodically receive offers from third parties to purchase or obtain licenses for patents and other intellectual property rightsin exchange
for royalties or other payments. We also periodically receive notices, or are named in lawsuits, alleging that our products or servicesinfringe on
patents or other intellectual property rights of third parties. In certain instances, these matters can potentially adversely impact our operations,
operating results or financial position. For additional information, see “ Risk Factors—Risks Impacting Our Business” in Item 1A of Part | of this
Annual Report, and Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.

Salesand Marketing

We maintain local officesin most of the larger population centers within our local service area. These offices provide sales and customer
support servicesin the community. We al'so rely on our call center personnel and avariety of channel partners to promote sales of services that
meet the needs of our customers. Our sales and marketing strategy is to enhance our sales by offering solutions tailored to the needs of our various
customers and promoting our brands. Our offerings include both stand-alone services and bundled services designed to meet the needs of different
customer segments.

We conduct most of our operations under the brand name "CenturyLink." Our satellite television service is offered on a co-branded basis
under the "DIRECTV" name. Our switched digital television service offering is branded under the name "Prism TV." The wireless service that we
offer under our agency agreement with Verizon Wirelessis marketed under the "Verizon Wireless' brand name.



Our sales and marketing approach to our residential customers emphasizes customer-oriented sales, marketing and service with alocal
presence. Our marketing plans include marketing our products and services primarily through direct sales representatives, inbound call centers,
local retail stores, telemarketing and third parties, including retailers, satellite television providers, door to door sales agents and digital marketing
firms. We support our distribution with digital marketing, direct mail, bill inserts, newspaper and television advertising, website promotions, public
relations activities and sponsorship of community events and sports venues.

Similarly, our sales and marketing approach to our business customers includes acommitment to provide comprehensive communications and
IT solutions for business, wholesale and governmental customers of al sizes, ranging from small offices to select enterprise customers. Our
marketing plans include marketing our products and services primarily through digital advertising, direct sales representatives, inbound call centers,
telemarketing and third parties, including telecommunications agents, system integrators, value-added resellers and other telecommunications firms.
We support our distribution through digital advertising, events, television advertising, website promotions and public relations.

Network Architecture

Most of our products and services are provided using our telecommunications network, which consists of voice switches, data switches and
routers, high-speed transport equipment, fiber-optic and copper cables and other equipment. Our local exchange carrier networks also include
central offices and remote site assets. A substantial portion of our equipment operates with licensed software. As of December 31, 2015, we
maintained approximately 1.0 million miles of copper plant and approximately 259 thousand miles of domestic fiber-optic plant.

We continue to enhance and expand our network by deploying broadband-enabled technologiesto provide additional capacity to our
customers. Rapid and significant changes in technology are expected to continue in the telecommunications industry. Our future success will
depend, in part, on our ability to anticipate and adapt to changes in customer demands and technology. In particular, we anticipate that continued
increases in broadband usage by our customerswill require us to make significant capital expenditures to increase network capacity or to implement
network management practicesto alleviate network capacity shortages. The Federal Communications Commission has defined "broadband service"
as Internet access service with aminimum transmission speed of 25 megabits per second, which could create additional requirements for higher
capital spending to address marketing and competitive issues. Any such additional expenditures could adversely impact our results of operations
and financial condition.

Similarly, we continue to take steps to simplify and modernize our network. To attain our objectives, we plan to continue to undertake several
complex projects that we expect will be costly and take several yearsto complete. The costs of these projects could increase materially if we
conclude that we need to replace any or all of our legacy systems.

Like other large telecommunications companies, we are a constant target of cyber-attacks of varying degrees, which has caused us to spend
increasingly more time and money to deal with increasingly sophisticated attacks. Although none of our resulting security breaches to date have
materially adversely affected our business, results of operations or financial condition, we periodically notify our customers, our employees or the
public of select breaches.

Werely on several other communications companies to provide our offerings. We lease a significant portion of our core fiber network from
our competitors and other third parties. Many of these leaseswill lapsein future years. All of our satellite television and wireless voice services are
provided by other carriers under agency agreements, and some of our other services are reliant upon reselling arrangements with other carriers. Our
future ability to provide services on the terms of our current offeringswill depend in part upon our ability to renew or replace these leases,
agreements and arrangements on terms substantially similar to those currently in effect.

For additional information regarding our systems, network, cyber risks, capital expenditure requirements and reliance upon third parties, see
"Risk Factors', generally, in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report, and, in particular, "Risk Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business" and "Risk
Factors—Risks Affecting Our Liquidity and Capital Resources." For more information on our properties, see Iltem 2 of Part | of this Annual Report.



Regulation
Overview
As discussed further below, our operations are subject to significant local, state, federal and foreign laws and regulations.

We are subject to significant regulation by the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC"), which regulates interstate communications, and
state utility commissions, which regulate intrastate communications. These agencies (i) issue rulesto protect consumers and promote competition,
(ii) set the rates that telecommunication companies charge each other for exchanging traffic, and (iii) have traditionally devel oped and administered
support programs designed to subsidize the provision of servicesto high-cost rural areas. In most states, local voice service, switched and special
access services and interconnection services are subject to price regulation, although the extent of regulation varies by type of service and
geographic region. In addition, we are required to maintain licenses with the FCC and with state utility commissions. Laws and regulationsin many
states restrict the manner in which alicensed entity can interact with affiliates, transfer assets, issue debt and engage in other business activities.
Many acquisitions and divestitures require approval by the FCC and some state commissions. These agencies typically have the authority to
withhold their approval, or to request or impose substantial conditions upon the transacting partiesin connection with granting their approvals.

Our telephone operating companies are considered incumbent local exchange carriers ("ILECs"). Historically, ILECs operated as regulated
monopolies having the exclusive right and responsibility to provide local telephone servicesin their franchised service territories. Aswediscussin
greater detail below, passage of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, coupled with state legislative and regulatory initiatives and technological
change, fundamentally altered the telephone industry by generally reducing the regulation of ILECs and creating a substantial increasein the
number of competitors. The following description discusses some of the major industry regulations that affect our traditional telephone operations,
but numerous other regulations not discussed below could also impact us. Some legislation and regulations are currently the subject of judicial,
legislative and administrative proceedings which could substantially change the manner in which the telecommunications industry operates and the
amount of revenues we receive for our services. Neither the outcome of these proceedings, nor their potential impact on us, can be predicted at this
time. For additional information, see "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report.

Thelaws and regulations governing our affairs are quite complex and occasionally in conflict with each other. From time to time, we are fined
for failing to meet applicable regulations or service requirements.

Federal Regulation
General

We are required to comply with the Communications Act of 1934. Among other things, thislaw requires our ILECs to offer various of our
legacy services at just and reasonabl e rates and on non-discriminatory terms. The Telecommunications Act of 1996 materially amended the
Communications Act of 1934, primarily to promote competition.

The FCC regulates interstate services we provide, including the special access charges we bill for wholesale network transmission and the
interstate access charges that we bill to long-distance companies and other communications companies in connection with the origination and
termination of interstate phone calls. Additionally, the FCC regulates a number of aspects of our business related to privacy, homeland security and
network infrastructure, including our access to and use of local telephone numbers and our provision of emergency 911 services. The FCC has
responsibility for maintaining and administering support programs designed to expand nationwide access to communications services (which are
described further below), as well as other programs supporting service to low-income households, schools and libraries, and rural health care
providers.

In recent years, our operations and those of other telecommunications carriers have been further impacted by legislation and regulation
imposing additional obligations on us, particularly with regardsto providing voice and high-speed I nternet service, bolstering homeland security,
increasing disaster recovery requirements, minimizing environmental impacts and enhancing privacy. These laws include the Communications
Assistance for Law Enforcement Act, and laws governing local telephone number portability and customer proprietary network information
reguirements. In addition, the FCC has heightened its focus on 911 reliability. The FCC hasimposed fines on us and other companies for 911
outages and has adopted new compliance requirements for 911 service. We are making investments to protect against future 911 outages as well as
incurring compliance-related costs to meet the FCC's 911 reliability standards. All of these laws and regulations may cause usto incur additional
costs and could impact our ability to compete effectively.



In 2012, the FCC initiated a special access proceeding and requested data, information and documents to allow it to conduct a comprehensive
evaluation of competition in the special access market. In late 2015, the FCC initiated a special access tariff investigation in order to review specific
terms and conditions related to long-term special access contracts and discount plans. As part of its evaluations, the FCC isreviewing special
access rates, terms and conditions. The ultimate impact of these proceedings on usis currently unknown. However, if the FCC were to adopt
significant changesin regulations affecting special access services, this could adversely impact our operations or financial results.

In 2015, the FCC issued an order regulating the manner in which ILECs can discontinue or reduce certain copper-based services. This order
reguires ILECsto provide prior notice to certain customers of their proposed changein services, and in certain cases to provide replacement
offerings on reasonably comparabl e terms and conditions. We expect that this order will limit our flexibility to react to changing conditionsin the
communications industry.

Intercarrier Compensation and Universal Service

For decades, the FCC has regularly considered various intercarrier compensation reforms, generally with agoal to create a uniform mechanism
to be used by the entire telecommunications industry for payments between carriers originating, terminating, or carrying telecommunications traffic.
The FCC has also traditionally administered support programs designed to promote the deployment of voice and high-speed Internet servicesin
high-cost rural areas of the country.

In October 2011, the FCC adopted the Connect Americaand Intercarrier Compensation Reform order (“the 2011 order"), intended to reform the
existing regulatory regime to recognize ongoing shifts to new technologies, including Vol P, and to re-direct universal service funding to foster
nationwide broadband coverage. The 2011 order provides for amulti-year transition as terminating intercarrier compensation charges are reduced,
universal service funding is explicitly targeted to broadband deployment, and line charges paid by end user customers are increased. These
changes have increased the pace of reductionsin the amount of switched access revenues related to our wholesal e services, while creating
opportunities for increased federal USF support and retail revenue funding.

Inlate 2011, numerous parties filed a petition for reconsideration with the FCC seeking humerous revisions to the 2011 order. Futurejudicial
challengesto the 2011 order are also possible, which could alter or delay the FCC's proposed changes. In addition, based on the outcome of the
FCC proceedings, various state commissions may consider changes to their universal service funds or intrastate access rates. Rulemaking designed
to implement the order is not complete, and several FCC proceedings relating to the 2011 order remain pending. For these and other reasons, we
cannot predict the ultimate impact of these proceedings at thistime.

Asaresult of the 2011 order, anew Universal Service program was created to deploy broadband to unserved and underserved rural areas
utilizing the Connect America Fund or "CAF". The CAF substantially replacesinterstate USF funding previously utilized to support voice servicein
high-cost rural markets. There are two phasesto the CAF program, CAF Phase 1 is a one-time broadband grant program while CAF Phase 2 isa
multi-year recurring subsidy program for more extensive broadband deployment in price-cap ILEC territories.

In August 2015, we agreed to accept from the FCC CAF Phase 2 funding of approximately $500 million per year for six yearsto fund the
deployment of voice and high-speed Internet infrastructure for approximately 1.2 million rural households and businessesin 33 states. The funding
from the CAF Phase 2 support program is expected to substantially supplant the funding we previously received from the interstate USF program
that we previously utilized to support voice servicesin high-cost rural marketsin these 33 states. In September of 2015, we began receiving
payments from the FCC under the new CAF Phase 2 support program, which included (i) monthly payments at a higher rate than under the
interstate USF support and (ii) a substantial one-time cumulative catch-up payment designed to address program transitioning issues.

We declined annual funding of approximately $10 million in four states, and we expect the funding from the CAF Phase 2 support program for
these four states will be auctioned by the FCC, perhapsin the | atter part of 2016. In these four states, the interstate USF support we have
historically received is expected to continue until the CAF Phase 2 auctions are compl eted.

Asaresult of accepting CAF Phase 2 support payments for 33 states, we will be obligated to make substantial capital expendituresto build
infrastructure by certain specified milestone deadlines. Future funding is contingent upon our compliance with these infrastructure buildout
commitments and certain other service requirements, including certain minimum transmission speed requirements (broadband service with
download speeds of 10 megabits per second and upload speeds of 1 megabit per second). In addition, if we are not in compliance with FCC
measures at the end of the six-year CAF Phase 2 period, we will have 12 monthsto attain full compliance. If we are not in full compliance after the
additional 12 months, we would incur a penalty equal to 1.89 times the average amount of support per location received in the state over the six-year
term, plus a potential penalty of 10% of the total CAF Phase 2 support over the six-year term for the state. For information on the risks associated
with participating in this program, see Item 1A of Part | in this Annual Report.
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For additional information about the potential financial impact of the CAF Phase 2 program, see Item 7 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.
Broadband Regulation

In February 2015, the FCC adopted new regulations that regulate Internet services as a public utility under Title 11 of the Communications Act
of 1934. We anticipate that these regulations and any related rules will be reviewed by both the courts and Congress. At thistime, we cannot
estimate the impact this may have on our business.

The FCC recently adopted a new broadband standard of 25 Mbps download speed and 3 Mbps of upload speed. At thistime, we are not
aware of any regulatory mandates requiring us to deploy thistarget speed. The new target is simply a benchmark by which the FCC will evaluate
broadband deployment progressin the future. However, the FCC could attempt to utilize this broadband speed target in future regulatory
proceedings.

State Regulation

In recent years, most states have reduced their regulation of |LECs. Nonetheless, state regulatory commissions generally continue to regulate
local servicerates, intrastate access charges, state universal service funds and in some cases service quality. We are generally regulated under
various forms of alternative regulation that typically limit our ability to increase rates for stand-alone, basic local voice service, but relieve usfrom
the requirement to meet certain earnings tests. In anumber of states, we have gained pricing freedom for the mgjority of retail services other than
stand-alone basic consumer voice service. In most of the statesin which we operate, we have gained pricing flexibility for certain enhanced calling
services, such as caller identification and for bundled services that also include local voice service.

Under state law, our telephone operating subsidiaries are typically governed by laws and regulations that (i) regulate the purchase and sale of
ILECs, (ii) prescribe certain reporting requirements, (iii) require ILECsto provide service under publicly-filed tariffs setting forth the terms,
conditions and prices of regulated services, (iv) limit ILECs ability to borrow and pledge their assets, (v) regulate transactions between ILECs and
their affiliates and (vi) impose various other service standards.

Unlike many of our competitors, asan ILEC we generally face "carrier of last resort" obligations which include an ongoing requirement to
provide serviceto all prospective and current customersin our service areawho request service and are willing to pay rates prescribed in our tariffs.
In certain situations, this may constitute a competitive disadvantage to us if competitors can choose to focus on low-cost profitable customers and
withhold service from high-cost unprofitable customers. In addition, strict adherence to carrier-of-last-resort requirements may force usto construct
facilitieswith alow likelihood of attractive economic return.

We operatein states where traditional cost recovery mechanisms, including rate structures, are under evaluation or have been modified. As
laws and regul ations change, there can be no assurance that these mechanisms will continue to provide us with any cost recovery.

For several years, we have faced various carrier complaints, legislation or other investigations regarding our intrastate switched access rates
in several of our states. The FCC's 2011 order preempted state regulatory commissions' jurisdiction over all terminating access charges, including
intrastate access charges that have historically been subject to exclusive state jurisdiction. Excluding the rate implications contemplated on a
prospective basis by this FCC order, we will continue to vigorously defend and seek to collect our intrastate switched access revenues subject to
outstanding disputes. The outcomes of these disputes cannot be determined at thistime. If we are required to reduce our intrastate switched access
rates as aresult of any of these disputes or stateinitiatives, we will seek to recover displaced switched access revenues from state universal service
funds or other services. However, the amount of such recovery, particularly from residential customers, is not assured.

Other Regulations

We are subject to federal and state regulations of customer service standards related to Prism TV. The metrics that are followed are generally
the federal rules, but local franchise authorities have the ability to adopt more stringent standards. The FCC has largely delegated its enforcement
powersto theindividual local franchise authorities. We are subject to penaltiesin many of our local franchise agreements if we miss customer
service standards.

Certain of our telecommunications, colocation and hosting services conducted in foreign countries are or may become subject to various
foreign laws. Some of the legal requirements governing our foreign operations are more restrictive than or conflict with those governing our
domestic operations, which raises our compliance costs and regulatory risks.
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Variousforeign, federal and state laws govern our storage, maintenance and use of customer data, including awide range of consumer
protection, data protection, privacy, intellectual property and similar laws. The application, interpretation and enforcement of these laws are often
uncertain, and may be interpreted and applied inconsistently from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Various foreign, federal and state legislative or
regulatory bodies have recently adopted increasingly restrictive laws or regulations governing the protection or retention of data, and others are
contemplating similar actions.

For additional information about these matters, see” Risk Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business” and “Risk Factors—Risks Relating to
Legal and Regulatory Matters.”

Competition
General

We competein arapidly evolving and highly competitive market and we expect intense competition to continue. In addition to competition
from larger national telecommunications providers, we are facing increasing competition from several other sources, including cable and satellite
companies, wireless providers, technology companies, cloud companies, broadband providers, device providers, resellers, sales agents and
facilities-based providers using their own networks as well as those leasing parts of our network. Technological advances and regulatory and
legislative changes have increased opportunities for awide range of alternative communications service providers, which in turn have increased
competitive pressures on our business. These alternate providers often face fewer regulations and have lower cost structures than we do. In
addition, the communications industry has, in recent years, experienced substantial consolidation; and some of our competitorsin one or more lines
of our business are generally larger, have stronger brand names, have more financial and business resources and have broader service offerings
than we currently do.

Wireless telephone services are a significant source of competition with our ILEC services. It isincreasingly common for customersto
completely forego use of traditional wireline phone service and instead rely solely on wireless service for voice services. We anticipate this trend
will continue, particularly as our older customers are replaced over time with younger customers who are less accustomed to using traditional
wireline voice services. Technological and regulatory developmentsin wireless services, Wi-Fi, and other wired and wirel ess technol ogies have
contributed to the development of alternativesto traditional landline voice services. Moreover, the growing preval ence of electronic mail, text
messaging, social networking and similar digital non-voice communications services continues to reduce the demand for traditional landline voice
services. These factors have led to along-term systemic decline in the number of our wireline voice service customers.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996, which obligates |LECsto permit competitorsto interconnect their facilities to the ILEC's network and to
take various other steps that are designed to promote competition, imposes several duties on an ILEC if it receives a specific request from another
entity which seeks to connect with or provide services using the ILEC's network. In addition, each ILEC isobligated to (i) negotiate interconnection
agreementsin good faith, (ii) provide nondiscriminatory "unbundled" accessto all aspects of the ILEC's network, (iii) offer resale of its
telecommunications services at wholesale rates and (iv) permit competitors, on terms and conditions (including rates) that are just, reasonable and
nondiscriminatory, to colocate their physical plant on the ILEC's property, or provide virtual colocation if physical colocation is not practicable.
Current FCC rulesrequire ILECsto lease a network element only in those situations where competing carriers genuinely would be impaired without
access to such network elements, and where the unbundling would not interfere with the devel opment of facilities-based competition.

Asaresult of these regulatory, consumer and technological developments, ILECs al so face competition from competitive local exchange
carriers, or CLECs, particularly in densely popul ated areas. CL ECs provide competing services through reselling an ILEC's local services, through
use of an ILEC's unbundled network elements or through their own facilities.

Technological developments have led to the devel opment of new products and services that have reduced the demand for our traditional
services, as noted above, or that compete with traditional ILEC services. Technological improvements have enabled cable television companiesto
provide traditional circuit-switched telephone service over their cable networks, and several national cable companies have aggressively marketed
these services. Similarly, companies providing Vol P services provide voice communication services over the Internet which compete with our
traditional telephone service and our own Vol P services. In addition, demand for our broadband services could be adversely affected by advanced
wirel ess data transmission technol ogies being deployed by wireless providers and by certain technol ogies permitting cable companies and other
competitors to deliver faster average broadband transmission speeds than ours.

Similar to us, many cable, technology or other communications companies that previously offered alimited range of services are now offering
diversified bundles of services, either through their own networks, reselling arrangements or joint ventures. As such, agrowing number of
companies are competing to serve the communications needs of the same customer base. Such activities will continue to place downward pressure
on the demand for and pricing of our services.
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Asboth residential and business customers increasingly demand high-speed connections for entertainment, communications and
productivity, we expect the demands on our network will continue to increase over the next several years. To succeed, we and other network-based
providers must ensure that our networks can deliver competitive services that meet these increasing bandwidth and speed requirements. We plan to
continue to invest in our network to be able to meet this future demand and to compete effectively. In addition, network reliability and security are
increasingly important competitive factorsin our business.

In addition to facing direct competition from those providers described above, ILECs increasingly face competition from alternate
communication systems constructed by long distance carriers, large customers, municipalities or alternative access vendors. These systems are
capable of originating or terminating calls without use of an ILEC's networks or switching services. Other potential sources of competition include
non-carrier systemsthat are capable of bypassing ILECS' local networks, either partially or completely, through various means, including the
provision of special access or independent switching services and the concentration of telecommunications traffic on afew of an ILEC's access
lines. We anticipate that all these trendswill continue and lead to decreased billable use of our networks.

Additional information about competitive pressuresislocated (i) under the heading "Risk Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business' in Item 1A
of Part | of this Annual Report and (i) in the discussion immediately below, which contains more specific information on how these trendsin
competition have impacted our segments.

Business Segment
Strategic Services

In connection with providing strategic services to our business customers, which includes our small, medium and enterprise business,
wholesale and governmental customers, we compete against other telecommunication providers, aswell as other regional and national carriers,
other fiber providers, cable companies, CLECs and other enterprises, some of whom are substantially larger than us. Competition is based on price,
bandwidth, quality and speed of service, promotions and bundled offerings. In providing broadband services, we compete primarily with cable
companies, wireless providers, technology companies and other broadband service providers. Competition for private line servicesis based on
price, network reach and reliability, service, promotions and bundled offerings. We face competition in Ethernet based servicesin the wholesale
market from cable companies and fiber based CLEC providers.

Our competitors for providing integrated data, Internet, voice services and other IT services to our business customers range from mid-sized
businesses to large enterprises. Due to the size and capacity of some of these companies, our competitors may be able to offer more inexpensive
solutionsto our customers. To compete, we focus on providing sophisticated, secure and performance-driven services to our business customers
through our global infrastructure.

The number of companies providing business services has grown and increased competition for these services, particularly with respect to
smaller business customers. Many of our competitors for strategic services are not subject to the same regulatory requirements as we are and
therefore they are able to avoid significant regulatory costs and obligations.

Our competitorsfor cloud, hosting, colocation and other I T services include tel ecommunications companies, technology companies, cloud
companies, colocation companies, hardware manufacturers and system integrators that support the in-house I T operations for a business or offer
outsourcing solutions. Due to the size, capacity and strategically low pricing tactics of some of these companies, our competitors may be able to
offer more inexpensive solutions to our customers. The increase in recent years in the number of companies providing these services has placed
substantial downward pressure on pricing for awide range of cloud, hosting, colocation and other IT services. We believe, however, that our
hybrid IT services capabilities, which offer multiple products and services (including colocation, managed hosting, cloud and network services),
could help differentiate our products and services from those offered by competitors with a narrower range of products and services. We have
remained focused on expanding our hybrid cloud portfolio by adding differentiating features across the cloud spectrum, to include private and
public services, and acquiring additional companies that we believe have strengthened our cloud products.

L egacy Services

We face intense competition with respect to our legacy services and continue to see customers migrating away from these services and into
strategic services. In addition, our legacy services revenues have been, and we expect they will continue to be, adversely affected by product
substitution, technological migration and price competition. For our wholesal e customers, we will continue to be adversely affected by product
substitution, technological migration, industry consolidation and mandated rate reductions. We face significant competition for access services
from CLECs, cable companies, resellers and wirel ess service providers as well as some of our own whol esale markets customers, many of which are
deploying their own networks to provide customerswith local services. By doing so, these competitors reduce revenue producing traffic on our
network.
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Data Integration

In providing data integration to our business customers, we compete primarily with large integrators, equipment providers and national
telecommunication providers. Competition is based on package offerings, and as such we focus on providing these customersindividualized and
customizable packages. Our strategy isto provide our dataintegration through packages that include other strategic and legacy services. As such,
in providing dataintegration we often face many of the same competitive pressures as we facein providing strategic and legacy services, as
discussed above.

We expect data integration revenues to continue to fluctuate from quarter to quarter as this offering tends to be more sensitive than othersto
changesin the economy and in spending trends of our governmental customers. We further expect the profit margins on our dataintegration
offerings to continue to be lower than those of our strategic and legacy services.

Consumer Segment
Strategic Services

With respect to providing our strategic servicesto residential customers, competition is based on price, bandwidth, quality and speed of
service, promotions and bundled offerings. Wireless carriers' fourth generation, or 4G, services are allowing them to more directly compete with our
strategic services. The manner in which we compete for high-speed Internet customersin this segment is substantially similar to the manner in
which we compete for business customers, as described in the above section. In reselling DIRECTV video services, we compete primarily with cable
and other satellite companies as well as other sales agents and resellers. Our Prism TV residential video service faces substantial competition from a
variety of competitors, including well-established cable companies, satellite companies and several national companies that deliver content over the
Internet and on mobile devices. Many of our competitors for these strategic services are not subject to the same regulatory requirements as we are,
and therefore are able to avoid significant regulatory costs and obligations.

Our strategy for maintaining and increasing our base of broadband customersis based on pricing, packaging of services and features, quality
of service and meeting customer care needs. In order to remain competitive, we believe continually increasing connection speedsisimportant. Asa
result, we continue to invest in our network, which allows for the delivery of higher speed broadband services. We also continue to expand our
marketing and product bundling efforts by offering a variety of bundled products and services with various pricing discounts, aswe competein a
maturing market in which asignificant portion of consumers already have broadband services. We offer these bundled products and services
through various sales and marketing opportunities as further described above under the heading " Sales and Marketing."

L egacy Services

Although our status as an ILEC continues to provide us advantagesin providing local servicesin our local service area, as noted above, we
increasingly face significant competition as an increasing number of consumers are willing to substitute cable, wireless and electronic
communications for traditional voice telecommunications services. This has led to an increase in the number and type of competitors within our
industry, price compression and a decrease in our market share. Asaresult of this product substitution, we face greater competition in providing
local and long-distance voice services from wireless providers, resellers and sales agents (including ourselves), social media hosts and broadband
service providers, including cable companies. We al so continue to compete with traditional telecommunications providers, such as national carriers,
smaller regional providers, CLECs and independent tel ephone companies.

Our strategy to manage access linelossis based primarily on our pricing, packaging of services and features, quality of service and meeting
customer care needs. While bundle price discounts have resulted in lower average revenues for our individual services, we believe service bundles
continue to positively impact our customer retention.

Acquisitions

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of two companies for total consideration of $95 million, net of $2
million acquired cash and including immaterial future cash payments. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we acquired all of the outstanding
stock of two companies for total cash consideration of $160 million. In each case, the acquisitions were designed to augment our hosting services or
our emerging I T services.

Weregularly evaluate the possibility of acquiring additional assetsin exchange for cash, securities or other properties, and at any given time
may be engaged in discussions or negotiations regarding additional acquisitions. We generally do not announce our acquisitions or dispositions
until we have entered into apreliminary or definitive agreement.
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Environmental Compliance

From time to time we may incur environmental compliance and remediation expenses, mainly resulting from owning or operating prior
industrial sites or operating vehicle fleets or power supplies for our communications equi pment. Although we cannot assess with certainty the
impact of any future compliance and remediation obligations or provide you with any assurances regarding the ultimate impact thereof, we do not
currently believe that future environmental compliance and remediation expenditures will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or
results of operations. For additional information, see Item 1A of Part |1 of this Annual Report and Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies
included in Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.

Seasonality

Overall, our businessis not materially impacted by seasonality. Our network-rel ated operating expenses are, however, generally higher in the
second and third quarters of the year. From time to time, weather related problems have resulted in increased costs to repair our network and
respond to service callsin some of our markets. The amount and timing of these costs are subject to the weather patterns of any given year, but
have generally been highest during the third quarter and have been related to damage from severe storms, including hurricanes, tropical storms and
tornadoes in our markets along the Atlantic and Gulf of Mexico coastlines.

Employees

At December 31, 2015, we had approximately 43,000 employees, of which approximately 16,000 are members of either the Communications
Workers of America ("CWA") or the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers ("IBEW"). See the discussion of risks relating to our labor
relationsin "Risk Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business' in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report.

Over thelast several years, we have reduced our workforce primarily dueto (i) integration efforts from our acquisitions, (ii) increased
competitive pressures, and (iii) the loss of accesslines and related legacy revenues.

Website Accessand Important Investor I nformation

Our website is www.centurylink.com. The information contained on, or that may be accessed through, our website is not part of this Annual
Report. Y ou may obtain free electronic copies of our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reportsin the "Investor Relations' section of our website (ir.centurylink.com) under the heading "SEC Filings." These
reports are avail able on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file them with the Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC"). From time to time we al so use our website to webcast our earnings calls and certain of our meetings with investors or other members of the
investment community.

We have adopted awritten code of conduct that serves as the code of ethics applicableto our directors, officers and employees, in
accordance with applicable laws and rules promulgated by the SEC and the New Y ork Stock Exchange. In the event that we make any changes
(other than by atechnical, administrative or non-substantive amendment) to, or provide any waivers from, the provisions of our code of conduct
applicableto our directors or executive officers, we intend to disclose these events on our website or in areport on Form 8-K filed with the SEC. The
code of conduct, aswell as copies of our guidelines on significant governance issues and the charters of our audit committee, compensation
committee, nominating and corporate governance committee and risk evaluation committee, are also available in the " Corporate Governance"
section of our website at www.centurylink.com/Pages/AboutUs/Gover nance/ or in print to any shareholder who requests them by sending a
written request to our Corporate Secretary at CenturyLink, Inc., 100 CenturyLink Drive, Monroe, Louisiana, 71203.

Investors may also read and copy any materials filed with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C.
20549. For information on the operation of the Public Reference Room, you are encouraged to call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. For al of our
electronic filings, the SEC maintains awebsite at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy statements and other information regarding issuers that
file eectronically with the SEC.

In connection with filing this Annual Report, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer made the certifications regarding our
financial disclosures required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and its related regulations. In addition, during 2015, our chief executive officer
certified to the New Y ork Stock Exchange that he was unaware of any violations by us of the New Y ork Stock Exchange's corporate governance
listing standards.

Wetypically disclose material non-public information by disseminating press releases, making public filings with the SEC, or disclosing
information during publicly accessible meetings or conference calls. Nonethel ess, from time to time we have used, and intend to continue to use,
our website and social media accounts to augment our disclosures.
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Special Note Regar ding Forward-L ooking Statements and Related M atters

This Annual Report and other documents filed by us under the federal securities|aw include, and future oral or written statements or press
releases by us and our management may include, forward-looking statements about our business, financial condition, operating results and
prospects. These statements constitute "forward-looking" statements as defined by, and are subject to the "safe harbor" protections under, the
federal securities laws. These statements include, among others:

»  forecasts of our anticipated future results of operations or financial position;

+ statements concerning the impact of our transactions, investments and other initiatives, including our participation in government
programs;

»  statements about our liquidity, tax position, tax rates, asset values, contingent liabilities, growth opportunities and growth rates,
acquisition and divestiture opportunities, business prospects, regulatory and competitive outlook, investment and expenditure plans,
business strategies, dividend and stock repurchase plans, capital allocation plans, financing alternatives and sources, and pricing plans;
and

»  other similar statements of our expectations, beliefs, future plans and strategies, anticipated devel opments and other matters that are not
historical facts, many of which are highlighted by words such as“may,” “would,” “could,” “should,” “plan,” “believes,” “ expects,”

“anticipates,” “estimates,” “projects,” “intends,” “likely,” “seeks,” “hopes,” or variations or similar expressions.

" o«

These forward-looking statements are based upon our judgment and assumptions as of the date such statements are made concerning future
developments and events, many of which are beyond our control. These forward-looking statements, and the assumptions upon which they are
based, (i) are not guarantees of future results, (ii) are inherently speculative and (iii) are subject to anumber of risks and uncertainties. Actual
events and results may differ materially from those anticipated, estimated, projected or implied by usin those statementsif one or more of these
risks or uncertainties materialize, or if our underlying assumptions prove incorrect. Factors that could affect actual resultsinclude but are not limited
to:

+ theeffects of competition from awide variety of competitive providers, including lower demand for our legacy offerings;
+ theeffectsof new, emerging or competing technol ogies, including those that could make our products less desirable or obsol ete;

+ theeffects of ongoing changesin the regulation of the communicationsindustry, including the outcome of regulatory or judicial
proceedings relating to intercarrier compensation, interconnection obligations, access charges, universal service, broadband deployment,
data protection and net neutrality;

» our ability to effectively adjust to changes in the communications industry, and changes in the composition of our markets and product
mix;

» possible changesin the demand for, or pricing of, our products and services, including our ability to effectively respond to increased
demand for high-speed broadband service;

« our ability to successfully maintain the quality and profitability of our existing product and service offerings and to introduce new
offerings on atimely and cost-effective basis;

+ theadverseimpact on our business and network from possible equipment failures, service outages, security breaches or similar events
impacting our network;

« our ahility to generate cash flows sufficient to fund our financial commitments and objectives, including our capital expenditures, operating
costs, share repurchases, dividends, pension contributions and debt payments;

» changesin our operating plans, corporate strategies, dividend payment plans or other capital allocation plans, whether based upon
changesin our cash flows, cash requirements, financial performance, financial position, or otherwise;

+ our ability to effectively retain and hire key personnel and to successfully negotiate collective bargaining agreements on reasonabl e terms
without work stoppages,

* increasesin the costs of our pension, health, post-employment or other benefits, including those caused by changes in markets, interest
rates, mortality rates, demographics or regulations;



» adverse changesin our access to credit markets on favorabl e terms, whether caused by changesin our financial position, lower debt credit
ratings, unstable markets or otherwise;
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* our ability to maintain favorable relations with our key business partners, suppliers, vendors, landlords and financial institutions;
* our ability to effectively manage our network buildout project and other expansion opportunities;

* our ability to collect our receivables from financially troubled customers;

+ any adverse developmentsin legal or regulatory proceedingsinvolving us;

+ changesin tax, communications, pension, healthcare or other laws or regulations, in governmental support programs, or in general
government funding levels;

+ theeffects of changesin accounting policies or practices, including potential future impairment charges;
+ theeffects of adverse weather or other natural or man-made disasters;

+ theeffects of more general factors such as changesin interest rates, in operating costs, in general market, labor, economic or geo-political
conditions, or in public policy; and

+  other risksreferenced in Item 1A or elsewherein this Annual Report or other of our filings with the SEC.

Additional factors or risks that we currently deem immaterial, that are not presently known to us or that arise in the future could al so cause our
actual resultsto differ materially from our expected results. Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to unduly rely upon our forward-
looking statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements for any reason, whether as aresult of
new information, future events or developments, changed circumstances, or otherwise. Furthermore, any information about our intentions
contained in any of our forward-looking statements reflects our intentions as of the date of such forward-looking statement, and is based upon,
among other things, existing regulatory, technological, industry, competitive, economic and market conditions, and our assumptions as of such
date. We may change our intentions, strategies or plans (including our dividend or stock repurchase plans) at any time and without notice, based
upon any changesin such factors, in our assumptions or otherwise.

Investors should also be aware that while we do, at various times, communicate with securities analysts, it is against our policy to disclose to
them selectively any material non-public information or other confidential information. Accordingly, investors should not assume that we agree with
any statement or report issued by an analyst with respect to our past or projected performance. To the extent that reportsissued by securities
analysts contain any projections, forecasts or opinions, such reports are not our responsibility.

Unless otherwise indicated, information contained in this Annual Report and other documents filed by us under the federal securitieslaws
concerning our views and expectations regarding the communications industry are based on estimates made by us using data from industry
sources, and on assumptions made by us based on our management’ s knowledge and experience in the markets in which we operate and the
communications industry generally. Y ou should be aware that we have not independently verified data from industry or other third-party sources
and cannot guarantee its accuracy or compl eteness.

ITEM 1A.RISK FACTORS

Thefollowing discussion of “risk factors’ identifies the most significant risks or uncertainties that could (i) materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity or prospectsor (ii) cause our actual resultsto differ materially from our anticipated
results or other expectations. Y ou should carefully consider these factors, in addition to the other information set forth in this Annual Report and
our subsequent filings with the SEC, when evaluating our business and whether to purchase, sell or hold our securities. Please note that the
following discussion is not intended to comprehensively list al risks or uncertainties faced by us. Our operations or actual results could also be
similarly impacted by additional risks and uncertainties that are not currently known to us, that we currently deem to be immaterial, that arisein the
future or that are not specific to us, such as general economic conditions.
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Risks Affecting Our Business

We may not be able to compete successfully against current or future competitors.

Each of our offerings to our residential and business customers face increasingly intense competition from avariety of sources under
evolving market conditions. We expect these trends will continue. In addition to competition from larger national telecommunications providers, we
are facing increasing competition from several other sources, including cable and satellite companies, wireless providers, technology companies,
broadband providers, device providers, resellers, sales agents and facilities-based providers using their own networks as well as those leasing parts
of our network. In particular, (i) intense competition from wireless and other communications providers has led to along-term systemic decline in the
number of our customersfor wireline voice services, (ii) strong competition from cable companies and others has limited the growth of our
broadband operations and (iii) aggressive competition from awide range of technology companies and other market entrants has limited the
prospects for our cloud computing operations. For more detailed information, see "Competition" under Item 1 of this Annual Report.

Some of our current and potential competitors (i) offer products or services that are substitutes for our wireline voice services, including
wireless voice and non-voice communication services, (ii) offer amore comprehensive range of communications products and services, (iii) offer
products or services with features that we cannot readily match in some or all of our markets, including faster average broadband transmission
speeds and greater content, (iv) have market presence, engineering and technical capabilities, and financial and other resources greater than ours,
(v) have larger or more diverse networks with greater transmission capacity or more or larger data centers, (vi) conduct operations or raise capital at
alower cost than us, (vii) are subject to |ess regulation, which we believe enabl es such competitors to operate more flexibly than us with respect to
certain offerings, (viii) offer services nationally or internationally to alarger geographic area or larger base of customers, (ix) have substantially
stronger brand names, which may provide them with greater pricing power than ours, or (x) have larger operations than ours, which may enable
them to offer higher compensation packages in connection with recruiting and retaining top technological, managerial and operational talent.
Conseguently, these competitors may be better equipped to provide more attractive offerings, to charge lower pricesfor their products and
services, to develop and expand their communications and network infrastructure more quickly, to adapt more swiftly to new or emerging
technologies and changes in customer requirements, to devote greater resources to the marketing and sale of their products and services, to
provide more comprehensive customer service, to provide greater resources to research and devel opment initiatives and to take advantage of
acquisition or other opportunities morereadily. In the past, several of our competitors and their operations have grown through acquisitions and
aggressive product development. The continued growth of our competitors could further enhance their competitive positions.

Competition could adversely impact usin several ways, including (i) the loss of customers and market share, (ii) the possibility of customers
reducing their usage of our services or shifting to less profitable services, (iii) reduced traffic on our networks, (iv) our need to expend substantial
time or money on new capital improvement projects, (v) our need to lower prices or increase marketing expenses to remain competitive and (vi) our
inability to diversify by successfully offering new products or services.

We are continually taking steps to respond to these competitive pressures, but these efforts may not be successful. Our operating results and
financial condition would be adversely affected if theseinitiatives are unsuccessful or insufficient and if we otherwise are unable to sufficiently
stem our continuing access line losses and our legacy revenue declines. If this occurred, our ability to pay our debt and other obligations and to re-
invest in the business would also be adversely affected.

Rapid technological changes could significantly impact our competitive and financial position.

The communicationsindustry has been and continues to be impacted by significant technological changes, which in general are enhancing
non-voice communications and enabling a broader array of companies to offer services competitive with ours. Many of those technological
changes are (i) displacing or reducing demand for our wireline voice services, (ii) enabling the development of competitive products or services, or
(iii) enabling our current customers to reduce or bypass use of our networks. Rapid changesin technology are increasing the competitiveness of
the cloud, hosting, colocation and other I T servicesindustries. In addition, demand for our broadband services has been constrained by certain
technologies permitting cable companies and other competitors to deliver faster average broadband transmission speeds than ours. Demand for our
broadband services could be further reduced by advanced wirel ess data transmission technol ogies being deployed by wireless providers, including
“long-term evolution” or “LTE” technologies, especially if these wireless providers continue to increase their broadband transmission speed and
decrease their service rates. To enhance the competitiveness of our broadband services, we may be required to expend additional capital to
augment the capabilities of our copper-based services or to install more fiber optic cable.
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We may not be able to accurately predict or respond to changesin technology or industry standards, or to the introduction of newly-offered
services. Any of these developments could make some or all of our offerings |ess desirable or even obsol ete. These developments could also
require usto (i) expend capital or other resourcesin excess of currently contemplated levels, (ii) forego the development or provision of products or
servicesthat others can provide more efficiently, or (iii) make other changes to our operating plans, corporate strategies or capital allocation plans,
any of which could be contrary to the expectations of our security holders or could adversely impact our operations. If we are not able to develop
new products and services to keep pace with technological advances, or if those products and services are not widely accepted by customers, our
ability to compete could be adversely affected and our market share could decline. Any inability to effectively respond to technological changes
could also adversely affect our operating results and financial condition, aswell as our ability to service debt and fund other commitments or
initiatives.

Even if we succeed in adapting to changesin technology or industry standards by developing new products or services, thereisno
assurance that the new products or services would have a positive impact on our profit margins or financial performance.

In addition to introducing new technol ogies and offerings, we may need, from time to time, to phase out outdated and unprofitable
technologies and services. If we are unable to do so, on a cost-effective basis, we could experience reduced profits.

For additional information on the risks of increased expenditures, see “ Risk Factors—Risks Affecting our Liquidity and Capital Resources—
Our business requires usto incur substantial capital and operating expenses, which reduces our available free cash flow.”

Our legacy and private line services continue to experience declining revenues, and our effortsto offset these declines may not be successful.

Primarily as aresult of the competitive and technological changes discussed above, we have experienced a prolonged systemic decline in our
access lines, long-distance revenues and network access revenues, which continue to decrease revenues generated from our legacy services. We
have also experienced adeclinein our private line revenues due to our customers' optimization of their networks, industry consolidation, price
compression and technol ogical migration to higher-speed services. The loss of private line services has placed downward pressure on our strategic
revenues.

We have taken avariety of stepsto counter these declines, including:

» anincreased focus on selling a broader range of higher-growth strategic services, which are described in detail elsewhere in this Annual
Report;

» anincreased focus on serving a broader range of business, governmental and whol esale customers;
+ greater use of service bundles; and

* acquisitionsto increase our scale and strengthen our product offerings, including new products and services.

However, for the reasons described el sewhere in this Annual Report, most of these strategic services generate lower profit margins than our
legacy and private line services, and some can be expected to experience slowing growth as increasing numbers of our existing or potential
customers subscribe to these newer products. Moreover, we cannot assure you that the revenues generated from our new offerings will offset
revenue losses associated with our legacy and private line services. In addition, our reliance on third parties to provide certain of these strategic
services could constrain our flexibility, as described further below.

Our ability to successfully introduce new product or service offerings on atimely and cost-effective basis could be constrained by arange of
factors, including network limitations, limited capital, an inability to attract key personnel with the necessary skills, intellectual property constraints,
testing delays, or an inability to act as quickly as smaller, more nimbl e start-up competitors. Similarly, our ability to grow through acquisitions could
be limited by several factors, including our leverage and inability to identify attractively-priced target companies. For these reasons, we cannot
assure you that our new product or service offeringswill be as successful as anticipated, or that we will be able to continue to grow through
acquisitions.
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We may not be able to successfully adjust to changesin our industry, our markets and our product mix.

Ongoing changes in the communications industry have fundamentally changed consumers' communications expectations and requirements.
In response to these changes, we have substantially altered our product and service offerings through acquisitions and internal product
development. Many of these changes have placed a higher premium on sales, marketing and product development functions, and necessitated
ongoing changes in our processes and operating protocols, aswell as periodic reorgani zations of our sales and leadership teams. In addition, we
now offer amore complex range of products and services, operate larger and more complex networks and serve amuch larger and more diverse set
of customers. Consequently, we now face greater challenges in effectively managing and administering our operations and allocating capital and
other resources to our various offerings. For all these reasons, we cannot assure you that our effortsto adjust to these changes will be timely or
successful.

Our revenues and cash flows may not be adequate to fund all of our current objectives.

Asnoted in the risk factor disclosures appearing above and below, changes in competition, technology, regulation and demand for our legacy
services continue to place downward pressure on our consolidated revenues and cash flows. During each of 2015, 2014 and 2013, we experienced
declinesin revenues and net cash provided by operating activities as compared to prior years. Our cash flowswill be further reduced as aresult of
anticipated increasesin our cash tax payments due to our depletion of substantially all of our net operating loss carryforwards.

We rely upon our consolidated revenues and cash flows to fund our commitments and business objectives, including without limitation,
funding our capital expenditures, operating costs, share repurchases, dividends, pension funding payments and debt repayments. We cannot
assure you that our future cash flows will be sufficient to fund all of our cash requirementsin the manner currently contemplated. Our inability to
fund certain of these payments could have an adverse impact on our business, operations or competitive position or on the value of our securities.

We could be harmed by security breaches, damages or other significant disruptions or failures of our networks, information technology
infrastructure or related systems, or of those we operate for certain of our customers.

We are materially reliant upon our networks, information technology infrastructure (including data centers) and related technol ogy systems
(including our billing systems) to provide products and services to our customers and to manage our operations and affairs. We face therisk, as
does any company, of a security breach or significant disruption of our information technology infrastructure and related systems. Asa
communications company that transmits large amounts of sensitive and proprietary information over communications networks, we face an added
risk that a security breach or other significant disruption of our public networks or information technology infrastructure and related systems that
we develop, install, operate and maintain for certain of our business customers (which includes our wholesale and governmental customers) could
lead to material interruptions or curtailments of service. Moreover, in connection with processing and storing confidential customer data, we face a
heightened risk that a security breach or disruption could result in unauthorized access to our customers’ proprietary information on our public
networks or internal systems or the systems that we operate and maintain for certain of our customers.

We make significant efforts to maintain the security and integrity of information and systems under our control, and maintain contingency
plansin the event of security breaches or other system disruptions. Nonethel ess, we cannot assure you that our security efforts and measures will
prevent unauthorized access to our systems, loss or destruction of data (including confidential customer information), account takeovers,
unavailability of service, computer viruses, malware, distributed denial-of-service attacks, or other forms of cyber-attacks or similar events. These
threats may derive from human error, hardware or software vulnerabilities, fraud, malice or sabotage on the part of employees, third parties or other
nations, or could result from aging eguipment or other accidental technological failure. These threats may also arise from failure or breaches of
systems owned, operated or controlled by other unaffiliated operators to the extent we rely on such other operations to deliver servicesto our
customers.

Similar to other large tel ecommunications companies, we are a constant target of cyber-attacks of varying degrees. Although some of these
attacks have resulted in security breaches, to date none of these breaches have resulted in amaterial adverse effect on our operating results or
financial condition. Y ou should be aware, however, that defenses against cyber-attacks currently available to U.S. companies are unlikely to prevent
intrusions by a highly-determined, highly-sophisticated hacker. Consequently, you should assume that we will be unable to implement security
barriers or other preventative measures that repel all future cyber-attacks. Any such future security breaches or disruptions could materially
adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial condition, especially in light of the growing frequency, scope and well-documented
sophistication of cyber-attacks and intrusions.
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Although we maintain insurance coverage that may, subject to policy terms and conditions (including self-insured deductibles, coverage
restrictions and monetary coverage caps), cover certain aspects of our cyber risks, such insurance coverage may be unavailable or insufficient to
cover our |osses.

Additional risksto our network, infrastructure and related systemsinclude:
»  power losses or physical damage, whether caused by fire, adverse weather conditions, terrorism, sabotage, vandalism or otherwise;

»  capacity or system configuration limitations, including those resulting from changes in our customer's usage patterns, the introduction of
new technologies or products, or incompatibilities between our newer and older systems;

»  theft or failure of our equipment;
+ software or hardware obsol escence, defects or malfunctions;
» deficienciesin our processes or controls;
*  programming, processing and other human error; and
+ servicefailures of our third-party vendors and other disruptions that are beyond our control.
Dueto these factors, we experience from time to time in the ordinary course of our business short disruptionsin our service, and could
experience more significant disruptionsin the future.
Disruptions, security breaches and other significant failures of the above-described networks and systems could:

« disrupt the proper functioning of these networks and systems, which could in turn disrupt (i) our operations or (ii) the operations of certain
of our customerswho rely upon usto provide services critical to their operations;

*  require significant management attention or financial resources to remedy the damages that result or to change our systems, including
expenses to repair systems, add new personnel or develop additional protective systems;

* result in the unauthorized accessto, and destruction, loss, theft, misappropriation or release of proprietary, confidential, sensitive,
classified or otherwise valuable information of ours, our customers or our customers' end users, including trade secrets, which others
could use for competitive, disruptive, destructive or otherwise harmful purposes and outcomes,

*  requireusto notify customers, regulatory agencies or the public of data breaches;

* requireusto provide credits for future service under certain service level commitments we have provided contractually to our customers or
to offer expensive incentivesto retain customers;

» subject usto claims for damages, fines, penalties, termination or other remedies under our customer contracts or service standards set by
state regulatory commissions, which in certain cases could exceed our insurance coverage; or

* resultinaloss of business, damage our reputation among our customers and the public generally, subject us to additional regulatory
scrutiny or expose us to prolonged litigation.

We could experience difficultiesin expanding and updating our technical infrastructure.

Our ability to expand and update our systems and information technology infrastructure in response to our growth and changing business
needsisimportant to our ability to maintain and devel op attractive product and service offerings. As discussed further under “ Business—Network
Architecture” in Item 1 of Part | of this Annual Report, we are currently undertaking several complex, costly and time-consuming projects to simplify
and modernize our network, which combines our legacy network and the networks of companies we have acquired in the past. Unanticipated delays
in the completion of these projects may lead to increased project costs or operational inefficiencies. In addition, there may be issues related to our
expanded or updated infrastructure that are not identified by our testing processes, and which may only become evident after we have started to
fully utilize the redesigned systems. Our failure to modernize and upgrade our technology infrastructure could have adverse consequences,
including the delayed implementation of new service offerings, decreased competitiveness of existing service offerings, network instabilities,
increased operating or acquisition integration costs, service or billing interruptions, and the diversion of development resources.

Any or al of the foregoing developments could have a negative impact on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.
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Negative publicity may adversely impact us.

Outages or other service failures of networks operated by us or other operators could cause substantial adverse publicity affecting us
specifically or our industry generally. In either case, media coverage and public statements that insinuate improper actions by us or other operators,
regardless of their factual accuracy or truthfulness, may result in negative publicity, litigation, governmental investigations or additional
regulations. Addressing negative publicity and any resulting litigation or investigations may distract management, increase costs and divert
resources. Negative publicity may have an adverse impact on our reputation and the morale of our employees, which could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

If wefail to hire and retain qualified executives, managers and employees, our operating results could be harmed.

Our future success depends on our ability to identify, hire, train and retain executives, managers and employees with technological,
engineering, product development, operational, provisioning, marketing, sales, administrative and managerial skills. There is a shortage of qualified
personnel in several of these fields nationally and in our headquarters city of Monroe, Louisiana, in particular. We compete with several other
companiesfor thislimited pool of potential employees. Asour industry increasingly becomes more competitive, it could become especially difficult
to attract and retain top personnel with skillsin high demand. In addition, subject to limited exceptions, none of our executives or domestic
employees have long-term employment agreements. For all these reasons, there is no assurance that our effortsto recruit and retain qualified
personnel will be successful.

Increasesin broadband usage may cause network capacity limitations, resulting in service disruptions, reduced capacity or slower
transmission speeds for our customers.

Video streaming services, gaming and peer-to-peer file sharing applications use significantly more bandwidth than other Internet activity such
asweb browsing and email. As use of these newer services continues to grow, our high-speed Internet customerswill likely use much more
bandwidth than in the past. If this occurs, we could be required to make significant capital expendituresto increase network capacity in order to
avoid service disruptions, service degradation or slower transmission speeds for our customers. Alternatively, we could choose to implement
network management practices to reduce the network capacity available to bandwidth-intensive activities during certain timesin market areas
experiencing congestion, which could negatively affect our ability to retain and attract customers in affected markets. While we believe demand for
these services may drive high-speed Internet customersto pay for faster broadband speeds, competitive or regulatory constraints may preclude us
from recovering the costs of the necessary network investments. This could result in an adverse impact to our operating margins, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We have been accused of infringing the intellectual property rights of othersand will likely face similar accusationsin the future, which could
subject usto costly and time-consuming litigation or require usto seek third-party licenses.

From time to time, we receive notices from third parties or are named in lawsuits filed by third parties claiming we have infringed or are
infringing upon their intellectual property rights. We are currently responding to several of these notices and claims. Like other communications
companies, we have received an increasing number of these notices and claimsin the past several years, and expect thisindustry-wide trend will
continue. Responding to these claims may require usto expend significant time and money defending our use of the applicable technology, and
divert management’s time and resources away from other business. In certain instances, we may be required to enter into licensing agreements
requiring royalty payments or, in the case of litigation, to pay damages. If we are required to take one or more of these actions, our profit margins
may decline. In addition, in responding to these claims, we may be required to stop selling or redesign one or more of our products or services,
which could significantly and adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Similarly, from time to time, we may need to obtain the right to use certain patents or other intellectual property from third partiesto be able to
offer new products and services. If we cannot license or otherwise obtain rights to use any required technology from athird party on reasonable
terms, our ability to offer new products and services may be prohibited, restricted, made more costly or delayed.
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We may not be successful in protecting and enforcing our intellectual property rights.

Werely on various patents, copyright, trade names, trademark, service mark, trade secret and other similar laws, aswell as confidentiality
procedures and contractual restrictions, to establish and protect our proprietary rights. The steps we have taken, however, may not prevent
unauthorized use or the reverse engineering of our technology. Others may independently devel op technologies that are substantially equivalent,
superior to, or otherwise competitive to the technol ogies we employ in our services or that infringe on our intellectual property. We may be unable
to prevent competitors from acquiring proprietary rightsthat are similar to or infringe upon our proprietary rights, or to prevent our current or former
employees from using or disclosing to others our proprietary information. Enforcement of our intellectual property rights may depend on initiating
legal actions against parties who infringe or misappropriate our proprietary information, but these actions may not be successful, even when our
rights have been infringed. If we are unsuccessful in protecting or enforcing our intellectual property rights, our business, competitive position,
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Our operations, financial performance and liquidity are materially reliant on variousthird parties.

Reliance on other communications providers. To offer voice or data servicesin certain of our markets, we must either |ease network capacity
from, or interconnect our network with the infrastructure of, other communi cations companies who typically compete against us in those markets.
Our reliance on these lease or interconnection arrangements limits our control over the quality of our services and exposes usto therisk that our
ability to market our services could be adversely impacted by changesin the plans or properties of the carriers upon which we arereliant. In
addition, we are exposed to therisk that the other carriers may be unwilling to continue or renew these arrangements in the future on terms
favorableto us, or at all. Thisrisk is heightened when the other carrier isa competitor of ours and may benefit from terminating the agreement. If we
lose these arrangements and cannot timely replace them, our ability to provide servicesto our customers and conduct our business could be
materially adversely affected.

Conversely, certain of our operations carry a significant amount of voice or datatraffic for other communications providers. Their reliance on
our services exposes us to the risk that they may transfer all or a portion of thistraffic from our network to networks built, owned or leased by them,
thereby reducing our revenues. For additional information, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Business Trends” included in Item 7 of Part 11 of this Annual Report.

We also rely on reseller and sales agency arrangements with other communications companies to provide some of the services that we offer to
our customers, including video services and wireless products and services. As areseller or sales agent, we do not control the availability, retail
price, design, function, quality, reliability, customer service or branding of these products and services, nor do we directly control all of the
marketing and promotion of these products and services. Similar to the risks described above regarding our reliance upon other carriers, we could
be adversely affected if these communication companies fail to maintain competitive products or services, or fail to continue to make them available
to us on attractive terms, or at all.

Our operations and financial performance could be adversely affected if our relationships with any of these other communications companies
are disrupted or terminated for any other reason, including if such other companies:

*  become bankrupt or experience substantial financial difficulties;
»  suffer work stoppages or other labor strife;
+ challenge our right to receive payments or services under applicable regulations or the terms of our existing contract arrangements; or

+ areotherwise unable or unwilling to make payments or provide servicesto us.

Reliance on other key suppliersand vendors. We depend on alimited number of suppliers and vendors for equi pment and services relating to
our network infrastructure. Our local exchange carrier networks consist of central office and remote sites, all with advanced digital switches. If any
of these suppliers experience interruptions or other problems delivering or servicing these network components on atimely basis, our operations
could suffer significantly. To the extent that proprietary technology of asupplier isan integral component of our network, we may have limited
flexibility to purchase key network components from alternative suppliers and may be adversely affected if third parties assert patent infringement
claims against our suppliers or us. We also rely on alimited number of (i) software vendors to support our business management systems, (ii)
content suppliersto provide programming to our video operations, and (iii) contractorsto assist usin connection with our network construction
and maintenance activities. In the event it becomes necessary to seek alternative suppliers and vendors, we may be unable to obtain satisfactory
replacement supplies, services, utilities or programming on economically attractive terms, on atimely basis, or at al, which could increase costs or
cause disruptionsin our services.
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Reliance on utility providersand landlords. We operate a substantial number of data center facilities, which are susceptible to electrical power
shortages or outages. Our energy costs can fluctuate significantly or increase for avariety of reasons, including changesin legislation and
regulation. Several pending proposals designed to reduce greenhouse emissions could substantially increase our energy costs, which we may not
be able to pass on to our customers. Due to the increasing sophistication of equipment and our products, our demand or our customers demand for
power may exceed the power capacity in older data centers, which may limit our ability to fully utilize these data centers.

We lease most of our data centers. Although the majority of these |eases provide us with the opportunity to renew the lease, many of these
renewal options provide that rent for the renewal period will be equal to the fair market rental rate at the time of renewal. If the fair market rental rates
are significantly higher than our current rental rates, we may be unable to offset these costs by charging more for our services, which could have a
negative impact on our financial results. We cannot assure you that our data centersin the future will have access to sufficient space or power on
attractivetermsor at all.

Reliance on governmental payments. We receive amaterial amount of revenue or government subsidies under various government programs,
which are further described under the heading “Risk Factors—Risks Relating to Legal and Regulatory Matters." We also provide products or
servicesto various federal, state and local agencies. Governmental agencies frequently reserve theright to terminate their contracts for
convenience, or to suspend or debar companies from receiving future subsidies or contracts under certain circumstances. If our governmental
contracts are terminated for any reason, or if we are suspended or debarred from governmental programs or contracts, our results of operations and
financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

Reliance on financial institutions. Werely on anumber of financial institutions to provide us with short-term liquidity under our credit
facility. If one or more of these lenders default on their funding commitments, our access to revolving credit could be adversely affected.

Rising costs, changesin consumer behaviors and other industry changes may adversely impact our video business.

The costs of purchasing video programming have risen significantly in recent years and continue to rise. Moreover, an increasing number of
consumers are receiving access to video content through video streaming or other services pursuant to new technologies for anominal or no fee,
which will likely reduce demand for more traditional video products, such asthe satellite TV servicesthat we resell and our Prism TV services.

New technologies are al so affecting consumer behavior in ways that are changing how content is delivered and viewed. Increased access to
various mediathrough wireless devices has the potential to reduce the viewing of our content through traditional distribution outlets. These new
technologies have increased the number of entertainment choices available to consumers and intensified the challenges posed by audience
fragmentation. Some of these newer technologies also give consumers greater flexibility to watch programming on atime-delayed or on-demand
basis. All of these changes, coupled with changing consumer preferences and other related devel opments, could reduce demand for our video
products and services. Reduced demand for our video products and services could, in turn, reduce advertisers willingnessto purchase advertising
time from us, which would further reduce the profitability of our video offerings.

If wefail to extend or renegotiate our collective bargaining agreementswith our labor unions asthey expire from timeto time, or if our
unionized employees were to engagein a strike or other work stoppage, our business and operating results could be materially harmed.

As of December 31, 2015, approximately 37% of our employees were members of various bargaining units represented by the Communications
Workers of America or the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers. From time to time, our labor agreements with unions expire. Although
wetypically are able to negotiate new bargaining agreements, we cannot predict the outcome of our future negotiations of these agreements. We
may be unable to reach new agreements, and union employees may engage in strikes, work slowdowns or other labor actions, which could
materially disrupt our ability to provide services and result in increased cost to us. In addition, new labor agreements may impose significant new
costs on us, which could impair our financial condition or results of operationsin the future. To the extent they contain benefit provisions, these
agreements may also limit our flexibility to change benefitsin response to industry or competitive changes. In particul ar, post-employment benefits
provided under these agreements could cause usto incur costs not faced by many of our competitors, which could ultimately hinder our
competitive position.

Portions of our property, plant and equipment are located on property owned by third parties.

Over the past few years, certain utilities, cooperatives and municipalitiesin certain of the states in which we operate have requested
significant rate increases for attaching our plant to their facilities. To the extent that these entities are successful in increasing the amount we pay
for these attachments, our future operating costswill increase.
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In addition, werely on rights-of-way, colocation agreements and other authorizations granted by governmental bodies and other third parties
to locate our cable, conduit and other network equipment on or under their respective properties. Our operations could be adversely affected if any
of these authorizations terminate or lapse, or if the landowner requests price increases.

Our business customers may seek to shift risk to us.

We furnish to and receive from our business customers indemnities relating to damages caused or sustained by usin connection with certain
of our operations. Our customers' changing views on risk allocation could cause us to accept greater risk to win new business or could result in us
losing business if we are not prepared to take such risks. To the extent that we accept such additional risk, and seek to insure against it, our
insurance premiums could rise.

Our international operations expose usto variousregulatory, currency, tax, legal and other risks.

Our international operations are subject to U.S. and other laws and regul ations regarding operationsin foreign jurisdictions in which we
provide services. These numerous and sometimes conflicting laws and regul ations include anti-corruption laws, anti-competition laws, trade
restrictions, tax laws, immigration laws, privacy laws and accounting requirements. Many of these laws are complex and change freguently.
Regulations that require the awarding of contractsto local contractors or the employment of local citizens may adversely affect our flexibility or
competitivenessin these jurisdictions. Local laws and regulations, and their interpretation and enforcement, differ significantly among those
jurisdictions. Thereisarisk that these laws or regulations may materially restrict our ability to deliver servicesin various foreign jurisdictions or
could be breached through inadvertence or mistake, fraudulent or negligent behavior of our employees or agents, failure to comply with certain
formal documentation or technical requirements, or otherwise. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in fines and penalties, criminal
sanctions against us or our personnel, or prohibitions on the conduct of our business or our ability to operate in one or more countries, any of
which could have amaterial adverse effect on our business, reputation, results of operations, financial condition or prospects.

Many foreign laws and regulations relating to communications services are more restrictive than U.S. laws and regul ations, particularly those
relating to privacy rights and data retention. For example, all 28 member states of the European Union have adopted new European data protection
laws that we believe could impact our operationsin Europe and could potentially expose us to an increased risk of litigation or significant regulatory
fines. Moreover, national regulatory frameworks that are consistent with the policies and requirements of the World Trade Organization have only
recently been, or are still being, enacted in many countries. Accordingly, many countries are still in the early stages of providing for and adapting to
aliberalized telecommunications market. As aresult, in these markets we may encounter more protracted and difficult procedures to obtain licenses
necessary to provide the full set of products we seek to offer.

In addition to these international regulatory risks, some of the other risksinherent in conducting business internationally include:
+  tax, licensing, political or other business restrictions or requirements;
* uncertainty concerning import and export restrictions, including the risk of fines or penalties assessed for violations;
+ longer payment cycles and problems collecting accounts receivable;

+ domestic and foreign regulation of overseas operations, including regulation under the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, aswell as
other anti-corruption laws;

* economic, social and political instability, with the attendant risks of terrorism, kidnapping, extortion, civic unrest and potential seizure or
nationalization of assets;

* currency and repatriation restrictions and fluctuations in currency exchange rates,
+ challengesin securing and maintaining the necessary physical and telecommunications infrastructure;

+ theinability in certain jurisdictions to enforce contract rights either due to underdevel oped legal systems or government actions that result
in adeprivation of contract rights;

+ theinability in certain jurisdictions to adequately protect intellectual property rights;

+ laws, policiesor practices that restrict with whom we can contract or otherwise limit the scope of operations that can legally or practicably
be conducted within any particular country;

+  potential submission of disputesto the jurisdiction of aforeign court or arbitration panel;
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« reliance on third parties, including those with which we have limited experience;

« limitationsin the availability, amount or terms of insurance coverage;

+ theimposition of unanticipated or increased taxes, increased communications or privacy regulations or other forms of public or
governmental regulation that increase our operating expenses; and

+ challengesin staffing and managing foreign operations.

Many of these risks are beyond our control, and we cannot predict the nature or the likelihood of the occurrence or corresponding effect of
any such events, each of which could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We do business and may in the future do additional businessin certain countries or regionsin which corruption is a serious problem.
Moreover, in order to effectively compete in certain foreign jurisdictions, it is frequently necessary or required to establish joint ventures, strategic
alliances or marketing arrangements with local operators, partners or agents. In certain instances, these local operators, partners or agents may have
interests that are not always aligned with ours. Reliance on local operators, partners or agents could expose us to the risk of being unable to control
the scope or quality of our overseas services or products, or being held liable under the FCPA or other anti-corruption laws for actions taken by our
strategic or local partners or agents even though these partners or agents may not themsel ves be subject to the FCPA or other applicable anti-
corruption laws. Any determination that we have violated the FCPA or other anti-corruption laws could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, reputation or prospects.

We may be unableto integrate successfully our acquired operations and realize the anticipated benefits of our recent acquisitions.

Historically, much of our growth has been attributabl e to acquisitions. Although we have completed most of the work to integrate the
operations of the acquired companies into our operations, we will continue to devote significant management attention and resources to completing
the integration of the business practices, systems and operations of CenturyLink and the acquired companies. Y ou should be aware that our
remaining efforts to integrate these companies and businesses could distract our management, disrupt our ongoing business or create
inconsistencies in our products, services, standards, controls, procedures and policies, any of which could adversely affect our ability to maintain
relationships with customers, vendors and employees or to achieve the anticipated benefits of our acquisitions, or could otherwise adversely affect
our business and financial results.

Any additional future acquisitions by uswould subject usto additional business, operating and financial risks, the impact of which cannot
presently be evaluated, and could adversely impact our capital structure or financial position.

From time to time in the future we may pursue other acquisition or expansion opportunitiesin an effort to implement our business strategies.
These transactions could involve acquisitions of entire businesses or investments in start-up or established companies, and could take several
forms, including mergers, joint ventures, investmentsin new lines of business, or the purchase of equity interests or assets. These types of
transactions may present significant risks and uncertainties, including distraction of management from current operations, insufficient revenue
acquired to offset liabilities assumed, unexpected expenses, inadequate return of capital, regulatory or compliance issues, potential infringements,
potential violations of covenantsin our debt instruments and other unidentified issues not discovered in due diligence. To the extent we acquire a
businessthat isfinancially unstable or is otherwise subject to ahigh level of risk, we may be affected by currently unascertainabl e risks of that
business. Accordingly, thereisno current basis for you to evaluate the possible merits or risks of the particular business or assets that we may
acquire. Moreover, we cannot guarantee that any such transaction will ultimately result in the realization of the benefits of the transaction originally
anticipated by us or that any such transaction will not have a material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations. In
particular, we can provide no assurances that we will be able to successfully integrate the technology systems, billing systems, accounting
processes, salesforce, cost structure, product development and service delivery processes, strategies and culture of the acquired company with
ours. In addition, the financing of any future acquisition completed by us could adversely impact our capital structure as any such financing would
likely include the issuance of additional securities or the borrowing of additional funds. Except as required by law or applicable securities exchange
listing standards, we do not expect to ask our shareholders to vote on any proposed acquisition. Moreover, we generally do not announce our
acquisitions until we have entered into a preliminary or definitive agreement.
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Unfavorable general economic conditions could negatively impact our operating results and financial condition.

Unfavorable general economic conditions, including unstable economic and credit markets, could negatively affect our business. Worldwide
economic growth has been sluggish since 2008, and many experts believe that a confluence of global factors may result in a prolonged period of
economic stagnation, slow growth or economic uncertainty. Whileit is difficult to predict the ultimate impact of these general economic conditions,
they could adversely affect demand for some of our products and services and could cause customers to shift to lower priced products and
services or to delay or forego purchases of our products and services. These conditionsimpact, in particular, our ability to sell discretionary
products or services to business customers that are under pressure to reduce costs or to governmental customers that have suffered substantial
budget cutsin recent years. Any one or more of these circumstances could continue to depress our revenues. Also, our customers may encounter
financial hardships or may not be able to obtain adequate access to credit, which could negatively impact their ability to make timely paymentsto
us. In addition, as discussed further below, unstable economic and credit markets may preclude us from refinancing maturing debt at termsthat are
as favorabl e as those from which we previously benefited, at terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. For these reasons, among others, if current
economic conditions persist or decline, our operating results, financial condition, and liquidity could be adversely affected.

For additional information about our business and operations, see Item 1 of Part | of this Annual Report.
RisksRelatingto L egal and Regulatory Matters

We operatein a highly regulated industry and are therefore exposed to restrictions on our operations and a variety of claimsrelating to such
regulation.

General. We are subject to significant regulation by, among others, (i) the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC"), which regulates
interstate communications, (ii) state utility commissions, which regulate intrastate communications, and (iii) various foreign governments and
international bodies, which regulate our international operations. Generally, we must obtain and maintain certificates of authority or licenses from
these bodies in most territories where we offer regulated services. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in obtaining or retaining all
licenses necessary to carry out our business plan, and, even if we are, the prescribed service standards and conditions imposed on usin
connection with obtaining or acquiring control of these licenses may impose on us substantial costs and limitations. We are also subject to
numerous requirements and interpretations under various international, federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, which are quite detailed
and occasionally in conflict with each other. Accordingly, we cannot ensure that we are always considered to be in compliance with all these
reguirements at any single point in time. The agencies responsible for the enforcement of these laws, rules and regulations may initiate inquiries or
actions based on customer complaints or on their own initiative. Even if we are ultimately found to have complied with applicable regulations, such
actions or inquiries could create adverse publicity that negatively impacts our business.

Regulation of the telecommunicationsindustry continuesto change, and the regulatory environment varies substantially from jurisdiction to
jurisdiction. A substantial portion of our local voice services revenue remains subject to FCC and state utility commission pricing regulation, which
periodically exposes usto pricing or earnings disputes and could expose us to unanticipated price declines. Interexchange carriers have filed
complaintsin various forums regquesting reductionsin our access rates. In addition, several long distance providers are disputing or refusing to pay
amounts owed to usfor carrying Voice over Internet Protocol (“VolP”) traffic, or traffic they claim to be Vol P traffic. Similarly, some carriersare
refusing to pay access charges for certain calls between mobile and wireline devices routed through an interexchange carrier. There can be no
assurance that future regulatory, judicial or legislative activitieswill not have amaterial adverse effect on our operations, or that regul ators or third
parties will not raise material issues with regard to our compliance or noncompliance with applicable regulations.
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Risks associated with recent changesin regulation. Historically, our financial performance has been substantially impacted by various
aspects of federal regulation, including our receipt in the past of significant universal service payments designed to promote rural telephony. In
October 2011, the FCC adopted the Connect Americaand Intercarrier Compensation Reform order (“the 2011 order”) intended to comprehensively
reform the existing regulatory regime to focus support on networks capabl e of providing new technologies, including Vol P and other high-speed
Internet services, and re-direct federal universal service funding to foster nationwide voice and high-speed Internet infrastructure. Thisinitial ruling
provides for amulti-year transition as intercarrier compensation charges are reduced, federal universal service funding is explicitly targeted to
broadband deployment, and subscriber line charges paid by end-user customers are gradually increased. These changes have, among other things,
fundamentally altered the manner in which federal subsidies are calculated and disbursed to us (including terminating substantialy all of the old
universal service payments paid to us under predecessor support programs), and have substantially increased the pace of reductions in the amount
of switched access revenues we receive from our wholesal e customers. We expect our participation in the FCC's CAF Phase 2 support program will
significantly impact our financial results and capital expendituresin the coming years. For more information, see "Regulation™ in Item 1 of Part | and
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Item 7 of Part 11 of this Annual Report.

Several judicial challengesto the 2011 order are pending and additional future challenges are possible, any of which could alter or delay the
FCC's proposed changes. In addition, based on the outcome of the FCC proceedings, various state commissions may consider changes to their
rates and support programs. Moreover, FCC proceedings relating to implementation of the order remain pending. For these and other reasons, we
cannot predict the ultimate impact of these proceedings at thistime.

In addition, during the last few years Congress or the FCC hasiinitiated various other changes, including various broadband and internet
regulation initiatives including “network neutrality” regulations (as discussed further below) and actions that will restrict our ability to discontinue
or reduce certain services, even if unprofitable. The FCC is also, among other things, investigating the special accesstariffs of several carriers,
including us, and considering changesin the regulation of special access services. Any of these recent or pending initiatives could adversely affect
our operations or financial results. Moreover, many of the FCC' s regulations adopted in recent years remain subject to judicial review and additional
rulemakings, thusincreasing the difficulty of determining the ultimate impact of these changes on us and our competitors.

Certain states have recently taken steps that could reduce the amount of their universal service support payments to incumbent local
exchange companies. If these trends continue, we would suffer areduction in our revenues from state support programs.

Risksof higher costs. Regulations continue to create significant operating and capital costsfor us. Challengesto our tariffs by regulators or
third parties or delays in obtaining certifications and regulatory approvals could cause us to incur substantial legal and administrative expenses,
and, if successful, such challenges could adversely affect the rates that we are able to charge our customers.

Our business al'so may be impacted by legislation and regul ation imposing new or greater obligations related to regulations or laws related to
regulating broadband services, storing records, bolstering homeland security or cyber security, increasing disaster recovery requirements,
minimizing environmental impacts, enhancing privacy, restricting data collection, protecting intellectual property rights of third parties, or
addressing other issues that impact our business, including (i) the Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act, which requires
communications carriers to ensure that their equipment, facilities, and services are able to facilitate authorized el ectronic surveillance, and (ii) the
USA Freedom Act, which requires communication companies to store records of communications of their customers. We expect our compliance
coststo increase if future laws or regulations continue to increase our obligations.

In addition, increased regulation of our suppliers could increase our costs. For instance, if enhanced regulation of greenhouse gas emissions
increases our energy costs, the profitability of our hosting and other operations could be adversely affected.

Increased risks of fines. We have recently paid certain regulatory fines associated with network or service outages, particularly with respect
to outages impacting the availability of emergency - 911 services. We believe that regulators are now pursuing higher fines than in the past for
these types of incidents, and expect this trend to continue.

Risks of reduced flexibility. Asadiversified full serviceincumbent local exchange carrier in most of our key markets, we have traditionally
been subject to significant regulation that does not apply to many of our competitors. This regulation in many instances restricts our ability to
change rates, to compete and to respond rapidly to changing industry conditions. As our business becomesincreasingly competitive, regulatory
disparities between us and our competitors could impede our ability to compete.
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Risksposed by other regulations. All of our operations are also subject to avariety of environmental, safety, health and other governmental
regulations. We monitor our compliance with federal, state and local regulations governing the management, discharge and disposal of hazardous
and environmentally sensitive materials. Although we believe that we are in compliance with these regulationsin all material respects, our
management, discharge or disposal of hazardous and environmentally sensitive materials might expose usto claims or actions that could potentially
have amaterial adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. For a discussion of regulatory risks associated with our
international operations, see “Risk Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business—Our international operations expose usto various regulatory,
currency, tax, legal and other risks."

Our participation in the FCC's Connect America Fund (" CAF") Phase 2 support program poses certain risks.

Our participation in the CAF Phase 2 support programs subjects us to certain financial risks. If wefail to attain certain specified infrastructure
buildout requirements, the FCC could withhold future CAF support payments until these shortcomings are rectified. In addition, if we arenot in
compliance with FCC measures at the end of the six-year CAF Phase 2 period, we will have 12 monthsto attain full compliance. If we are not in full
compliance after the additional 12 months, we would incur a penalty equal to 1.89 times the average amount of support per location received in the
state over the six-year term, plus a potential penalty of 10% of the total CAF Phase 2 support over the six-year term for the state. The amount of
these penalties could be material. To comply with the FCC's buildout requirements, we believe we will need to dedicate a substantial portion of our
future capital expenditure budget to the construction of new infrastructure. The CAF-related expenditures could reduce the amount of funds we are
willing or able to allocate to other initiatives or projects.

“Open Internet” regulation could limit our ability to operate our high-speed data business profitably and to manage our broadband facilities
efficiently.

In order to continue to provide quality high-speed data service at attractive prices, we believe we need the continued flexibility to respond to
changing consumer demands, to manage bandwidth usage efficiently for the benefit of al customers and to invest in our networks. In February
2015, the FCC adopted new regulations that regul ate Internet services as apublic utility under Title Il of the Communications Act. Several
companies, including us, have initiated judicial actions challenging the new regulations, which remain pending. The ultimate impact of the new
regulationswill depend on several factors, including the results of pending litigation and the manner in which the new regulations are implemented
and enforced. Although it is premature for us to determine the ultimate impact of the new regulations upon our operations, we currently anticipate
that the proposed rules could hamper our ability to operate our data networks efficiently, restrict our ability to implement network management
practices necessary to ensure quality service, increase the cost of network extensions and upgrades, and otherwise negatively impact our current
operations. It is possible that Congress, the FCC or the courts could take further action in the future to modify regulations affecting the provision of
broadband Internet services.

We may beliable for the material that content providers distribute over our network.

Although we believe our liability for third party information stored on or transmitted through our networksis limited, the liability of private
network operatorsisimpacted both by changing technology and evolving legal principles that remain unsettled in many jurisdictions. As aprivate
network provider, we could be exposed to legal claimsrelating to third party content stored or transmitted on our networks. Such claims could
involve, among others, allegations of defamation, invasion of privacy, copyright infringement, or aiding and abetting restricted activities such as
online gambling or pornography. If we decide to implement additional measures to reduce our exposure to theserisks, or if we are required to defend
ourselves against these kinds of claims, our operations and financial results could be negatively affected.

Any adver se outcome in any of our pending key legal proceedings could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and
operating results, on thetrading price of our securitiesand on our ability to access the capital markets.

There are several material proceedings pending against us, as described in Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies to our consolidated
financial statementsincluded in Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report. Results of these legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty.
Irrespective of its merits, litigation may be both lengthy and disruptive to our operations and could cause significant expenditure and diversion of
management attention. Any of the proceedings described in Note 14, aswell as current litigation not described therein or future litigation, could
have amaterial adverse effect on our financial position or operating results. We can give you no assurances as to the impact of these matters on
our operating results or financial condition.
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We are subject to franchising requirements that could impede our expansion opportunities or result in potential fines or penalties.

We may be required to obtain from municipal authorities operating franchises to install or expand certain facilities related to our fiber transport
operations, our competitive local exchange carrier operations, and our facilities-based video services. Some of these franchises may require usto
pay franchise fees. Many of our franchise agreements have compliance obligations and failure to comply may result in fines or penalties. In some
cases, certain franchise requirements could delay usin expanding our operations or increase the costs of providing these services.

We are exposed to risks arising out of recent legislation affecting U.S. public companies.

Changing laws, regulations and standards rel ating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, and related regul ations implemented thereunder, areincreasing legal and financial
compliance costs and making some activities more time consuming. Any failure to successfully or timely complete annual assessments of our
internal controls required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act could subject us to sanctions or investigation by regulatory authorities. Any
such action could adversely affect our financial results or our reputation with investors, lenders or others.

Changesin any of the above-described laws or regulations may limit our ability to plan, and could subject usto further costs or constraints.

From time to time, the laws or regulations governing us or our customers, or the government’s policy of enforcing those laws or regulations,
have changed frequently and materially. The variability of these laws could hamper the ability of usand our customersto plan for the future or
establish long-term strategies. Moreover, future changesin these laws or regulations could further increase our operating or compliance costs, or
further restrict our operational flexibility, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, competitive position,
financial condition or prospects.

For amore thorough discussion of the regulatory issues that may affect our business, see "Regulation” in Item 1 of Part | of this Annual
Report.

Risks Affecting Our Liquidity and Capital Resour ces

Our high debt levels expose usto a broad range of risks.

We continue to carry significant debt. As of December 31, 2015, our consolidated |ong-term debt was approximately $20.225 hillion. As of the
date of this Annual Report, approximately $3.085 billion aggregate principal amount of our consolidated debt securities, excluding capital |ease and
other obligations, is scheduled to mature prior to December 31, 2018. While we currently believe we will have the financial resourcesto meet or
refinance our obligations when they come due, we cannot fully anticipate our future performance or financial condition, the future condition of the
credit markets or the economy generally.

Our significant levels of debt can adversely affect usin several other respects, including:

« limiting our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, refinancings or other general
corporate purposes, particularly if, as discussed further in the risk factor disclosure below, (i) the ratings assigned to our debt securities by
nationally recognized credit rating organizations are revised downward or (ii) we seek capital during periods of turbulent or unsettled
market conditions;

* requiring usto dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to the payment of interest and principal on our debt,
thereby reducing the funds available to us for other purposes, including acquisitions, capital expenditures, strategic initiatives, dividends,
stock repurchases and marketing;

« hindering our ahility to capitalize on business opportunities and to plan for or react to changing market, industry, competitive or economic
conditions;

* increasing our future borrowing costs;
* increasing therisk that third parties will be unwilling or unable to engage in hedging or other financial or commercia arrangements with us;
« making us more vulnerable to economic or industry downturns, including interest rate increases;

+ placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to less leveraged competitors;
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» increasing therisk that we will need to sell securities or assets, possibly on unfavorable terms, or take other unfavorable actions to meet
payment obligations; or

* increasing therisk that we may not meet the financial covenants contained in our debt agreements or timely make all required debt
payments.

The effects of each of these factors could be intensified if we increase our borrowings.
Any failure to make required debt payments could, among other things, adversely affect our ability to conduct operations or raise capital.

Our debt agreements and the debt agreements of our subsidiaries allow usto incur significantly more debt, which could exacerbate the other
risks described in this Annual Report.

Theterms of our debt instruments and the debt instruments of our subsidiaries permit usto incur additional indebtedness. Additional debt
may be necessary for many reasons, including those discussed above. Incremental borrowings that impose additional financial risks could
exacerbate the other risks described in this Annual Report.

We expect to periodically require financing, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain such financing on termsthat are
acceptableto us, or at all.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness that we intend to refinance over the next several years, principally through the issuance of
debt securities of CenturyLink, Inc., Qwest Corporation or both. Our ability to arrange additional financing will depend on, among other factors, our
financial position, performance, and credit ratings, as well as prevailing market conditions and other factors beyond our control. Global financial
markets continue to be volatile. Prevailing market conditions could be adversely affected by (i) general market conditions, such as disruptionsin
domestic or overseas sovereign or corporate debt markets, geo-political instabilities, contractions or limited growth in the economy or other similar
adverse economic developmentsin the U.S. or abroad and (i) specific conditionsin the communications industry. Volatility in the global markets
could limit our accessto the credit markets, leading to higher borrowing costs or, in some cases, the inability to obtain financing on termsthat are as
favorable as those from which we previously benefited, on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. Any such failure to obtain additional financing
could jeopardize our ability to repay, refinance or reduce our debt obligations.

We may also need to obtain additional financing under avariety of other circumstances, including if:
* revenues and cash provided by operations decline;
* economic conditions weaken, competitive pressures increase or regulatory requirements change;
* weengagein any acquisitions or undertake substantial capital projects or other initiatives that increase our cash requirements;
+ wearerequired to contribute amaterial amount of cash to our pension plans;
* wearerequired to begin to pay other post-retirement benefits earlier than anticipated;
*  our payments of federal taxesincrease faster or in greater amounts than currently anticipated; or

*  we become subject to significant judgments or settlements, including in connection with one or more of the matters discussed in Note 14—
Commitments and Contingenciesto our consolidated financial statements included el sewherein this Annual Report.

For all the reasons mentioned above, we can give no assurance that additional financing for any of these purposes will be available on terms
that are acceptableto us, or at all.

In addition, our ability to borrow fundsin the future will depend in part on the satisfaction of the covenantsin our credit facilities and other
debt instruments. If we are unable to satisfy the financial covenants contained in those instruments, or are unable to generate cash sufficient to
make required debt payments, the parties to whom we are indebted could accel erate the maturity of some or all of our outstanding indebtedness.
Certain of our debt instruments have cross-default or cross-accel eration provisions. When present, these provisions could have awider impact on
liquidity than might otherwise arise from adefault or acceleration of a single debt instrument.
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As noted above, if we are unable to make required debt payments or refinance our debt, we would likely have to consider other options, such
as selling assets, issuing additional securities, reducing or terminating our dividend payments, cutting costs or otherwise reducing our cash
reguirements, or negotiating with our lenders to restructure our applicable debt. Our current and future debt instruments may restrict, or market or
business conditions may limit, our ability to do some of these things on favorable termsor at all.

Any downgradein the credit ratings of us or our affiliates could limit our ability to obtain future financing, increase our borrowing costs and
adversely affect the market price of our existing debt securities or otherwise impair our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Nationally recognized credit rating organizations have issued credit ratings relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'s long-term debt and the long-term
debt of several of its subsidiaries. Most of these ratings are below “investment grade”, which resultsin higher borrowing costs than "investment
grade" debt aswell as reduced marketability of our debt securities. There can be no assurance that any rating assigned to any of these debt
securitieswill remain in effect for any given period of time or that any such ratingswill not be lowered, suspended or withdrawn entirely by arating
agency if, in that rating agency’s judgment, circumstances so warrant.

A downgrade of any of these credit ratings could:
+ adversely affect the market price of some or all of our outstanding debt or equity securities;
+ limit our access to the capital markets or otherwise adversely affect the availability of other new financing on favorable terms, if at all;

» trigger the application of restrictive covenantsin certain of our debt agreements or result in new or more restrictive covenantsin
agreements governing the terms of any future indebtedness that we may incur;

* increase our cost of borrowing; and

« impair our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Under certain circumstances upon a change of control, we will be obligated to offer to repurchase certain of our outstanding debt securities,
which could have certain adverse ramifications.

If the credit ratings relating to certain of our long-term debt securities are downgraded in the manner specified thereunder in connection with a
“change of control” of CenturyLink, Inc, then wewill be required to offer to repurchase such debt securities. If, due to lack of cash, legal or
contractual impediments, or otherwise, we fail to offer to repurchase such debt securities, such failure could constitute an event of default under
such debt securities, which could in turn constitute a default under other of our agreements relating to our indebtedness outstanding at that time.
Moreover, the existence of these repurchase covenants may in certain circumstances render it more difficult or discourage a sale or takeover of us,
or theremoval of our incumbent directors.

Our businessrequires usto incur substantial capital and operating expenses, which reduce our available free cash flow.

Our businessis capital intensive, and we anticipate that our capital requirements will continue to be significant in the coming years. As noted
elsewherein this Annual Report, we committed to spend substantial sumsto construct infrastructure in connection with our participation in the
FCC's CAF Phase 2 program. In addition, as discussed further under “ Risk Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business—Increases in broadband usage
may cause network capacity limitations, resulting in service disruptions, reduced capacity or slower transmission speeds for our customers,”
increased bandwidth consumption by consumers and businesses has placed increased demands on the transmission capacity of our networks. If
we determine that our networks must be expanded to handle these increased demands or as needed to meet CAF Phase 2 infrastructure
requirements, we may determine that substantial additional capital expenditures are required, even though there is no assurance that the return on
our investment will be satisfactory. In addition, many of our growth and modernization initiatives are capital intensive and changes in technology
could require further spending. In addition to investing in expanded networks, new products or new technologies, we must from time to time invest
capital to (i) replace some of our aging equipment that supports many of our legacy services that are experiencing revenue declines or (ii) convert
older systemsto simplify and modernize our network. While we believe that our planned level of capital expenditureswill meet both our
maintenance and core growth requirements, this may not be the case if demands on our network continue to accelerate or other circumstances
underlying our expectations change. Increased spending could, among other things, adversely affect our operating margins, cash flows, results of
operations and financia position.
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Similarly, we continue to anticipate incurring substantial operating expenses to support our incumbent services and growth initiatives.
Although we have successfully reduced certain of our operating expenses over the past few years, we may be unable to further reduce these costs,
even if revenuesin some of our lines of business are decreasing. If so, our operating margins will be adversely impacted.

As a holding company, we rely on payments from our operating companies to meet our obligations.

Asaholding company, substantially all of our income and operating cash flow is dependent upon the earnings of our subsidiaries and their
distribution of those earnings to usin the form of dividends, loans or other payments. As aresult, we rely upon our subsidiaries to generate the
funds necessary to meet our obligations, including the payment of amounts owed under our long-term debt. Our subsidiaries are separate and
distinct legal entities and have no obligation to pay any amounts owed by us or, subject to limited exceptions for tax-sharing or cash management
purposes, to make any funds available to us to repay our obligations, whether by dividends, loans or other payments. State law applicable to each
of our subsidiaries restricts the amount of dividends that they may pay. Restrictions that have been or may be imposed by state regulators (either in
connection with obtai ning necessary approvals for our acquisitions or in connection with our regul ated operations), and restrictions imposed by
credit instruments or other agreements applicable to certain of our subsidiaries may limit the amount of funds that our subsidiaries are permitted to
transfer to us, including the amount of dividends that may be paid to us. Moreover, our rights to receive assets of any subsidiary upon its
liquidation or reorganization will be effectively subordinated to the claims of creditors of that subsidiary, including trade creditors. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources’ included elsewhere
in this Annual Report for further discussion of these matters.

We cannot assure you that we will continue paying dividends at the current ratesor at all.
For the reasons noted below, we cannot assure you that we will continue periodic dividends on our capital stock at the current rates or at all.

Asnoted in theimmediately preceding risk factor, because we are a holding company with no material assets other than the stock of our
subsidiaries, our ability to pay dividends will depend on the earnings and cash flow of our subsidiaries and their ability to furnish fundsto usin the
form of dividends, |oans or other payments.

Any quarterly dividends on our common stock and our outstanding shares of preferred stock will be paid from funds legally available for such
purpose when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors. Decisions on whether, when and in which amounts to continue making any future
dividend distributions will remain at all times entirely at the discretion of our Board of Directors, which reserves the right to change or terminate our
dividend practices at any time and for any reason without prior notice, including without limitation any of the following:

» our supply of cash or other liquid assets is anticipated to decrease due to our projected payment of higher cash taxes and might decrease
further for any of the reasons or potential adverse events or developments described in this Annual Report, including (i) changesin
competition, regulation, federal and state support, technology, taxes, capital markets, operating costs or litigation costs, or (ii) the impact of
any liquidity shortfalls caused by the bel ow-described restrictions on the ability of our subsidiariesto lawfully transfer cash to us;

+ our cash requirements or plans might change for awide variety of reasons, including changesin our capital allocation plans (including a
desireto retain or accumulate cash), capital spending plans, stock purchase plans, acquisition strategies, strategic initiatives, debt
payment plans (including a desire to maintain or improve credit ratings on our debt securities), pension funding payments, or financial
position;

+ our ability to service and refinance our current and future indebtedness and our ability to borrow or raise additional capital to satisfy our
capital needs;

+ theamount of dividendsthat we may distribute to our shareholdersis subject to restrictions under L ouisianalaw and restrictions imposed
by our existing or future credit facilities, debt securities, outstanding preferred stock securities, leases and other agreements, including
restricted payment and leverage covenants; and

» theamount of cash that our subsidiaries may make available to us, whether by dividends, loans or other payments, may be subject to the
legal, regulatory and contractual restrictions described in the immediately preceding risk factor.

Based on its eval uation of these and other relevant factors, our Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, decide not to declare adividend
on our common stock or our outstanding shares of preferred stock for any period for any reason, regardless of whether we have funds legally
availablefor such purposes. Holders of our equity securities should be aware that they have no contractual or other legal right to receive dividends.
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Similarly, holders of our common stock should be aware that repurchases of our common stock under various repurchase plans are completely
discretionary, and may be suspended or discontinued at any time for any reason regardless of our financial position.

Our current dividend practices could limit our ability to deploy cash for other beneficial purposes.

The current practice of our Board of Directors to pay common share dividends reflects a current intention to distribute to our shareholders a
substantial portion of our cash flow. Asaresult, we may not retain a sufficient amount of cash to apply to other transactions that could be
beneficial to our shareholders or debtholders, including stock buybacks, debt prepayments or capital expenditures that strengthen our business. In
addition, our ability to pursue any material expansion of our business through acquisitions or increased capital spending may depend more than it
otherwise would on our ability to obtain third party financing.

We cannot assure you whether, when or in what amounts we will be able to use our net operating losses, or when they will be depleted.

At December 31, 2015, we had approximately $72 million of federal net operating losses, or NOLs, which relate primarily to pre-acquisition
losses of Qwest Communications International Inc. ("Qwest"). Under certain circumstances, these NOL s can be used to offset our future federal
taxable income. The acquisitions of Qwest, SAVVIS, Inc. ("Savvis') and other corporations caused “ ownership changes” under federal tax laws
relating to the post-acquisition use of NOLs and other federal tax attributes. Asaresult, these laws could limit our ability to use the federal NOLs
and certain other federal tax attributes of each of those corporations. Further limitations could apply if we are deemed to undergo an ownership
changein the future. Based on current laws and circumstances, we expect to use only a portion of the aforementioned federal NOL s from 2016
through 2032.

Additionally, at December 31, 2015, we had state NOL s of approximately $13 billion. A significant portion of the state NOLs are generated in
states where separate company income tax returns are filed and our subsidiaries that generated the losses may not have the ability to generate
income in sufficient amounts to realize these losses. In addition, certain of these state NOLswill be limited by state laws related to ownership
changes. Asaresult, we expect to utilize only asmall portion of the state NOLs, and consequently have determined that as of December 31, 2015,
these state NOL s had a net tax benefit (before valuation allowance) of approximately $444 million.

Increasesin costsfor pension and healthcare benefitsfor our active and retired employees may reduce our profitability and increase our
funding commitments.

With approximately 43,000 employees, approximately 68,000 pension retirees and approximately 14,000 former employees with vested benefits
participating in our benefit plans as of December 31, 2015, the costs of pension and healthcare benefits for our active and retired employees have a
significant impact on our profitability. Our costs of maintaining our pension and healthcare plans, and the future funding requirements for these
plans, are affected by several factors, most of which are outside our control, including:

+ decreasesin investment returns on funds held by our pension and other benefit plan trusts;

» changesin prevailing interest rates and discount rates used to cal culate the funding status of our pension and other post-retirement plans;
* increasesin healthcare costs generally or claims submitted under our healthcare plans specifically;

* increasing longevity of our employees and retirees,

+ thecontinuing implementation of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, and the related reconciliation act and regulations
promulgated thereunder;

* increasesin the number of retirees who elect to receive lump sum benefit payments;

* increasesin insurance premiums we are required to pay to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, an independent agency of the United
States government that must cover its own underfunded status by collecting premiums from an ever shrinking population of pension plans
that are qualified under the U.S. tax code;

+ changesin plan benefits; and

+ changesin funding laws or regulations.



Increased costs under these plans could reduce our profitability and increase our funding commitments to our pension plans. Any future
material cash contributions could have a hegative impact on our liquidity by reducing our cash flows.

As of December 31, 2015, our pension plans and our other post-retirement benefit plans were substantially underfunded from an accounting
standpoint. See Note 7—Employee Benefitsto our consolidated financia statementsincluded in Item 8 of Part 11 of this Annual Report. For more
information on our obligations under our defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefit plans, please see “Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Pension and Post-retirement Benefit
Obligations” included in Item 7 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.

For additional information concerning our liquidity and capital resources, see Item 7 of Part |1 of this Annual Report. For a discussion of
certain currency and liquidity risks associated with our international operations, see "Risk Factors—Risks Affecting Our Business—Our
international operations expose usto various regulatory, currency, tax, legal and other risks."

Other Risks

We facerisks from natural disasters, which can disrupt our operations and cause usto incur substantial additional capital and operating costs.

A substantial number of our facilities are located in Florida, Alabama, Louisiana, Texas, North Carolina, South Carolinaand other coastal
states, which subjects them to the risks associated with severe tropical storms, hurricanes and tornadoes, including downed telephone lines,
flooded facilities, power outages, fuel shortages, damaged or destroyed property and equipment, and work interruptions. Although we maintain
property and casualty insurance on our property (excluding our above ground outside plant) and may, under certain circumstances, be able to seek
recovery of some additional coststhrough increased rates, only a portion of our additional costs directly related to such natural disasters have
historically been recoverable. We cannot predict whether we will continue to be able to obtain insurance for catastrophic hazard-related damages or,
if obtainable and carried, whether thisinsurance will be adequate to cover our losses. In addition, we expect any insurance of this nature to be
subject to substantial deductibles or retentions and the premiumsto be based on our l0ss experience. Moreover, our insurance coverageislimited
for certain specified types of exposure to losses. For all these reasons, any future hazard-related costs and work interruptions could adversely affect
our operations and our financial condition.

If conditions or assumptions differ from the judgments, assumptions or estimates used in our critical accounting policies, our consolidated
financial statements and related disclosures could be materially affected.

The preparation of financia statements and related disclosures in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make judgments, assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Our critical accounting policies, which are described in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” in Item 7 of Part 11 of this Annual Report, describe those significant accounting
policies and methods used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statementsthat are considered “critical” because they require judgments,
assumptions and estimates that materially impact our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. Asaresult, if future events or
assumptions differ significantly from the judgments, assumptions and estimates in our critical accounting policies, these events or assumptions
could have amaterial impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Lapsesin disclosure controlsand procedures or internal control over financial reporting could materially and adversely affect our operations,
profitability or reputation.

There can be no assurance that our disclosure controls and procedures will be effective in the future or that we will not experience a material
weakness or significant deficiency ininternal control over financial reporting. Any such lapses or deficiencies may materially and adversely affect
our business, operating results or financial condition, restrict our ability to access the capital markets, require usto expend significant resources to
correct the lapses or deficiencies, expose usto regulatory or legal proceedings, including litigation brought by private individuals, subject usto
fines, penalties or judgments, harm our reputation, or otherwise cause adecline in investor confidence and our stock price.
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If our goodwill or other intangible assets become impaired, we may be required to record a significant charge to earnings and reduce our
stockholders' equity.

As of December 31, 2015, approximately 55% of our total consolidated assets reflected on the consolidated balance sheet included in this
Annual Report consisted of goodwill, customer relationships and other intangible assets. Under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,
most of these intangible assets must be tested for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently whenever events or circumstances indicate that
their carrying value may not be recoverable. From time to time (most recently for the third quarter of 2013), we have recorded large non-cash charges
to earnings in connection with required reductions of the value of our intangible assets. If our intangible assets are determined to be impaired in the
future, we may be required to record additional significant, non-cash charges to earnings during the period in which the impairment is determined to
have occurred.

Tax auditsor changesin tax laws could adversely affect us.

Likeall large businesses, we are subject to frequent and regular audits by the Internal Revenue Service aswell as state and local tax
authorities. These audits could subject usto tax liabilitiesif adverse positions are taken by these tax authorities.

We believe that we have adequately provided for tax contingencies. However, our tax audits and examinations may result in tax liabilities that
differ materially from those that we have recognized in our consolidated financial statements. Because the ultimate outcomes of all of these matters
are uncertain, we can give no assurance as to whether an adverse result from one or more of them will have a material effect on our financial results.

Legislators and regulators at all levels of government may from time to time change existing tax laws or regulations or enact new laws or
regulations that could negatively impact our operating results or financial condition.

Our agreements and organizational documents and applicable law could limit another party’'s ability to acquire us.

A number of provisionsin our agreements and organizational documents and various provisions of applicable law may delay, defer or prevent
afuture takeover of CenturyLink unless the takeover is approved by our Board of Directors. For additional information, please see our Registration
Statement on Form 8-A/A filed with the SEC on March 2, 2015. This could deprive our shareholders of any related takeover premium.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our property, plant and equipment consists principally of telephone lines, cable, central office equipment, land and buildings related to our
operations. Our gross property, plant and equi pment consisted of the following components:

Asof December 31,

2015 2014
Land 2% 2%
Fiber, conduit and other outside plant 42% 41%
Central office and other network electronics ® 36% 36%
Support assets @ 18% 18%
Construction in progress 2% 3%
Gross property, plant and eguipment 100% 100%

@ Fiber, conduit and other outside plant consists of fiber and metallic cable, conduit, poles and other supporting structures.

@ Central office and other network electronics consists of circuit and packet switches, routers, transmission electronics and electronics providing service to

customers.

® Support assets consist of buildings, data centers, computers and other administrative and support equipment.

@ construction in progress includes inventory held for construction and property of the aforementioned categories that has not been placed in service asit is still

under construction.

We own substantially all of our telecommunications equipment required for our business. However, we lease from third parties certain
facilities, plant, equipment and software under various capital and operating |ease arrangements when the leasing arrangements are more favorable
to us than purchasing the assets. We also own and |ease administrative officesin major metropolitan locations both in the United States and
internationally. Substantially all of our network electronics equipment is located in buildings or on land that we own or lease within our local service
area. Outside of our local service area, our assets are generally located on real property pursuant to an agreement with the property owner or
another person with rightsto the property. It is possible that we may |ose our rights under one or more of these agreements, due to their termination
or expiration or in connection with legal challenges to our rights under such agreements.

Our net property, plant and equi pment was approximately $18.1 billion and $18.4 hillion at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Some of
our property, plant and equipment is pledged to secure the long-term debt of subsidiaries. For additional information, see Note 5—Property, Plant
and Equipment to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information contained under the subheadings "Pending Matters" and "Other Proceedings and Disputes” in Note 14—Commitments and
Contingenciesto our consolidated financia statementsincluded in Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report isincorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'SCOMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERSAND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the New Y ork Stock Exchange ("NY SE") and the Berlin Stock Exchange and is traded under the symbol CTL
and CYT, respectively. The following table sets forth the high and low reported sales prices on the NY SE along with the quarterly dividends, for
each of the quartersindicated.

SalesPrice Cash Dividend per
High Low Common Share

2015
First quarter $ 40.59 34.04 0.540
Second quarter 37.00 29.28 0.540
Third quarter 3113 24.29 0.540
Fourth quarter 29.37 24.11 0.540
2014
First quarter $ 32.98 27.93 0.540
Second quarter 38.21 32.45 0.540
Third quarter 45.67 35.70 0.540
Fourth quarter 41.99 37.56 0.540

Dividends on common stock during 2015 and 2014 were paid each quarter. On February 23, 2016, our Board of Directors declared acommon
stock dividend of $0.54 per share.

Asdescribed in greater detail in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report, the declaration and payment of dividendsis at the discretion of our
Board of Directors, and will depend upon our financial results, cash requirements, future prospects and other factors deemed relevant by our Board
of Directors.

At February 17, 2016, there were approximately 135,000 stockholders of record, although there were significantly more beneficial holders of
our common stock. At February 17, 2016, the closing stock price of our common stock was $29.73.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In February 2014, our Board of Directors authorized a 24-month program to repurchase up to an aggregate of $1 billion of our outstanding
common stock. This 2014 stock repurchase program took effect on May 29, 2014, immediately upon the completion of our predecessor 2013 stock
repurchase program. On December 7, 2015, we completed the 2014 stock repurchase program. During the three months ended December 31, 2015, we
repurchased approximately 10.3 million shares of our outstanding common stock in the open market. These shares were repurchased for an
aggregate market price of $278 million or an average purchase price of $27.07 per share. The common stock repurchased has been retired. For
additional information, see Note 17—Repurchase of CenturyLink, Inc. Common Stock to our consolidated financial statementsincluded in Item 8 of
Part 11 of this Annual Report.

The following table contains information about shares of our previously-issued common stock that were repurchased under our 24-month
2014 stock repurchase program during the fourth quarter of 2015:

Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Shar es Purchased as Value of Shares That
Average Price Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of Paid Per Announced Plans or Under the Plans or
Shares Pur chased Share Programs Programs
Period
October 2015 503,341 $ 26.20 503,341 $ 145,743,848
November 2015 4,211,762 28.15 4,211,762 27,178,346
December 2015 1,007,841 26.97 1,007,841 —
Total 10,250,944 27.07 10,250,944
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The following table contains information about shares of our previously-issued common stock that we withheld from employees upon vesting
of their stock-based awards during the fourth quarter of 2015 to satisfy the related minimum tax withholding obligations:

Total Number of

Shares Withheld Average Price Paid
for Taxes Per Share
Period
October 2015 2940 $ 2593
November 2015 27,471 271.72
December 2015 3,884 27.00
Total 34,295
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables of selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified by reference to, our
consolidated financial statements and notesthereto in Item 8 of Part 11 and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations" in Item 7 of Part 11 of this Annual Report.

Thetables of selected financial data shown below are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. These historical results are
not necessarily indicative of results that you can expect for any future period.

The results of operationsinclude Savvisfor periods after July 15, 2011 and Qwest for periods after April 1, 2011.

Selected financial information from our consolidated statements of operationsis asfollows:

Y ears Ended December 31, @
2015 2014 ® 2013 & 2012 2011

(Dollarsin millions, except per shareamounts
and sharesin thousands)

Operating revenues $ 17,900 18,031 18,095 18,376 15,351
Operating expenses 15,295 15,621 16,642 15,663 13,326
Operating income $ 2,605 2,410 1,453 2,713 2,025
Income beforeincome tax expense 1,316 1,110 224 1,250 948
Net income (loss) 878 772 (239) 77 573
Basic earnings (l0ss) per common share 1.58 1.36 (0.40) 1.25 1.07
Diluted earnings (l0ss) per common share 1.58 1.36 (0.40) 1.25 1.07
Dividends declared per common share 2.16 2.16 2.16 2.90 2.90
Weighted average basic common shares outstanding 554,278 568,435 600,892 620,205 532,780
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 555,093 569,739 600,892 622,285 534,121

@ See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Results of Operations" in Item 7 of Part |1 of this Annual
Report for adiscussion of unusual items affecting the results for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013.

@ During 2015, we recognized an incremental $215 million of revenue associated with the Federal Communications Commission (*FCC") Connect America Fund
Phase 2 support program. For additional information, see Note 1—Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to our consolidated
financial statementsin Item 8 of Part I of this Annual Report.

® During 2014, we recognized a $60 million tax benefit associated with a deduction for the tax basis for worthless stock in a wholly-owned foreign subsidiary and a
$63 million pension settlement charge. For additional information, see Note 13—Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) to our consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of Part 11 of this Annual Report.

@ During 2013, we recorded a non-cash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairment charge of $1.092 billion for goodwill attributed to one of our previous operating
segments and a litigation settlement charge of $235 million.
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Selected financial information from our consolidated balance sheetsis asfollows:

Asof December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(Dollarsin millions)

Net property, plant and equipment $ 18,069 18,433 18,646 18,909 19,361
Goodwill 20,742 20,755 20,674 21,627 21,627
Total assets @ 47,604 49,103 50,471 52,901 54,842
Total long-term debt @@ 20,225 20,503 20,809 20,481 21,758
Total stockholders' equity 14,060 15,023 17,191 19,289 20,827

()]

(@)

(©)

During 2013, we recorded a non-cash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairment charge of $1.092 billion for goodwill attributed to one of our previous operating
segments. For additional information, see Note 2—Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other Intangible Assets to our consolidated financial statementsin
Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report.

We adopted both ASU 2015-03 " Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs" and ASU 2015-17 "Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes' by
retrospectively applying the requirements of the ASUs to our previously issued consolidated financial statements. The adoption of both ASU 2015-03 and ASU
2015-17 reduced total assets by $1.044 billion, $1.316 billion, $1.039 billion and $1.122 billion in each year for the four years ended December 31, 2014,
respectively, and ASU 2015-03 reduced total long-term debt by $168 million, $157 million, $124 million and $78 million in each year for the four years ended
December 31, 2014, respectively. See further discussion in Note 1—Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to our consolidated
financial statementsin Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.

Total long-term debt is the sum of current maturities of long-term debt and long-term debt on our consolidated balance sheets. For additional information on
our total long-term debt, see Note 3—L ong-Term Debt and Credit Facilities to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report.
For total contractual obligations, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Future Contractual
Obligations" in Item 7 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.

Selected financial information from our consolidated statements of cash flowsis asfollows:

Y ear s Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(Dollarsin millions)

Net cash provided by operating activities ~ $ 5,152 5,188 5,559 6,065 4,201
Net cash used ininvesting activities (2,853) (3,077) (3,148) (2,690) (3,647)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,301) (2,151) (2,454) (3,295) (577)
Payments for property, plant and equipment

and capitalized software (2,872 (3,047) (3,048) (2,919 (2,411)

The following table presents certain of our selected operational metrics:

Asof December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands except for data centers, which are actuals)

Operational metrics:

Total accesslines® 11,748 12,394 13,002 13,751 14,587
Total high-speed Internet subscribers @ 6,048 6,082 5,991 5,851 5,655
Prism TV subscribers 285 242 175 106 65
Total datacenters® 59 58 55 54 51

@

@)

Access lines are lines reaching from the customers' premises to a connection with the public network and high-speed Internet subscribers are customers that
purchase high-speed Internet connection service through their existing telephone lines, stand-alone telephone lines, or fiber-optic cables. Our methodology for
counting our access lines and high-speed Internet subscribers includes only those lines that we use to provide services to external customers and excludes lines
used solely by us and our affiliates. It also excludes unbundled loops and includes stand-al one high-speed Internet subscribers. We count lines when we install the
service.

We define a data center as any facility where we market, sell and deliver either colocation services, multi-tenant managed services, or both. Our data centers are
located in North America, Europe and Asia.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISOF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

All referencesto "Notes' in thisItem 7 of Part |1 refer to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsincluded in Item 8 of Part |1 of this
Annual Report. Certain statements in this Annual Report constitute forward-looking statements. See " Special Note Regarding Forwar d-Looking
Statements and Related Matters" in Item 1 of Part | of this Annual Report for factors relating to these statements and "Risk Factors' in Item 1A of
Part | of this Annual Report for a discussion of certain risk factors applicable to our business, financial condition, results of operations, liquidity
or prospects.

Overview

We are an integrated communications company engaged primarily in providing an array of communications services to our residential and
business customers. Our communications services include local and long-distance voice, high-speed Internet, Multi-Protocol Label Switching
("MPLS"), private line (including special access), dataintegration, Ethernet, colocation, managed hosting (including cloud hosting), network, public
access, video, wireless and other ancillary services. We strive to maintain our customer relationships by, among other things, bundling our service
offeringsto provide our customers with a complete offering of integrated communi cations services.

At December 31, 2015, we operated approximately 11.7 million access lines in 37 states and served approximately 6.0 million high-speed
Internet subscribers and 285 thousand Prism TV subscribers. We also operated 59 data centers throughout North America, Europe and Asia. Our
methodol ogy for counting access lines, high-speed I nternet subscribers and data centers, which is described further in the operational metricstable
below under "Results of Operations", may not be comparable to those of other companies.

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CenturyLink, Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiaries (" CenturyLink").

We are organized into operating segments based on customer type, business and consumer. These operating segments are our two
reportable segmentsin our consolidated financial statements:

*  Business Segment. Consists generally of providing strategic, legacy and data integration products and services to small, medium and
enterprise business, wholesale and governmental customers, including other communication providers. Our strategic products and
services offered to these customersinclude our MPLS, private line (including special access), Ethernet, high-speed Internet, colocation,
managed hosting, cloud hosting and other ancillary services. Our legacy services offered to these customers primarily include switched
access, local and long-distance voice services, including the sale of unbundled network elements ("UNES") which allow our wholesale
customersto use all or part of our network to provide voice and data servicesto their customers. Our dataintegration offerings include the
sale of telecommunications equipment located on customers' premises and related professional services. These services include network
management, installation and maintenance of data equipment and the building of proprietary fiber-optic broadband networks; and

+  Consumer Segment. Consists generally of providing strategic and legacy products and servicesto residential customers. Our strategic
products and services offered to these customers include our high-speed Internet, video (including our Prism TV services) and wireless
services. Our legacy services offered to these customersinclude local and long-distance voice service.
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Results of Operations

The following table summarizes the results of our consolidated operations for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013:

Y ears Ended December 31,
2015 @ 2014 2013 ®

(Dollarsin millions except
per share amounts)

Operating revenues $ 17,900 18,031 18,095
Operating expenses 15,295 15,621 16,642
Operating income 2,605 2,410 1,453
Other expense, net 1,289 1,300 1,229
Income tax expense 438 338 463
Net income (l0ss) $ 878 772 (239)

Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 1.58 1.36 (0.40)

Diluted earnings (l0ss) per common share $ 1.58 1.36 (0.40)

@ During 2015, we recognized an incremental $215 million of revenue associated with the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") Connect America Fund

Phase 2 support program. For additional information, see Note 1—Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to our consolidated
financial statementsin Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report.

@ During 2014, we recognized a $60 million tax benefit associated with a deduction for the tax basis for worthless stock in a wholly-owned foreign subsidiary and a

$63 million pension settlement charge. For additional information, see Note 13—Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) to our consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of Part 11 of this Annual Report.

® During 2013, we recorded a non-cash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairment charge of $1.092 billion for goodwill attributed to one of our previous operating

segments and a litigation settlement charge of $235 million.

The following table summarizes our access lines, high-speed Internet subscribers, Prism TV subscribers, data centers and number of
employees:

Asof December 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in thousands except for data centers, which are actuals)

Operational metrics:

Total accesslines® 11,748 12,394 13,002
Total high-speed Internet subscribers @ 6,048 6,082 5,991
Total Prism TV subscribers 285 242 175
Total datacenters® 59 58 55
Total employees 43 45 47

@ Access lines are lines reachi ng from the customers' premises to a connection with the public network and high-speed Internet subscribers are customers that

purchase high-speed Internet connection service through their existing telephone lines, stand-alone telephone lines, or fiber-optic cables. Our methodology for
counting our access lines and high-speed Internet subscribers includes only those lines that we use to provide services to external customers and excludes lines

used solely by us and our affiliates. It also excludes unbundled loops and includes stand-alone high-speed Internet subscribers. We count lines when we install the
service.
@ We define a data center as any facility where we market, sell and deliver either colocation services, multi-tenant managed services, or both. Our data centers are
located in North America, Europe and Asia.

During the last decade, we have experienced revenue declines primarily due to declinesin access lines, private line customers, switched
access rates and minutes of use. To mitigate these revenue declines, we remain focused on efforts to, among other things:

«  promote long-term relationships with our customers through bundling of integrated services;

« provide awide array of diverse services, including enhanced or additional servicesthat may become available in the future due to, among
other things, advances in technology or improvementsin our infrastructure;






»  provide our high-speed Internet and premium servicesto a higher percentage of our customers;
*  pursue acquisitions of additional assetsif available at attractive prices;
* increase priceson our products and servicesif and when practicable;
* increase the capacity and speed of our networks;
* increase usage of our networks; and
*  market our products and servicesto new customers.
Operating Revenues
We currently categorize our products, services and revenues among the following four categories:

e Strategic services, which include primarily high-speed Internet, MPLS (which is adata networking technology that can deliver the quality
of service required to support real-time voice and video), private line (including special access), Ethernet, col ocation, hosting (including
cloud hosting and managed hosting), video (including our facilities-based video services, which we now offer in 16 markets), Vol P and
Verizon Wireless services;

»  Legacy services, which include primarily local and long-distance voice services, including the sale of UNEs, switched access, and
Integrated Services Digital Network ("ISDN") services (which use regular telephone lines to support voice, video and data applications);

» Dataintegration, which includes the sale of telecommunications equi pment located on customers' premises and related professional
services, such as network management, installation and maintenance of data equipment and building of proprietary fiber-optic broadband
networks for our business customers; and

»  Other operating revenues, which consists primarily of Connect America Fund ("CAF") support payments, Universal Service Fund ("USF")
support payments and USF surcharges. We receive federal support payments from both CAF Phase 1 and CAF Phase 2 programs, and
support payments from both federal and state USF programs. These support payments are government subsidies designed to reimburse us
for various costs related to certain tel ecommunications services, including the costs of deploying, maintaining and operating voice and
high-speed Internet infrastructure in high-cost rural areas where we are not able to recover our costs from our customers. USF surcharges
are the amounts we collect based on specific itemswe list on our customers' invoicesto fund the Federal Communications Commission's
("FCC") universal service programs. We also generate other operating revenues from leasing and subleasing of spacein our office
buildings, warehouses and other properties. Because we centrally manage the activities that generate these other operating revenues,
these revenues are not included in our segment revenues.

The following tables summarize our consolidated operating revenues recorded under our four revenue categories:

Y ears Ended December 31, Increase/
2015 2014 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollarsin millions)

Strategic services $ 9,343 9,166 177 2%
Legacy services 6,752 7172 (420) (6)%
Dataintegration 573 690 (117) 17%
Other 1,232 1,003 229 23%
Total operating revenues $ 17,900 18,031 (131) (1)%




Y ears Ended December 31, Increase/

2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dallarsin millions)
Strategic services $ 9,166 8,776 390 4%
L egacy services 7,172 7,663 (491) (6)%
Dataintegration 690 656 34 5%
Other 1,003 1,000 3 — %
Total operating revenues $ 18,031 18,095 (64) — %

During thefirst quarter of 2015, we determined that certain products and services associated with our acquisition of SAVVIS, Inc. ("Savvis")
are more closely aligned to legacy services than to strategic services. As aresult, these operating revenues are now reflected as legacy services.
Therevision resulted in areduction of revenue from strategic services of $34 million and $47 million, respectively, and acorresponding increase in
revenue from legacy servicesfor the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Our total operating revenues decreased by $131 million, or 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014 and operating revenues decreased by $64 million, or less than 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2013. The decline in revenues for both periods was primarily due to lower legacy services revenues, which decreased by $420
million, or 6%, and $491 million, or 6%, for the respective periods. The declinein legacy services revenues reflects the continuing loss of access
lines and loss of long-distance revenues primarily due to the displacement of traditional wireline telephone services by other competitive products
and services, including Internet and wireless communication services. At December 31, 2015, we had approximately 11.7 million access lines, or
approximately 5.2% less than the number of access lines we operated at December 31, 2014. At December 31, 2014, we had approximately 12.4 million
access lines, or approximately 4.7% less than the number of access lines we operated at December 31, 2013. We estimate that the rate of our access
lineslosseswill be between 5.0% and 6.0% over the full year of 2016. The growth in our strategic services revenues for both periods was primarily
dueto increases in high-speed Internet, Ethernet, MPLS, facilities-based video and I T services and from rate increases on various services, which
were substantially offset by declinesin private line (including special access) services, colocation and hosting services. The level of strategic
revenue growth in 2015 was lower than 2014, primarily driven by revenue declinesin hosting products aswell as a pricing change for alarge
wholesale customer in exchange for alonger term commitment. Data integration revenues, which are typically more volatile than our other sources
of revenues, decreased by $117 million, or 17%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. The
decline in dataintegration revenues was primarily due to declinesin governmental sales and professional services, which were partially offset by an
increase in maintenance services. Data integration revenues increased by $34 million, or 5%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily due to several large sales of customer premises equipment to governmental customers and related
professional servicesin 2014. Other operating revenues increased by $229 million, or 23%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2014. Theincrease in other operating revenues was primarily due to additional revenue recorded under the CAF Phase 2
support program. Other operating revenues increased by $3 million, or less than 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2013 primarily due to higher USF surcharge revenues related to increased universal service fund contribution factors. For
additional information about the CAF Phase 2 support program, see the discussion below in "Liquidity and Capital Resources—Connect America
Fund."

We are aggressively marketing our strategic servicesin an effort to partially offset the continuing declinesin our legacy and private line
services.

Further analysis of our segment operating revenues and trends i mpacting our performance are provided below in " Segment Results."
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Operating Expenses

Our current definitions of operating expenses are as follows:

»  Cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation and amortization) are expensesincurred in providing products and servicesto
our customers. These expensesinclude: employee-related expenses directly attributable to operating and maintaining our network (such as
salaries, wages, benefits and professional fees); facilities expenses (which include third-party telecommunications expenses we incur for
using other carriers' networks to provide services to our customers); rents and utilities expenses; equipment sales expenses (such as data
integration and modem expenses); payments to universal service funds (which are federal and state funds that are established to promote
the availability of telecommunications servicesto all consumers at reasonable and affordable rates, among other things, and to which we
are often required to contribute); certain litigation expenses associated with our operations; and other expenses directly related to our

operations; and

«  Selling, general and administrative expenses are corporate overhead and other operating expenses. These expenses include: employee-
related expenses (such as salaries, wages, internal commissions, benefits and professional fees) directly attributable to selling products or
services and employee-related expenses for administrative functions; marketing and advertising; property and other operating taxes and
fees; external commissions; litigation expenses associated with general matters; bad debt expense; and other selling, general and

administrative expenses.

These expense classifications may not be comparable to those of other companies.

The following tables summarize our operating expenses.

Cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation and
amortization)

Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation and
amortization)

Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of goodwill

Total operating expenses

Y ears Ended December 31,

Increase/
2015 2014 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollarsin millions)
7,778 7,846 (68) (1)%
3,328 3,347 (19) (1)%
4,189 4,428 (239) (5)%
15,295 15,621 (326) (2)%
Years Ended December 31, Increase/
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollarsin millions)
7,846 7,507 339 5%
3,347 3,502 (155) (4)%
4,428 4,541 (113) (2)%
— 1,092 (1,092 nm
15,621 16,642 (1,021) (6)%

nm - Attributing changes in impairment of goodwill to the 2013 goodwill impairment charge are considered not meaningful.
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Cost of Servicesand Products (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)

Cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation and amortization) decreased by $68 million, or 1%, for the year ended December 31,
2015 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. Excluding the lower customer premises equipment costs, cost of services and products
increased by $56 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. The increase in costs of services
and products was primarily due to increases in pension and postretirement costs, USF rate increases, higher network expenses and increasesin
content costs for Prism TV. These increases were partially offset by decreasesin salaries and wages from lower headcount, professional fees and
contract labor costs. Cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation and amortization) increased by $339 million, or 5%, for the year ended
December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily due to increases in employee-related costs (which was significantly
impacted by the below-noted lump sum pension payments), customer premises equipment installation expenses related to the increase in data
integration revenues, facility and network costs, real estate and power costs and content costsfor Prism TV.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by $19 million, or less than 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2014. The decreasein selling, general and administrative expenses was primarily due to lower benefit expenses,
insurance costs and asset impairment charges. These decreases were partially offset by increases in bad debt expense, external commissions and
regulatory fines of $15 million associated with a 911 system outage. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by $155 million, or 4%,
for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily dueto achargein 2013 of $235 millionin
connection with alitigation settlement. The decrease was partially offset by increasesin employee-related costs (including severance costs),
insurance costs and impairment charges related to office buildings sold and currently being held for sale.

Pension Lump Sum Offer

Our pension plan contains provisions that allow us, from time to time, to offer lump sum payment optionsto certain former employeesin
settlement of their future retirement benefits. We record an accounting settlement charge associated with these lump sum payments only if, in the
aggregate, they exceed the sum of the annual service and interest costs for the plan’s net periodic pension benefit cost, which represents the
settlement threshold. In September 2015, we offered to make cash settlement payments in December 2015 to a group of former employees provided
they accepted the offer by the end of October 2015. During the fourth quarter of 2015, we made cash settlement payments for the lump sum offer of
approximately $356 million. The total amount of the lump sum settlement payments for the year ended December 31, 2015, which included the lump
sum offer and lump sum el ections from employees who terminated employment during the year, was less than the settlement threshold, therefore
settlement accounting was not triggered in 2015. We made cash settlement payments of approximately $460 million, which triggered settlement
accounting and resulted in us recording additional pension expense of $63 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. Pension expenseis
alocated to cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation and amortization) and to selling, general and administrative.

Non-recurring Operating Expenses Related to Acquisitions

We have incurred certain non-recurring operating expenses related to our acquisitions since 2009, including our acquisitions of Qwest in
April 2011 and Savvisin July 2011. These expenses are reflected in cost of services and products and selling, general and administrative expensesin
our consolidated statements of operations, as summarized below.

Y ear s Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
(Dallarsin millions)

Cost of services and products:

Integration and other expenses associated with acquisitions $ 14 15 15

Total $ 14 15 15
Selling, general and administrative:

Integration and other expenses associated with acquisitions $ 18 36 28

Severance expenses, accel erated recognition of share-based awards and retention

compensation associated with acquisitions — — 10

Total $ 18 36 38
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Based on current plans and information, we estimate, in relation to our Qwest acquisition, total integration, severance and retention expenses
to be between $600 million to $625 million (which includes approximately $594 million of cumulative expenses incurred through December 31, 2015)
and our capital expenditures associated with integration activities will approximate $170 million (which includes approximately $144 million of
cumulative capital expendituresincurred through December 31, 2015). We anticipate that the amount of our integration costsin future yearswill
vary substantially based on integration activities conducted during those periods and could in certain cases be higher than those incurred by us
during the year ended December 31, 2015.

Depreciation and Amortization

The following tables provide detail of our depreciation and amortization expense:

Y ears Ended December 31, Increase/
2015 2014 (Decrease) % Change
(Dallarsin millions)
Depreciation $ 2,836 2,958 (122) (4)%
Amortization 1,353 1,470 (117) (8)%
Total depreciation and amortization $ 4,189 4,428 (239) (5)%
Y ears Ended December 31, Increase/
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollarsin millions)
Depreciation $ 2,958 2,952 6 — %
Amortization 1,470 1,589 (119) (M%
Total depreciation and amortization $ 4,428 4,541 (113) (2%

Annual depreciation expenseisimpacted by several factors, including changes in our depreciable cost basis, changes in our estimates of the
remaining economic life of certain network assets and the addition of new plant. Depreciation expense decreased by $122 million, or 4%, for the year
ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. The depreciation expense related to our plant for the year ended
December 31, 2015 was lower than the depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 due to full depreciation and retirement of certain
plant placed in service prior to 2015. This decrease was partially offset by increases in depreciation attributable to new plant placed in service
during the year ended December 31, 2015 and the impact of changes in the estimated lives of certain property, plant and equipment which resulted
in additional depreciation during 2015. The changesin the estimated lives of certain property, plant and equipment resulted in an increasein
depreciation expense of approximately $48 million for 2015, which was more than fully offset by the decrease in depreciation expense noted above.
Depreciation expense increased by $6 million, or less than 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2013. The 2014 depreciation expense was higher than the respective prior period depreciation expense due to new plant additionsin 2014 and
changesin the estimated lives of certain property, plant and equipment, which were partially offset by our plant aging and becoming fully
depreciated or retired. During January 2014, we implemented changes in estimates that reduced the remaining economic lives of certain switch and
circuit network equipment, which resulted in increased 2014 annual depreciation expense. Additionally, we developed a plan to migrate customers
from one of our networks to another between late 2014 and late 2015. As aresult, we implemented changes in estimates that reduced the remaining
economic lives of certain network assets. The impact from the above-noted changesin estimates and network migration resulted in an increasein
depreciation expense of approximately $90 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. For more information about the changesin our estimates of
the remaining economic lives of these assets, see Note 1—Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policiesto our
consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report.

Amortization expense decreased by $117 million, or 8%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2014 and amortization expense decreased by $119 million, or 7%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2013. The decrease in amorti zation expense for both periods was primarily due to software becoming fully amortized faster than new software was
acquired or developed.
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Goodwill Impairment

During our 2013 annual goodwill impairment assessment, we concluded the carrying value of goodwill assigned to one of our previous
reporting units exceeded its estimated implied fair value by $1.092 billion. The decline in estimated fair value of this previous reporting unit was the
result of slower than previously projected revenue and margin growth and greater than anticipated competitive pressures.

For additional information on the risk associated with intangible assets, see " Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates-Goodwill, Customer
Relationships and Other Intangibles Assets' below and "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report.

Further analysis of our operating expenses by segment is provided below in " Segment Results."
Other Consolidated Results

The following tables summarize our total other expense, net and income tax expense:

Y ears Ended December 31,

Increase/
2015 2014 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollarsin millions)
Interest expense $ (1,312 (1,311) 1 — %
Other income, net 23 11 12 109 %
Total other expense, net $ (1,289 (1,300) (12) (1)%
Incometax expense $ 438 338 100 30 %
Y ears Ended December 31, Increase/
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollarsin millions)
Interest expense $ (1,3112) (1,298) 13 1%
Net gain on early retirement of debt — 10 (10 (100)%
Other income, net 1 59 (48) (81)%
Total other expense, net $ (1,300) (1,229) 71 6 %
Income tax expense $ 338 463 (125) 27)%

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased by $1 million, or lessthan 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2014. Theincrease in interest expense was primarily due to a reduction in the amortization of debt premiums, which was substantially offset by
higher capitalized interest, lower bond coupon rates and lower interest under our Credit Facility. Interest expense increased by $13 million, or 1%, for
the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. Theincrease in interest expense was primarily dueto a
reduction in the amortization of debt premiums, which was partially offset by the reversal of certain tax interest reserves and increased capitalized
interest.

Net Gain on Early Retirement of Debt
In the fourth quarter of 2013, Qwest redeemed its outstanding debt securities, which resulted in again of $10 million.
Other Income, Net

Other income, net reflects certain items not directly related to our core operations, including our share of income from partnerships we do not
control, interest income, gains and | osses from non-operating asset dispositions and foreign currency gains and losses. Other income, net increased
by $12 million, or 109%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. Thisincrease in other income, net
was primarily due to the impact of a2014 impairment charge of $14 million recorded in connection with the sale of our 700 MHz A-Block Wireless
Spectrum licenses, which was partially offset by anet loss on early retirement of debt in 2015. Other income, net decreased by $48 million, or 81%,
for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily due to the above-noted impairment charge and a
$32 million gain on the sale of wireless spectrum in 2013.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by $100 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. Our
income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 decreased by $125 million from the amounts for the comparable prior year. For the years
ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, our effective income tax rate was 33.3%, 30.5% and 206.7%, respectively. The effective tax rate for the year
ended December 31, 2015, reflects atax benefit of approximately $34 million related to affiliate debt rationalization, research and development tax
credits of $28 million for 2011 through 2015, and a $16 million tax decrease due to changesin state taxes caused by apportionment changes, state tax
rate changes and the changes in the expected utilization of net operating losses ("NOLSs"). The effective tax rate for the year ended December 31,
2014, reflects a $60 million tax benefit associated with aworthless stock deduction for the tax basisin awholly-owned foreign subsidiary as aresult
of developmentsin bankruptcy proceedings involving its sole asset, an indirect investment in KPNQwest, N.V. The subsidiary was acquired as part
of the acquisition of Qwest and we assigned it no fair value in the acquisition due to the bankruptcy proceedings, which were then ongoing. The
effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2014 also reflects a$13 million tax decrease due to changes in state taxes caused by
apportionment changes, state tax rate changes and the changes in the expected utilization of NOLs. The rate al so reflects the absence of tax benefits
from the impairment and disposition of our 700 MHz A-Block wireless spectrum licenses in 2014, because we are not likely to generate income of a
character required to realize atax benefit from the loss on disposition during the period permitted by law for utilization of that loss. The 2013
effective tax rate reflects the impacts of the $1.092 billion non-deductible goodwill impairment and of an unfavorable accounting adjustment of $17
million related to non-deductible life insurance costs. The 2013 tax expense also includes the impacts of afavorable settlement with the Internal
Revenue Service ("IRS") of $33 million and a favorable adjustment of $22 million related to the reversal of liabilitiesfor uncertain tax positions. See
Note 11—Income Taxes to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report and " Critical Accounting Policies and
Estimates—Income Taxes" below for additional information.

Segment Results

The results for our business and consumer segments are summarized below for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013:

Y ear s Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Dollarsin millions)

Total segment revenues $ 16,668 17,028 17,095
Total segment expenses 8,459 8,509 8,167
Total segment income $ 8,209 8,519 8,928
Total margin percentage 49% 50% 52%
Business segment:

Revenues $ 10,647 11,034 11,091

Expenses 6,034 6,089 5,808

Income $ 4,613 4,945 5,283

Margin percentage 43% 45% 48%
Consumer segment:

Revenues $ 6,021 5,994 6,004

Expenses 2,425 2,420 2,359

Income $ 3,596 3,574 3,645

Margin percentage 60% 60% 61%
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The following table reconciles our total segment revenues and total segment income presented above to consolidated operating revenues and
consolidated operating income reported in our consolidated statements of operations.

Y ear s Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Dollarsin millions)
Total segment revenues $ 16,668 17,028 17,095
Other operating revenues 1,232 1,003 1,000
Operating revenues reported in our consolidated statements of operations $ 17,900 18,031 18,095
Total segment income $ 8,209 8,519 8,928
Other operating revenues 1,232 1,003 1,000
Depreciation and amortization (4,189) (4,428) (4,541)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 2) — — (1,092)
Other unassigned operating expenses (2,647) (2,684) (2,842
Operating income reported in our consolidated statement of operations $ 2,605 2410 1,453

Allocation of Revenues and Expenses

Our segment revenues include all revenues from our strategic services, legacy services and dataintegration as described in more detail above.
Segment revenues are based upon each customer's classification to an individual segment. We report our segment revenues based upon all
services provided to that segment's customers. For information on how we allocate expenses to our segments, aswell as other additional
information about our segments, see Note 12—Segment |nformation to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual
Report.

Business Segment
The operations of our business segment have been impacted by several significant trends, including those described bel ow:

e Strategic services. Our mix of total business segment revenues continues to migrate from legacy services to strategic services as our small,
medium and enterprise business, wholesale and governmental customersincreasingly demand integrated data, I nternet, hosting and voice
services. During 2015, our strategic revenues were negatively impacted by several factors, including competitive pressures, customer
losses, migration from traditional hosting servicesto lower priced cloud-based services and transitioning to our new management structure
negatively impacted the growth of our strategic revenues. Demand for our private line services (including special access) continuesto
decline due to our customers' optimization of their networks, industry consolidation and technological migration to higher-speed services.
Additionally, we face competition in Ethernet based servicesin the wholesale market from cable companies and fiber based CLEC
providers. We anticipate continued pricing pressure for our colocation services as vendors continue to expand their enterprise colocation
operations. In recent years, our competitors, aswell as several large, diversified technology companies, have made substantial investments
in cloud computing, which has intensified competitive pressures. This expansion in competitive cloud computing offerings has led to
increased pricing pressure and competition for enterprise customers, and we expect these trends to continue. The demand for new
technology has also increased the number of competitors offering strategic services similar to ours. Price compression from each of these
above-mentioned competitive pressures has negatively impacted the operating margins of our strategic services and we expect this trend
to continue. Operating costs al so impact the operating margins of our strategic services, but to alesser extent than price compression and
customer disconnects. These operating costs include sal es commissions, modem costs, software costs on selected services, installation
costs and third-party facility costs. We believe increases in operating costs have generally had a greater impact on the operating margins
of our strategic services as compared to our legacy services, principally because our strategic services rely more heavily upon the above-
listed costs;
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Legacy services. We continue to experience customers migrating away from our higher margin legacy servicesinto lower margin strategic
services. Our legacy services revenues have been, and we expect they will continue to be, adversely affected by access line losses and
price compression. |n particular, our access, local services and long-distance revenues have been, and we expect will continue to be,
adversely affected by customer migration to more technologically advanced services, declining demand for traditional voice services,
industry consolidation and price compression caused by regulation and rate reductions. For example, many of our business segment
customers are substituting cable, wireless and Vol P services for traditional voice telecommunications services, resulting in continued
access revenue loss. Beginning in 2016, we expect that arecent FCC order will also reduce our revenue that we collect for local voice and
long-distance services provided to correctional facilities. Although our legacy services generally face fewer direct competitors than certain
of our strategic services, customer migration and, to alesser degree, price compression from competitive pressures have negatively
impacted our legacy revenues and the operating margins of our legacy services. We expect this trend to continue. Operating costs, such
asinstallation costs and third-party facility costs, have also negatively impacted the operating margins of our legacy services, but to a
lesser extent than customer migration and price compression. Operating costs a so tend to impact our strategic servicesto agreater extent
than legacy services as noted above;

Data integration. We expect both dataintegration revenue and the related costs will fluctuate from year to year as this offering tendsto
be more sensitive than others to changes in the economy and in spending trends of our federal, state and local governmental customers,
many of whom have recently experienced substantial budget cuts with the possibility of additional future budget cuts. Our dataintegration
operating margins are typically smaller than most of our other offerings; and

Operating efficiencies. We continue to eval uate our segment operating structure and focus. Thisinvolves balancing our workforce in
response to our workload requirements, productivity improvements and changes in industry, competitive, technological and regulatory
conditions, while achieving operational efficiencies and improving our processes through automation. However, our ongoing effortsto
increase revenue will continue to require that we incur higher costsin some areas. We also expect our business segment to benefit
indirectly from enhanced efficiencies in our company-wide network operations.

The following tables summarize the results of operations from our business segment:

Business Segment
YearsEnded December 31, Increase/
2015 2014 (Decrease) % Change

(Dallarsin millions)

Segment revenues:
Strategic services

High-bandwidth data services (1) 2,816 2,579 237 9%
Low-bandwidth data services (2) 2,052 2,345 (293) (12)%
Hosting services (3) 1,281 1,316 (35) (3)%
Other strategic services (4) 162 76 86 113 %
Total strategic services revenues 6,311 6,316 (5) — %
Legacy services
Voice services (5) 2,590 2,780 (190) (M%
Other legacy services (6) 1,175 1,252 (77) (6)%
Total legacy services revenues 3,765 4,032 (267) (M%
Dataintegration 571 686 (115) (17)%
Total revenues 10,647 11,034 (387) (4%
Segment expenses:
Total expenses 6,034 6,089 (55) ()%
Segment income 4,613 4,945 (332 (D%
Segment margin percentage 43% 45%
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Business Segment
Years Ended December 31, Increase/
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollarsin millions)

Segment revenues:
Strategic services

High-bandwidth data services (1) 2,579 2,230 349 16 %
Low-bandwidth data services (2) 2,345 2,577 (232) (9%
Hosting services (3) 1,316 1,259 57 5%
Other strategic services (4) 76 60 16 27 %
Total strategic servicesrevenues 6,316 6,126 190 3%
Legacy services
Voice services (5) 2,780 2,916 (136) (5%
Other legacy services (6) 1,252 1,398 (146) (10)%
Total legacy services revenues 4,032 4,314 (282) (M%
Dataintegration 686 651 35 5%
Total revenues 11,034 11,091 (57) ()%
Segment expenses:
Total expenses 6,089 5,808 281 5%
Segment income 4,945 5283 (338) (6)%
Segment margin percentage 45% 48%

(1) Includes MPLS and Ethernet revenue

(2) Includes private line and high-speed Internet revenue

(3) Includes colocation, hosting (including cloud hosting and managed hosting) and hosting area network revenue
(4) Includes primarily VolP, video and IT services revenue

(5) Includes loca and long-distance voice revenue

(6) Includes UNEs, public access and other ancillary revenue

Segment Revenues

Business segment revenues decreased by $387 million, or 4%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. The decrease in business segment revenues was primarily due to declinesin legacy services revenues, private line (including
special access) revenuesin our strategic services and dataintegration revenues. The decline in legacy services revenues was attributableto a
reduction in local service access lines and lower volumes of long-distance, access and traditional WAN services for the reasons noted above. The
declinein our strategic services revenues was primarily due to areduction in hosting services and private line (including special access) volumes,
aswell asapricing change on private line services for alarge whol esale customer in exchange for alonger term commitment. These declines were
partially offset by MPLS unit growth and higher Ethernet volumes. The decrease in data integration revenues was primarily due to lower sales of
customer premises equipment to governmental and business customers during the period. Business segment revenues decreased by $57 million, or
1%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in business segment revenues was
primarily due to the decline in legacy services revenues, which were partially offset by the growth in our strategic services and data integration
revenues. The decline in legacy services revenues was attributabl e to lower volumes of local access and traditional WAN services. The growthin
our strategic services revenues was primarily dueto MPLS unit growth and higher Ethernet volume, which were substantially offset by adeclinein
private line (including special access) services. Theincreasein dataintegration revenues was primarily due to higher sales of customer premises
equipment to governmental customers during the period.
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Segment Expenses

Business segment expenses decreased by $55 million, or 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. The decrease was due primarily to reductionsin customer premises equipment costs resulting from the lower sales noted above
in segment revenues. Excluding the lower customer premises equipment costs, business expenses increased by $59 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. Theincreaseis primarily due to increasesin salaries and wages, benefits
expense, external commissions, network expense and facility costs, which were partially offset by decreasesin professional fees, materials and
supplies and fleet expenses. Business segment expenses increased by $281 million, or 5%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2013. The increase was primarily due to increases in employee-related costs attributable to higher wages, benefits and
internal commissions, customer premises equipment costs resulting from higher sales noted above, facility costs driven by MPL S unit growth and
real estate and power costs.

Segment Income

Business segment income decreased by $332 million, or 7%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. The decrease in business segment income was due to the loss of customers and lower service volumesin our legacy services
and to the increase in operating expenses, excluding the impact of the reduction in customer premises equipment costs. Business segment income
decreased by $338 million, or 6%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease was
primarily due to customers migrating from legacy servicesto lower margin strategic services.

Consumer Segment
The operations of our consumer segment have been impacted by several significant trends, including those described below:

e Strategic services. In order to remain competitive and attract additional residential high-speed Internet subscribers, we believeit is
important to continually increase our broadband network's scope and connection speeds. As aresult, we continue to invest in our
broadband network, which allows for the delivery of higher-speed broadband services to agreater number of customers. We competein a
maturing broadband market in which most consumers already have broadband services and growth ratesin new subscribers have slowed.
Moreover, as described further in Item 1A of Part |1 of this Annual Report, certain of our competitors continue to provide high-speed
Internet services at higher average transmission speeds than ours or through advanced wireless data service offerings, both of which we
believe have impacted the competitiveness of certain of our high-speed Internet offerings. We also continue to expand our other strategic
product offerings, including facilities-based video services. The expansion of our facilities-based video service infrastructure requires us
to incur substantial start-up expenses in advance of marketing and selling the service. Also, our associated content costs continue to
increase and the video business has become more competitive as more options become available to customers to access video services
through new technol ogies. The demand for new technology has increased the number of competitors offering strategic services similar to
ours. Price compression and new technology from our competitors have negatively impacted the operating margins of our strategic
services and we expect thistrend to continue. Operating costs also impact the operating margins of our strategic services, but to alesser
extent than price compression and customer disconnects caused by competition. These operating costs include sales commissions,
modem costs, Prism TV content costs, software costs on sel ected services and installation costs. We believe increases in operating costs
have generally had a greater impact on our operating margins of our strategic services as compared to our legacy services, principally
because our strategic services rely more heavily upon the above-listed costs;

»  Legacy services. Our voice revenues have been, and we expect they will continue to be, adversely affected by access line losses. Intense
competition and product substitution continue to drive our access line losses. For example, many consumers are substituting cable and
wireless voice services and electronic mail, texting and social networking non-voice services for traditional voice telecommunications
services. We expect that these factors will continue to negatively impact our business. As aresult of the expected loss of higher margin
services associated with access lines, we continue to offer our customers service bundling and other product promotions to help mitigate
thistrend, as described bel ow. Customer migration and price compression from competitive pressures have not only negatively impacted
our legacy revenues, but they have also negatively impacted the operating margins of our legacy services and we expect thistrend to
continue. Operating costs, such as installation costs and third-party facility costs, have also negatively impacted the operating margins of
our legacy services, but to alesser extent than customer migration and price compression. The operating costs al so tend to impact our
strategic servicesto agreater extent than legacy services as noted above;
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*  Service bundling and product promotions. We offer our customers the ability to bundle multiple products and services. These customers
can bundlelocal serviceswith other services such as high-speed Internet, video, long-distance and wireless. While we believe our
bundled service offerings can help retain customers, they also tend to lower our profit marginsin the consumer segment; and

+  Operating efficiencies. We continue to evaluate our segment operating structure and focus. This involves balancing our workforcein
response to our workload requirements, productivity improvements and changes in industry, competitive, technological and regulatory
conditions. We also expect our consumer segment to benefit indirectly from enhanced efficiencies in our company-wide network
operations.

The following tables summarize the results of operations from our consumer segment:

Consumer Segment

Y ears Ended December 31, Increase/
2015 2014 (Decrease) % Change

(Dollarsin millions)
Segment revenues:
Strategic services

High-speed Internet services (1) $ 2,611 2,469 142 6 %
Other strategic services (2) 421 381 40 10%
Total strategic services revenues 3,032 2,850 182 6%
Legacy services
Voice services (3) 2,676 2,864 (188) (7%
Other legacy services (4) 311 276 35 13 %
Total legacy services revenues 2,987 3,140 (153) (5)%
Dataintegration 2 4 2 (50)%
Total revenues 6,021 5,994 27 — %
Segment expenses:
Total expenses 2,425 2,420 5 — %
Segment income $ 3,596 3,574 22 1%
Segment income margin percentage 60% 60%
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Consumer Segment
Years Ended December 31, Increase/
2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollarsin millions)

Segment revenues:
Strategic services

High-speed I nternet services (1) $ 2,469 2,358 111 5%
Other strategic services (2) 381 292 89 30%
Total strategic services revenues 2,850 2,650 200 8%
Legacy services
Voice services (3) 2,864 3,101 (237) (8)%
Other legacy services (4) 276 248 28 11%
Total legacy services revenues 3,140 3,349 (209) (6)%
Dataintegration 4 5 1) (20)%
Total revenues 5,994 6,004 (10) — %
Segment expenses:
Total expenses 2,420 2,359 61 3%
Segment income $ 3,574 3,645 (71) (2%
Segment income margin percentage 60% 61%

(1) Includes high-speed Internet and related services revenue
(2) Includes video and Verizon wireless revenue

(3) Includes local and long-distance voice revenue

(4) Includes switched access and other ancillary revenue

Segment Revenues

Consumer segment revenues increased by $27 million, or less than 1%, for year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. The increase in strategic services revenues was primarily due to increasesin the number of Prism TV customers, aswell asfrom
2015 priceincreases on various services. The declinein legacy services revenues was primarily due to declinesin local and long-distance services
volumes associated with access line losses resulting from the competitive and technol ogical changes as further described above. Consumer
segment revenues decreased by $10 million, or less than 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2013. The declinein legacy services revenues was due to the same reasons noted above. Theincrease in strategic services revenues was primarily
due to growth in the number of high-speed Internet subscribers and increases in the number of Prism TV customers, aswell asfrom 2014 price
increases on various services. The increase in consumer segment revenues during 2015 as compared to the decline in revenues for 2014 was
primarily attributable to the above-noted price increases.

Segment Expenses

Consumer segment expenses increased by $5 million, or less than 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. Thisincrease was primarily dueto increasesin Prism TV content costs (resulting from higher volume and rates) and bad debt
expense, which were partially offset by reductions in employee-related costs, marketing and advertising expenses and fleet expenses. Consumer
segment expenses increased by $61 million, or 3%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. This
increase was primarily due to increasesin marketing and advertising expenses, Prism TV content costs resulting from subscriber growth in our Prism
TV markets and the number of modems shipped for Prism TV customers, which were partially offset by reductionsin employee-related costs and
facility costs.
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Segment Income

Consumer segment income increased by $22 million, or 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2014. Thisincrease was primarily due to price increases on various services and reduction of costs. Consumer segment income decreased by $71
million, or 2%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013. This decrease was primarily dueto
customers migrating from legacy servicesto lower margin strategic services, and the increase in Prism TV content costs.

Critical Accounting Poalicies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles that are generally accepted in the United States.
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of our assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. We have identified certain policies and estimates as critical to our business operations
and the understanding of our past or present results of operationsrelated to (i) goodwill, customer relationships and other intangible assets;
(ii) property, plant and equipment; (iii) pension and post-retirement benefits; (iv) loss contingencies and litigation reserves; (v) Connect America
Fund support payments; and (vi) income taxes. These policies and estimates are considered critical because they had a material impact, or they have
the potential to have a material impact, on our consolidated financial statements and because they require us to make significant judgments,
assumptions or estimates. We believe that the estimates, judgments and assumptions made when accounting for the items described below were
reasonable, based on information avail able at the time they were made. However, there can be no assurance that actual resultswill not differ from
those estimates.

Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other I ntangible Assets

We amortize customer relationships primarily over an estimated life of 10 to 15 years, using either the sum-of-the-years-digits or the straight-
line methods, depending on the type of customer. We amortize capitalized software using the straight-line method over estimated lives ranging up
to 7 years, except for approximately $237 million of our capitalized software costs, which represents costs to develop an integrated billing and
customer care system which is amortized using the straight-line method over a 20 year period. We annually review the estimated lives and methods
used to amortize our other intangible assets, primarily capitalized software. The amount of future amortization expense may differ materially from
current amounts, depending on the results of our annual reviews.

Our goodwill was derived from numerous acquisitions where the purchase price exceeded the fair value of the net assets acquired.

We are required to reassign goodwill to reporting units each time we reorganize our internal reporting structure which causes achange in the
composition of our reporting units. We assign goodwill to the reporting units using arelative fair value approach. We utilize the trailing twelve
months earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization as our allocation methodology as we believe that it represents areasonable
proxy for the fair value of the operations being reorganized. The use of other fair value assignment methods could result in materially different
results. For additional information on our segments, see Note 12—Segment Information to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part |1
of this Annual Report.

We are required to assess goodwill for impairment at least annually, or more frequently, if an event occurs or circumstances change that would
indicate an impairment may have occurred. We are required to write-down the value of goodwill in periods in which the recorded amount of goodwill
exceeds theimplied fair value of goodwill. Our reporting units are not discrete legal entities with discrete financial statements. Our assets and
liabilities are employed in and relate to the operations of our reporting units. Therefore, the equity carrying value and future cash flows must be
estimated each time a goodwill impairment analysisis performed on areporting unit. Asaresult, our assets, liabilities and cash flows are assigned to
reporting units using reasonabl e and consistent all ocation methodol ogies. Certain estimates, judgments and assumptions are required to perform
these assignments. We believe these estimates, judgments and assumptions to be reasonable, but changes in many of these can significantly affect
each reporting unit's equity carrying value and future cash flows utilized for our goodwill impairment test. Our annual assessment date for testing
goodwill impairment is October 31.

Asof Octaober 31, 2015, we assessed goodwill for impairment for our three reporting units, which we determined to be business (excluding
wholesale), consumer and wholesale and determined that the estimated fair value of our wholesale reporting unit was substantially in excess of our
carrying value of equity and the estimated fair value of our business and consumer reporting units exceeded our carrying value of equity by 23%
and 8%, respectively.

For additional information on our goodwill balances by segment, see Note 2—Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other Intangible Assets
in Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report.
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We may be required to assess our goodwill for impairment before our next required assessment date of October 31, 2016 under certain
circumstances, including any failure to meet our forecasted future operating results or any significant increasesin our weighted average cost of
capital. In addition, we cannot assure that adverse conditions will not trigger future goodwill impairment assessments or impairment charges. A
number of factors, many of which we cannot control, could affect our financial condition, operating results and business prospects and could cause
our actual resultsto differ from the estimates and assumptions we employed in our goodwill impairment assessment. These factorsinclude, but are
not limited to, (i) further weakening in the overall economy; (ii) asignificant declinein our stock price and resulting market capitalization as aresult
of an adverse change to our overall business operations; (iii) changesin the discount rate we use in our testing; (iv) successful efforts by our
competitorsto gain market share in our markets; (v) adverse changes as aresult of regulatory or legislative actions; (vi) asignificant adverse
changein our legal affairsor in the overall business climate; and (vii) recognition of agoodwill impairment lossin the financial statements of one or
more of our subsidiariesthat are a component of our segments. We will continue to monitor certain events that impact our operations to determine if
an interim assessment of goodwill impairment should be performed prior to the next required assessment date of October 31, 2016.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired in connection with our acquisitions was recorded based on its estimated fair value as of its
acquisition date, plus the estimated value of any associated legally or contractually required asset retirement obligation. Purchased and constructed
property, plant and equipment isrecorded at cost, plus the estimated value of any associated legally or contractually required asset retirement
obligation. Renewals and betterments of plant and equipment are capitalized while repairs, as well as renewals of minor items, are charged to
operating expense. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method using class or overall group rates. The
group method provides for the recognition of the remaining net investment, |ess anticipated net salvage value, over the remaining useful life of the
assets. This method requires the periodic revision of depreciation rates.

Normal retirements of property, plant and equipment are charged against accumulated depreciation, with no gain or loss recognized. We
depreciate such property on the straight-line method over estimated service lives ranging from 3 to 45 years.

We perform annual internal reviewsto evaluate the reasonableness of the depreciable livesfor our property, plant and equipment. Our
reviews utilize models that take into account actual usage, physical wear and tear, replacement history, assumptions about technology evolution
and, in certain instances, actuarially determined probabilities to estimate the remaining life of our asset base.

Dueto rapid changes in technology and the competitive environment, determining the estimated economic life of telecommunications plant,
equipment and software requires a significant amount of judgment. We regularly review data on utilization of equipment, asset retirements and
salvage values to determine adjustments to our depreciation rates. The effect of ahypothetical one year increase or decrease in the estimated
remaining useful lives of our property, plant and equipment would have decreased depreciation expense by approximately $410 million annually or
increased depreciation expense by approximately $580 million annually, respectively.

Pension and Post-retirement Benefits

We sponsor anoncontributory qualified defined benefit pension plan (referred to as our pension plan) for a substantial portion of our
employees. In addition to thistax qualified pension plan, we also maintain several non-qualified pension plansfor certain eligible highly
compensated employees. We a so maintain post-retirement benefit plans that provide health care and life insurance benefits for certain eligible
retirees.

In 2015, approximately 45% of the qualified pension plan's January 1, 2015 net actuarial loss balance of $2.740 billion was subject to
amortization as acomponent of net periodic expense over the average remaining service period of participating employees expected to receive
benefits, which ranges from 8 to 9 years for the plan. The other 55% of the qualified pension plan's beginning net actuarial loss balance was treated
asindefinitely deferred during 2015. The entire beginning net actuarial loss of $277 million for the post-retirement benefit plans was treated as
indefinitely deferred during 2015.

In 2014, approximately 16% of the qualified pension plans' January 1, 2014 net actuarial loss balance of $1.048 hillion was subject to
amortization as acomponent of net periodic expense over the average remaining service period of participating employees expected to receive
benefits, which ranges from 8 to 9 yearsfor the plans. The other 84% of the pension plan's beginning net actuarial loss balance was treated as
indefinitely deferred during 2014. The entire beginning net actuarial 1oss of $37 million for the post-retirement benefit plans was treated as
indefinitely deferred during 2014.
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In 2013, approximately 33% of the qualified pension plans' January 1, 2013 net actuarial loss balance of $2.221 hillion was subject to
amortization as acomponent of net periodic expense over the average remaining service period of participating employees expected to receive
benefits, which ranges from 8 to 12 years for the plans. The other 67% of the pension plans' beginning net actuarial loss balance was treated as
indefinitely deferred during 2013. The entire beginning net actuarial 1oss of $446 million for the post-retirement benefit plans was treated as
indefinitely deferred during 2013.

In computing our pension and post-retirement health care and life insurance benefit obligations, our most significant assumptions are the
discount rate and mortality rates. In computing our periodic pension and post-retirement benefit expense, our most significant assumptions are the
discount rate and the expected rate of return on plan assets.

The discount rate for each plan is the rate at which we believe we could effectively settle the plan's benefit obligations as of the end of the
year. We selected each plan's discount rate based on a cash flow matching analysis using hypothetical yield curves from U.S. corporate bonds
rated high quality and projections of the future benefit payments that constitute the projected benefit obligation for the plans. This process
establishes the uniform discount rate that produces the same present value of the estimated future benefit payments asis generated by discounting
each year's benefit payments by a spot rate applicable to that year. The spot rates used in this process are derived from ayield curve created from
yields on the 60th to 90th percentile of U.S. high quality bonds.

In 2016, we plan to change the method we use to estimate the service and interest components of net periodic benefit cost for pension and
other postretirement benefits. This change will result in a decrease in the service and interest componentsin 2016. Beginning in 2016, we plan to
utilize afull yield curve approach in the estimation of these components by applying the specific spot rates along the yield curve used in the
determination of the benefit obligation to the relevant projected cash flows, as opposed to the single weighted-average discount rate derived from
theyield curve that we have used in the past. We believe this change provides a more precise measurement of service and interest costs by
improving the correlation between projected benefit cash flows to the corresponding spot yield curve rates. This change will not affect the
measurement of our total benefit obligations but is currently expected to lower our annual net periodic benefit cost by approximately $150 millionin
2016. If implemented as expected, this change will be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate and accordingly will be accounted for
prospectively.

Mortality rates help predict the expected life of plan participants and are based on historical demographic studies by the Society of Actuaries.
In 2015, we adopted the revised mortality table and projection scale released by the Society of Actuaries ("SOA"), which decreased the projected
benefit obligation of our benefit plans by $379 million. In 2014, the SOA published new mortality rate tables reflecting increases in the projected life
expectancies of North Americans since its publications of earlier tables. We adopted the new tables immediately. This resulted in anincrease to the
projected benefit obligation of approximately $1.3 billion for our pension and post-retirement benefit plans.

The expected rate of return on plan assets isthe long-term rate of return we expect to earn on the plans' assetsin the future, net of
administrative expenses paid from plan assets. The rate of return is determined by the strategic allocation of plan assets and the long-term risk and
return forecast for each asset class. The forecasts for each asset class are generated primarily from an analysis of the long-term expectations of
various third party investment management organizations to which we then add a factor of 50 basis points to reflect the benefit we expect to result
from our active management of the assets. The expected rate of return on plan assetsis reviewed annually and revised, as necessary, to reflect
changesin the financial markets and our investment strategy.

To compute the expected return on pension and post-retirement benefit plan assets, we apply an expected rate of return to the fair value of the
pension plan assets and to the fair value of the post-retirement benefit plan assets adjusted for contribution timing and for projected benefit
payments to be made from the plan assets. Annual market volatility for these assets (higher or lower than expected return) isreflected in the net
actuarial losses.

Changes in any of the above factors could significantly impact operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and other
comprehensive income (l0ss) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) as well as the value of the liability and accumulated
other comprehensive loss of stockholders' equity on our consolidated bal ance sheets. The expected return on plan assets is reflected as areduction
to our pension and post-retirement benefit expense. If our assumed expected rates of return for 2015 were 100 basis points lower, our qualified
pension and post-retirement benefit expenses for 2015 would have increased by $121 million. If our assumed discount rates for 2015 were 100 basis
points lower, our qualified pension and post-retirement benefit expenses for 2015 would have increased by $119 million and our projected benefit
obligation for 2015 would have increased by approximately $1.821 hillion.

59



Loss Contingencies and Litigation Reserves

Weareinvolved in several material legal proceedings, as described in more detail in Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies to our
consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part 11 of this Annual Report. We assess potential |osses in relation to these and other pending or
threatened tax and legal matters. For matters not related to income taxes, if alossis considered probable and the amount can be reasonably
estimated, we recognize an expense for the estimated loss. To the extent these estimates are more or less than the actual liability resulting from the
resolution of these matters, our earningswill beincreased or decreased accordingly. If the differences are material, our consolidated financial
statements could be materially impacted.

For matters related to income taxes, if we determinein our judgment that the impact of an uncertain tax position is more likely than not to be
sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing authority, then we recognize in our financial statements abenefit for the largest amount that is more
likely than not to be sustained. No portion of an uncertain tax position will be recognized if we determinein our judgment that the position has less
than a50% likelihood of being sustained. Though the validity of any tax position is amatter of tax law, the body of statutory, regulatory and
interpretive guidance on the application of the law is complex and often ambiguous. Because of this, whether atax position will ultimately be
sustained may be uncertain.

Connect America Fund Support Payments

In 2015, we accepted funding from the Connect America Fund ("CAF)" from the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") of
approximately $500 million per year for six yearsto fund the deployment of voice and high-speed Internet infrastructure for approximately 1.2 million
rural households and businesses (living units) in 33 states under the CAF Phase 2 high-cost support program. This program provides a monthly
high-cost subsidy similar to the support provided by the FCC’s previous cost reimbursement programs. Although we believe that thereisno
specific authoritative U.S. GAAP guidance for the treatment of government assistance, we identified three acceptable methods to account for these
funds; 1) recognize revenue when entitled to receive cash, 2) defer cash received until the living units are enabled to receive the service at the FCC
specified level, or 3) record the cash received as contra capital . After assessing these alternatives, we have determined that we will recognize CAF
Phase 2 funds each month as revenue when we are entitled to receive the cash less a deferred amount. The amount of revenue deferred in 2015 was
approximately $12 million. We believe our recognition methodology is consistent with other companiesin our industry in the United States, but may
not necessarily be consistent with companies outside the United States that receive similar government funding, and we cannot provide assurances
to this effect.

In computing the amount of revenue to recognize, we assume that we will not be able to economically enable 100% of the required living units
in every state with voice and high-speed Internet capabilities under the CAF Phase 2 program. We defer recognition of the fundsrelated to
potential living units that we estimate we will not enable until we can precisely determine that we can fully meet the enablement targets. As
disclosed elsewhere herein, in some limited instances, a portion of the funds must be returned. The effect of a hypothetical 1% changein our
estimate of living units we will not enable with voice and high-speed I nternet capabilities under the CAF Phase 2 program would have increased or
decreased our revenue up to $3 million or $9 million, respectively, in 2015.

For additional information about the CAF Phase 2 support program, see the discussion below in"Liquidity and Capital Resources—Connect
AmericaFund."

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes includes amounts for tax consequences deferred to future periods. We record deferred income tax assets and
liabilities reflecting future tax consequences attributabl e to tax credit carryforwards, differences between the financial statement carrying value of
assets and liabilities and the tax bases of those assets and liabilities and tax net operating losses, or NOLs. Deferred taxes are computed using
enacted tax rates expected to apply in the year in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. The effect on deferred income tax
assets and liabilities of achangein tax rate isrecognized in earningsin the period that includes the enactment date.

The measurement of deferred taxes often involves the exercise of considerable judgment related to the realization of tax basis. Our deferred tax
assets and liabilities reflect our assessment that tax positions taken in filed tax returns and the resulting tax basis, are more likely than not to be
sustained if they are audited by taxing authorities. Assessing tax rates that we expect to apply and determining the years when the temporary
differences are expected to affect taxable income requires judgment about the future apportionment of our income among the states in which we
operate. Any changesin our practices or judgmentsinvolved in the measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities could materially impact our
financial condition or results of operations.
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In connection with recording deferred income tax assets and liabilities, we establish valuation allowances when necessary to reduce deferred
income tax assets to amounts that we believe are more likely than not to be realized. We evaluate our deferred tax assets quarterly to determine
whether adjustments to our valuation allowance are appropriate in light of changesin facts or circumstances, such as changesin tax law,
interactions with taxing authorities and developmentsin case law. In making this evaluation, we rely on our recent history of pre-tax earnings. We
also rely on our forecasts of future earnings and the nature and timing of future deductions and benefits represented by the deferred tax assets, al
which involve the exercise of significant judgment. At December 31, 2015, we established a valuation allowance of $380 million, primarily related to
state NOLs, asit ismore likely than not that these NOL swill expire unused. If forecasts of future earnings and the nature and estimated timing of
future deductions and benefits change in the future, we may determine that a valuation allowance for certain deferred tax assets is appropriate,
which could materially impact our financial condition or results of operations. See Note 11—Income Taxes to our consolidated financial statements
in Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report for additional information.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

At December 31, 2015, we held cash and cash equivalents of $126 million and we had approximately $1.7 billion of borrowing capacity
available under our $2.0 billion amended and restated revolving credit facility (referred to as our "Credit Facility”, which is described further below).
At December 31, 2015, cash and cash equivalents of $62 million were held in foreign bank accounts for the purpose of funding our foreign
operations. Due to various factors, our access to foreign cash is generally much more restricted than our access to domestic cash.

In connection with our budgeting processin early 2016, our executive officers and our Board of Directors reviewed our sources and potential
uses of cash over the next several years, including among other things the previously-disclosed effect of the anticipated depletion of our federal net
operating loss carryforwards during 2016. Generally speaking, our principal funding sourceis cash from operating activities and our principal cash
reguirements include operating expenses, capital expenditures, income taxes, debt repayments, dividends, periodic stock repurchases and periodic
pension contributions.

Based on our current capital allocation objectives, during 2016 we anticipate expending approximately $3.0 hillion of cash for capital
investment in property, plant and equipment and up to $1.2 hillion for dividends on our common stock, based on the current annual common stock
dividend rate of $2.16 and the current number of outstanding common shares. During 2016, we have debt maturities of approximately $1.4 billion,
scheduled debt principal payments of approximately $22 million and capital lease and other fixed payments of approximately $62 million.

We will continue to monitor our future sources and uses of cash, and anticipate that we will make adjustments to our capital allocation
strategies when, as and if determined by our Board of Directors. We typically use our revolving credit facility as a source of liquidity for operating
activities and our other cash requirements.

Connect America Fund

In 2015, we accepted CAF funding from the FCC of approximately $500 million per year for six yearsto fund the deployment of voice and high-
speed Internet infrastructure for approximately 1.2 million rural households and businessesin 33 states under the CAF Phase 2 support program.
The funding from the CAF Phase 2 support program is expected to substantially supplant the funding we previously received from the interstate
USF program that we previously utilized to support voice servicesin high-cost rural marketsin these 33 states. In September of 2015, we began
receiving these payments from the FCC under the new CAF Phase 2 support program, which included (i) monthly support payments at a higher rate
than under the interstate USF support program and (ii) a one-time cumulative catch-up payment representing the incrementally higher funding
under the CAF Phase 2 support program over the interstate USF Support program for the first seven months of 2015. During 2015, we received $209
million more cash than we would have otherwise received during the same period under the interstate USF support program.

We declined annual funding of approximately $10 million in four states, and we expect the funding from the CAF Phase 2 support program for
these four states will be auctioned by the FCC, perhaps in the | atter part of 2016. In these four states, the interstate USF support we have
historically received is expected to continue until the CAF Phase 2 auctions are completed.

As aresult of accepting CAF Phase 2 support payments for 33 states, we will be obligated to make substantial capital expendituresto build
infrastructure. See " Capital Expenditures’ below.

For additional information on the FCC's CAF order and the USF program, see "Business—Regulation” in Item 1 of Part | of this Annual
Report. See "Risk Factors—Risks Affecting our Liquidity and Capital Resources" in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report.
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In 2013, under the second round of thefirst phase of the CAF program, we received $40 millionin funding for deployment of broadband
servicesin rural areas. The CAF Phase 2 support program overlaps certain eligible areas of the second round of CAF 1 funding, and we are
continuing to evaluate how much of the $40 million in funding we will utilize or return to the FCC. As of the date of this Annual Report, we are past
one of the benchmark deadlines for completing a portion of the broadband deployment. Due to the delays we encountered in eval uating the eligible
areas, we have regquested relief and an extension of the deadline with the FCC. If the FCC does not grant us relief, we will be requested to refund a
substantial portion of the $40 million in funding we received. This $40 million of CAF 1 Round 2 funding isincluded in other noncurrent liabilities on
our consolidated bal ance sheet as of December 31, 2015.

Capital Expenditures

We incur capital expenditures on an ongoing basis in order to enhance and modernize our networks, compete effectively in our markets and
expand our service offerings. We evaluate capital expenditure projects based on avariety of factors, including expected strategic impacts (such as
forecasted impact on revenue growth, productivity, expenses, service levels and customer retention) and our expected return on investment. The
amount of capital investment isinfluenced by, among other things, demand for our services and products, cash flow generated by operating
activities, cash required for other purposes and regulatory considerations (such asthe CAF Phase 2 infrastructure buildout requirements). Based on
current circumstances, we estimate that our total capital expenditures for 2016 will be approximately $3.0 billion, inclusive of CAF Phase 2 related
capital expenditures.

Our capital expenditures continue to be focused on our strategic services. For more information on capital spending, see ltems 1 and 1A of
Part | of this Annual Report.

Debt and Other Financing Arrangements

Subject to market conditions, we expect to continue to issue debt securities from time to time in the future to refinance a substantial portion of
our maturing debt, including issuing Qwest Corporation debt securities to refinance its maturing debt to the extent feasible. The availability, interest
rate and other terms of any new borrowings will depend on the ratings assigned to us and Qwest Corporation by credit rating agencies, among
other factors. For further information on our debt maturities, see below "Future Contractual Obligations."

As of the date of this Annual Report, the credit ratings for the senior unsecured debt of CenturyLink, Inc. and Qwest Corporation were as
follows:

Agency CenturyLink, Inc. Qwest Corporation
Standard & Poor's BB BBB-
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Ba2 Baa3
Fitch Ratings BB+ BBB-

Our credit ratings are reviewed and adjusted from time to time by the rating agencies, and downgrades of CenturyLink, Inc.'s senior unsecured
debt ratings could, under certain circumstances, incrementally increase the cost of our borrowing under the Credit Facility. Moreover, any
downgrades of CenturyLink, Inc.'sor Qwest Corporation's senior unsecured debt ratings could impact our access to debt capital or further raise our
borrowing costs. See "Risk Factors—Risks Affecting our Liquidity and Capital Resources" in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report.

In January 2016, Qwest Corporation issued $235 million aggregate principal amount of 7% Notes due 2056, in exchange for net proceeds, after
deducting underwriting discounts and other expenses, of approximately $227 million. All of the 7% Notes are unsecured obligations and may be
redeemed by Qwest Corporation, in whole or in part, on or after February 1, 2021, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount
redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

We have been using NOL s to offset our federal taxable income. At December 31, 2015, we had approximately $72 million of federal net
operating losses. Since the remainder of our NOL s are subject to the limitations imposed by section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, we expect
that the amounts of our cash flows dedicated to the payment of federal taxes will increase substantially. The amounts of those payments will
depend upon many factors, including future earnings, tax law changes and future tax circumstances. Based on current laws (including the extension
of bonus depreciation) and circumstances applied to estimates of 2016 earnings, we estimate our cash income tax liability related to 2016 will be
between $400 million to $600 million.
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Dividends

We currently expect to continue our current practice of paying quarterly cash dividendsin respect of our common stock subject to our Board
of Directors' discretion to modify or terminate this practice at any time and for any reason without prior notice. Our current quarterly common stock
dividend rate is $0.54 per share, as approved by our Board of Directors, which we believeisadividend rate per share that gives us the flexibility to
balance our multiple objectives of managing our business, paying our fixed commitments and returning cash to our shareholders. Assuming
continued payment during 2016 at this rate of $0.54 per share, our total dividends paid each quarter would be approximately $292 million based on
our current number of outstanding shares (which does not reflect shares that we might repurchase or issue in future periods). See "Risk Factors—
Risks Affecting Our Business' in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report.

Credit Facility

Our $2.0 billion Credit Facility matures on December 3, 2019 and has 16 lenders, each with commitments ranging from $3.5 million to $198.5
million. The Credit Facility allows usto obtain revolving loans and to issue up to $400 million of letters of credit, which upon issuance reduce the
amount available for other extensions of credit. Interest is assessed on borrowings using either the LIBOR or the base rate (each as defined in the
Credit Facility) plus an applicable margin between 1.00% and 2.25% per annum for LIBOR loans and 0.00% and 1.25% per annum for base rate loans
depending on our then current senior unsecured |ong-term debt rating. Our obligations under the Credit Facility are guaranteed by nine of our
subsidiaries. At December 31, 2015, we had $330 million in borrowings and no amounts of letters of credit outstanding under the Credit Facility.

Under the Credit Facility, we, and our indirect subsidiary, Qwest Corporation, must maintain a debt to EBITDA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, as defined in our Credit Facility) ratio of not more than 4.0:1.0 and 2.85:1.0, respectively, as of thelast day of
each fiscal quarter for the four quarters then ended. The Credit Facility also contains a negative pledge covenant, which generally requires usto
secure equally and ratably any advances under the Credit Facility if we pledge assets or permit liens on our property for the benefit of other
debtholders. The Credit Facility also has a cross payment default provision, and the Credit Facility and certain of our debt securities also have cross
acceleration provisions. When present, these provisions could have awider impact on liquidity than might otherwise arise from adefault or
acceleration of asingle debt instrument. Our debt to EBITDA ratios could be adversely affected by awide variety of events, including unforeseen
expenses or contingencies. This could reduce our financing flexibility due to potential restrictions on incurring additional debt under certain
provisions of our debt agreements or, in certain circumstances, could result in adefault under certain provisions of such agreements.

Term Loans, Revolving Line of Credit and Revolving Letter of Credit

At December 31, 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. owed $358 million under aterm loan maturing in 2019 and Qwest Corporation owed $100 million under
aterm loan maturing in 2025. Both of these term loans include covenants substantially similar to those set forth in the Credit Facility.

In January 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. entered into a$100 million uncommitted revolving line of credit with one of the lenders under the Credit
Facility. The amount avail able under this uncommitted revolving line of credit isreduced by any amount outstanding under the Credit Facility with
the same lender. Interest is paid monthly based upon the LIBOR plus an applicable margin between 1.00% and 2.25% per annum. At December 31,
2015, we had $80 million borrowings outstanding under this uncommitted revolving line of credit.

We have a $160 million uncommitted revolving letter of credit facility which enables us to provide letters of credit under termsthat may be
more favorabl e than those under the Credit Facility. At December 31, 2015, our outstanding letters of credit totaled $109 million under thisfacility.

For information on our outstanding debt securities, see immediately below "Future Contractual Obligations" and Note 3—L ong-Term Debt
and Credit Facilities to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part 11 of this Annual Report.
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Future Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our estimated future contractual obligations as of December 31, 2015:

2021 and
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 ther eafter Total
(Dollarsin millions)
Long-term debt (9 $ 1,503 1,501 251 1,160 1,032 15,082 20,529
Interest on long-term debt and
capital leases @ 1,294 1,195 1,155 1,129 1,061 15,634 21,468
Operating leases 301 289 268 235 209 1,075 2,377
Purchase commitments 364 91 53 26 20 71 625
Post-retirement benefit
obligation ¥ 56 73 90 87 83 872 1,261
Non-qualified pension
obligations ¥ 5 5 5 5 5 21 46
Unrecognized tax benefits ® — — — — — 48 48
Other 7 5 7 5 7 60 91
Total future contractual
obligations © $ 3,530 3,159 1,829 2,647 2,417 32,863 46,445

()]

@)

®

4

®)

(6)

Includes current maturities and capital lease obligations, but excludes unamortized discounts, net and unamortized debt issuance costs.

Actual principal and interest paid in all years may differ due to future refinancing of outstanding debt or issuance of new debt. Interest on our floating rate debt
was calculated for al years using the rates effective at December 31, 2015.

We have various long-term, non-cancel able purchase commitments for advertising and promotion services, including advertising and marketing at sports arenas
and other venues and events. We also have service related commitments with various vendors for data processing, technical and software support services.
Future payments under certain service contracts will vary depending on our actual usage. In the table above we estimated payments for these service contracts
based on estimates of the level of services we expect to receive.

Reflects only the portion of total obligation that is contractual in nature. See Note 6 below.

Represents the amount of tax and interest we would pay for our unrecognized tax benefits. The $48 million is composed of unrecognized tax benefits of $15
million and related estimated interest of $33 million, which would result in future cash payments if our tax positions were not upheld. See Note 11—Income
Taxes to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report for additional information. The timing of any payments for our
unrecognized tax benefits cannot be predicted with certainty; therefore, such amount is reflected in the "2021 and thereafter" column in the above table.

The tableis limited to contractual obligations only and does not include:
. contingent liabilities;

¢ our open purchase orders as of December 31, 2015. These purchase orders are generally issued at fair value, and are generally cancelable without
penalty;

» other long-term liabilities, such as accruals for legal matters and other taxes that are not contractual obligations by nature. We cannot determine with
any degree of reliability the years in which these liabilities might ultimately settle;

«  cash funding requirements for qualified pension benefits payable to certain eligible current and future retirees. Benefits paid by our qualified pension
plan are paid through a trust. Cash funding requirements for this trust are not included in this table as we are not able to reliably estimate required
contributions to this trust. Our funding projections are discussed further below;

¢ certain post-retirement benefits payable to certain eligible current and future retirees. Not all of our post-retirement benefit obligation amount is a
contractual obligation and only the portion that we believe is a contractual obligation is reported in the table. See additional information on our
benefits plans in Note 7—Employee Benefits to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report;

. contract termination fees. These fees are non-recurring payments, the timing and payment of which, if any, is uncertain. In the ordinary course of
business and to optimize our cost structure, we enter into contracts with terms greater than one year to use the network facilities of other carriers and
to purchase other goods and services. Our contracts to use other carriers' network facilities generally have no minimum volume requirements and are
based on an interrelationship of volumes and discounted rates. Assuming we terminate these contracts in 2016, the contract termination fees would
be approximately $399 million. Under the same assumption, we estimate that our termination fees for these contracts to purchase goods and services
would be approximately $154 million. In the normal course of business, we do not believe payment of these feesis likely; and

. potential indemnification obligations to counterparties in certain agreements entered into in the normal course of business. The nature and terms of
these arrangements vary.






Pension and Post-retirement Benefit Obligations

We are subject to material obligations under our existing defined benefit pension plans and post-retirement benefit plans. At December 31,
2015, the accounting unfunded status of our defined benefit pension plans and post-retirement benefit plans were $2.277 billion and $3.374 billion,
respectively. See Note 7—Employee Benefits to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part |1 of this Annual Report for additional
information about our pension and post-retirement benefit arrangements.

Benefits paid by our qualified pension plan are paid through atrust that holds all of the plan's assets. Based on current laws and
circumstances, we do not expect any contributions to be required for our qualified pension plan for 2016. The amount of required contributionsto
our qualified pension plan in 2017 and beyond will depend on avariety of factors, most of which are beyond our control, including earnings on plan
investments, prevailing interest rates, demographic experience, changesin plan benefits and changesin funding laws and regulations. We
occasionally make voluntary contributions in addition to required contributions.

Certain of our post-retirement health care and life insurance benefits plans are unfunded. Several trusts hold assets that are used to help
cover the health care costs of certain retirees. As of December 31, 2015, the fair value of these trust assets was approximately $193 million; however,
aportion of these assets is comprised of investments with restricted liquidity. We estimate that the more liquid assets in these trusts will be
adequate to provide continuing reimbursements for covered post-retirement health care costs for approximately one year. Thereafter, covered
benefits will be paid either directly by us or from these trusts as the remaining assets become liquid. This projected one year period could be shorter
or longer depending on returns on plan assets, the timing of maturities of illiquid plan assets and future changes in benefits.

For 2016, our estimated annual long-term rate of return is 7.0% for both the pension plan trust assets and post-retirement plans trust assets,
based on the assets currently held. However, actual returns could be substantially different.

Historical I nformation

The following tables summarize our consolidated cash flow activities:

Y ear s Ended December 31,

Increase/
2015 2014 (Decrease)
(Dallarsin millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 5,152 5,188 (36)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,853) (3,077) (224)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,301) (2,151) 150
Y ears Ended December 31, Increase/
2014 2013 (Decrease)
(Dallarsin millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 5,188 5,559 (371)
Net cash used ininvesting activities (3,077) (3,248 (71)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,1512) (2,454) (303)

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by $36 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014 primarily due to aslight negative variance in net income adjusted for non-cash items along with negative variances in accounts
payable and other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net. The decreases were substantially offset with positive variancesin accrued income and
other taxes and other current assets and liabilities, net, which was primarily due to a payment of approximately $235 million in 2014 to settle certain
litigation. Our net cash provided by operating activitiesin 2015 was also positively impacted by the cash received from the CAF Phase 2 support
program, which was $209 million greater than the cash we would have otherwise received during the same period under the interstate USF support
program. Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by $371 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013 primarily due to a negative variance in net income adjusted for non-cash items along with a payment of approximately $235
million in the first quarter of 2014 to settle certain litigation. These decreases were substantially offset by positive variancesin the changesin
accounts payable and retirement benefits.
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During the year ended December 31, 2015, we made avoluntary cash contribution to the trust of $100 million to fund our qualified pension
plan. During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, and prior to the pension plan merger, we made required cash contributionsto the trust of
$157 million and $146 million, respectively, to fund our qualified pension plans.

Net cash used in investing activities decreased by $224 million for the year end December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014 primarily due to adecrease in payments of property, plant and equipment and amounts paid for acquisitionsin 2015. Net cash
used in investing activities decreased by $71 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013
primarily dueto less cash paid for acquisitions.

Net cash used in financing activitiesincreased by $150 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014 primarily due to additional common stock repurchases as the net debt repayments were approximately the samein both years.
Net cash used in financing activities decreased by $303 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2013 primarily due to reductionsin net debt paydownsin 2014 versus net borrowingsin 2013 and common stock repurchases.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, we repurchased 27.1 million shares of the company's outstanding common stock in the open
market. These shares were repurchased for an aggregate market price of $800 million, or an average purchase price of $29.56 per share. The
repurchased common stock has been retired. For additional information, see "Note 17—Repurchase of CenturyLink, Inc. Common Stock" in Item 8
of Part Il of this Annual Report.

On October 13, 2015, Qwest Corporation redeemed all $250 million of its 7.2% Notes due 2026, which resulted in an immaterial gain, and
redeemed $150 million of its 6.875% Notes due 2033, which resulted in an immaterial loss.

On September 21, 2015, Qwest Corporation issued $400 million aggregate principal amount of 6.625% Notes due 2055, in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discounts and other expenses, of approximately $386 million. The underwriting agreement included an over-
alotment option granting the underwriters for the offering an opportunity to purchase additional 6.625% Notes due 2055. On September 30, 2015,
Qwest Corporation issued an additional $10 million aggregate principal amount of its 6.625% Notes under this over-allotment option. All of the
6.625% Notes are unsecured obligations and may be redeemed by Qwest Corporation, in whole or in part, on or after September 15, 2020, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

On June 15, 2015, Qwest Corporation paid at maturity the $92 million principal amount of its 7.625% Notes.

On March 19, 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. issued in a private offering $500 million aggregate principal amount of 5.625% Notes due 2025, in
exchange for net proceeds, after deducting underwriting discounts and other expenses, of approximately $494 million. The Notes are senior
unsecured obligations and may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time before January 1, 2025 at aredemption price equal to the greater of
100% of the principal amount of the Notes or the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the
Notes, discounted to the redemption date in the manner described in the Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. At any
time on or after January 1, 2025, CenturyLink, Inc. may redeem the Notes at par plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. In addition,
at any timeon or prior to April 1, 2018, CenturyLink, Inc. may redeem up to 35% of the principal amount of the Notes at a redemption price equal to
105.625% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date, with net cash proceeds of certain equity
offerings. Under certain circumstances, CenturyLink, Inc. will be required to make an offer to repurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of the
aggregate principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the repurchase date. In October 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. exchanged all of the
unregistered Notesissued on March 19, 2015 for fully-registered Notes.

On February 20, 2015, Qwest Corporation entered into a new credit agreement with several lenders that allows Qwest Corporation to borrow
up to $100 million under aterm loan. Under this new credit agreement, Qwest Corporation borrowed $100 million under aten-year term note that
expires on February 20, 2025.

On February 17, 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. paid at maturity the $350 million plus accrued and unpaid interest due under its Series M 5.00% notes.

In January 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. entered into a $100 million uncommitted revolving line of credit with one of the lenders under the Credit
Facility.
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Certain Matters Related to Acquisitions

When we acquired Qwest and Savvisin 2011, Qwest's pre-acquisition debt obligations consisted primarily of debt securitiesissued by Qwest
and two of its subsidiaries while Savvis' long-term debt obligations (after the discharge of its convertible senior notesin connection with the
completion of the acquisition) consisted primarily of capital leases, the remaining outstanding portions of which are all now included in our
consolidated debt balances. The indentures governing Qwest's remaining debt securities contain customary covenants that restrict the ability of
Qwest or its subsidiaries from making certain payments and investments, granting liens and selling or transferring assets. Based on current
circumstances, we do not anticipate that these covenants will significantly restrict our ability to manage cash balances or transfer cash between
entities within our consolidated group of companies as needed.

In accounting for the Qwest acquisition, we recorded Qwest's debt securities at their estimated fair values, which totaled $12.292 billion as of
April 1, 2011. Our acquisition date fair value estimates were based primarily on quoted market pricesin active markets and other observable inputs
where quoted market prices were not available. We determined that the fair value of Qwest's debt securities exceeded their stated principal balances
on the acquisition date by $693 million, which we recorded as a premium.

The table below summarizes the portions of this premium recognized as a reduction to interest expense or extinguished during the periods
indicated:

Y ears Ended December 31, From April 1, 2011 _
through Total Since
2015 2014 December 31, 2013 Acquisition
(Dollarsin millions)
Amortized $ 22 42 302 366
Extinguished © 1 — 276 277
Tota $ 23 42 578 643

() Extinguished in connection with the payment of Qwest debt securities prior to maturity.

The remaining premium of $50 million as of December 31, 2015, will reduce interest expense in future periods, unless otherwise extinguished.

Other Matters

In February 2015, the FCC adopted new regulations that regulate Internet services as a public utility under Title 11 of the Communications Act.
Although it is premature for us to determine the ultimate impact of the new regulations on our operations, we currently expect that they will
negatively impact our current operations. For additional information, see“ Risk Factors—Risks Relating to Legal and Regulatory Matters’ in Item
1A of Part | of this Annual Report.

CenturyLink has cash management arrangements with certain of its principal subsidiaries, in which substantial portions of the subsidiaries
cashisregularly advanced to CenturyLink. Although CenturyLink periodically repays these advances to fund the subsidiaries' cash requirements
throughout the year, at any given point in time CenturyLink may owe a substantial sum to our subsidiaries under these advances, which, in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, are eliminated in consolidation and therefore not recognized on our consolidated balance
sheets.

Wealso areinvolved in various legal proceedings that could substantially impact our financial position. See Note 14—Commitments and
Contingencies to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of Part Il of this Annual Report for the current status of such legal proceedings.

On November 4, 2015, we announced that we have retained financial advisorsto assist in the exploration of strategic alternatives for our data
centers and colocation business operations. The review of strategic alternatives will involve afull range of options, including, but not limited to, a
partnership or joint venture, asale of all or aportion of the data centers, as well as keeping some or all of these assets and operations as part of our
portfolio. Strategic services revenues generated from our colocation services was approximately $626 million, $644 million and $623 million for the
years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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The following tables present additional metrics related to our data centers:

Asof December 31,

Increase/
2015 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollarsin millions)
Hosting Data Center Metrics

Number of data centers (1) 59 58 1 2%
Sellable square feet, million sq ft 1.58 1.46 0.12 8%
Billed square feet, million sq feet 0.99 0.92 0.07 8%
Utilization 63% 63% —% —%

Asof December 31, Increase/

2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
(Dallarsin millions)

Hosting Data Center Metrics

Number of data centers (1) 58 55 3 5%
Sellable square feet, million sq ft 1.46 1.39 0.07 5%
Billed square feet, million sq feet 0.92 0.96 (0.04) (4%
Utilization 63% 69% (6)% (9)%

(1) We define adata center as any facility where we market, sell and deliver colocation services, managed hosting (including cloud hosting) services, multi-tenant
managed services or any combination of.

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on our variable rate long-term debt obligations and fluctuations in certain foreign
currencies. We seek to maintain afavorable mix of fixed and variable rate debt in an effort to limit interest costs and cash flow volatility resulting
from changesin rates.

Management periodically reviews our exposure to interest rate fluctuations and periodically implements strategies to manage the exposure.
From time to time, we have used derivative instrumentsto (i) lock-in or swap our exposure to changing or variable interest rates for fixed interest
ratesor (ii) to swap obligationsto pay fixed interest rates for variable interest rates. As of December 31, 2015, we had no such instruments
outstanding. We have established policies and procedures for risk assessment and the approval, reporting and monitoring of derivative instrument
activities. We do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

At December 31, 2015, we had approximately $19.8 hillion (excluding capital lease and other obligations with a carrying amount of $425 million)
of long-term debt outstanding, approximately 95.6% of which bearsinterest at fixed rates and is therefore not exposed to interest rate risk. At
December 31, 2015, we had $738 million floating rate debt exposed to changesin the London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR). A hypothetical
increase of 100 basis pointsin LIBOR relative to this debt would decrease our annual pre-tax earnings by $7 million.

By operating internationally, we are exposed to the risk of fluctuationsin the foreign currencies used by our international subsidiaries,
primarily the British Pound, the Canadian Dollar, the Japanese Y en, the Hong Kong Dollar and the Singapore Dollar. Although the percentages of
our consolidated revenues and costs that are denominated in these currencies are immaterial, future volatility in exchange rates and an increase in
the number of transactions could adversely impact our consolidated results of operations. We use a sensitivity analysis to estimate our exposure to
thisforeign currency risk, measuring the changein financial position arising from hypothetical 10% change in the exchange rates of these
currencies, relative to the U.S. Dollar, with all other variables held constant. The aggregate potential change in the fair value of financial assets
resulting from a hypothetical 10% change in these exchange rates was $19 million at December 31, 2015.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the computation of exposures to market risks. Actual values may
differ materially from those disclosed by us from time to time if market conditions vary from the assumptions used in the analyses performed. These
analyses only incorporate the risk exposures that existed at December 31, 2015.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no special purpose or limited purpose entities that provide off-balance sheet financing, liquidity, or market or credit risk support and
we do not engage in leasing, hedging or other similar activities that expose us to any significant liabilities that are not (i) reflected on the face of the
consolidated financial statements, (ii) disclosed in Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies to our consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of

Part 11 of this Annual Report, or in the Future Contractual Obligationstableincluded in thisItem 7 of Part Il above, or (iii) discussed under the
heading "Market Risk" above.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURESABOUT MARKET RISK

Theinformation in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Market Risk" in Item 7 of Part
11 of this Annual Report isincorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31,
2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows, and stockholders' equity for each
of theyearsin the three-year period ended December 31, 2015. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the yearsin the three-year period
ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Asdiscussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for debt issuance costs
effective January 1, 2014 due to the adoption of FASB ASU 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt | ssuance Costs. Additionally, as
discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for deferred income taxes effective
January 1, 2014 due to the adoption of FASB ASU 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 24, 2016 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company'sinternal control over financial reporting.

/9 KPMGLLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
February 24, 2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We have audited CenturyLink, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based
on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting (Item 9A). Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the Company'sinternal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing therisk that a material weakness exists, and testing and eval uating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'sinternal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabl e assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statementsfor external purposesin accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company'sinternal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabl e assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statementsin accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that recei pts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have amaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectivenessto future periods are subject to therisk that controls may become inadequate because of changesin conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the rel ated consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), cash flows, and stockholders' equity for each of the yearsin the three-year period ended December 31, 2015, and our
report dated February 24, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/9 KPMGLLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
February 24, 2016
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)

Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of goodwill (Note 2)
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME
OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME
Interest expense
Net gain on early retirement of debt
Other income, net
Total other expense, net
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Income tax expense
NET INCOME (LOSS)
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
BASIC
DILUTED
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
BASIC
DILUTED

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31,

2015

2014

2013

(Dollarsin millions, except per share
amounts and sharesin thousands)

17,900 18,031 18,095
7,778 7,846 7,507
3,328 3,347 3,502
4,189 4,428 4,541

— — 1,092
15,295 15,621 16,642
2,605 2,410 1,453
(1312) (1,311) (1,298)
— — 10

23 1 59
(1,289) (1,300) (1,229)
1,316 1,110 224
438 338 463
878 72 (239)
1.58 1.36 (0.40)
1.58 1.36 (0.40)
554,278 568,435 600,892
555,003 569,739 600,892



CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Dollarsin millions)
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 878 772 (239)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS):
Items related to employee benefit plans:
Changein net actuarial gain (loss), net of $(12), $742 and $(606) tax 21 (1,200) 981
Changein net prior service credit (costs), net of $(47), $1 and $52 tax 76 @ (84)
Foreign currency translation adjustment and other, net of $—, $1 and $— tax (14) (14 2
Other comprehensive income (l0ss) 83 (1,215) 899
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) $ %1 (443) 660

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $152 and $162
Other
Total current assets
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment
Accumul ated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment
GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill
Customer relationships, net
Other intangible assets, net
Other, net
Total goodwill and other assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIESAND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Salaries and benefits
Income and other taxes
Interest
Other
Advance billings and customer deposits
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT
DEFERRED CREDITSAND OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred income taxes, net
Benefit plan obligations, net
Other
Total deferred credits and other liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 14)
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Preferred stock — non-redeemable, $25.00 par value, authorized 2,000 shares, issued and outstanding 7

and 7 shares

Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 1,600,000 and 1,600,000 shares, issued and outstanding

543,800 and 568,517 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Total stockholders' equity
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

CENTURYLINK, INC.

Asof December 31,

2015 2014

(Dollarsin millions
and sharesin thousands)

126 128
1,943 1,988
581 580
2,650 2,696
38,785 36,718
(20,716) (18,285)
18,069 18,433
20,742 20,755
3,928 4,893
1,555 1,647
660 679
26,885 27,974
47,604 49,103
1,503 550
968 1,226
602 641
318 309
250 256
220 210
743 726
4,604 3,018
18,722 19,953
3,569 3,154
5,511 5,808
1,138 1,247
10,218 10,209
544 569
15,178 16,324
(1,934) (2,017)
272 147
14,060 15,023
47,604 49,103




See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Y ears Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(Dollarsin millions)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income (loss) $ 878 772 (239)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 4,189 4,428 4,541
Impairment of goodwill (Note 2) — — 1,092
Impairment of assets 9 32 —
Deferred income taxes 350 291 391
Provision for uncollectible accounts 177 159 152
Gain on sale of intangible assets — — (32)
Net long-term debt issuance costs and premium amortization (3 (21) (46)
Net gain on early retirement of debt — — (10)
Share-based compensation 73 79 71
Changesin current assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable (132) (163) (212)
Accounts payable (168) 70 (76)
Accrued income and other taxes 32 (84) 28
Other current assets and liabilities, net (53) (270) 263
Retirement benefits (141) (184) (342)
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net (78) 99 8
Other, net 19 (20) (30)
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,152 5,188 5,559
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment and capitalized software (2,872) (3,047) (3,048)
Cash paid for acquisitions 4 (93 (160)
Proceeds from sale of property and intangibl e assets 31 63 80
Other, net (8) — (20)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,853) (3,077) (3,148)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 989 483 2,481
Payments of long-term debt (966) (800) (2,010)
Net payments on credit facility and revolving line of credit (315) (4) (95)
Early retirement of debt costs (@] — (31)
Dividends paid (1,198) (1,228) (1,3012)
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 11 50 73
Repurchase of common stock (819) (650) (1,586)
Other, net ) 2 15
Net cash used in financing activities (2,301) (2,151) (2,454)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 2 (40) (43)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 128 168 211
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 126 128 168
Supplemental cash flow information:
Income taxes paid, net $ (63) 27 (48)
Interest paid (net of capitalized interest of $52, $47 and $41) $ (1,310) (1,338) (1,333)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(Dollarsin millions)
COMMON STOCK (represents dollars and shares)

Balance at beginning of period $ 569 584 626
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestment, incentive and benefit
plans 2 4 4
Repurchase of common stock (27) (19) (46)
Balance at end of period 544 569 584
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of period 16,324 17,343 19,079
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestment, incentive and benefit
plans 9 46 69
Repurchase of common stock (767) (591) (1,551)
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdings (19) (16) (18)
Share-based compensation and other, net 7 82 85
Dividends declared (446) (540) (321)
Balance at end of period 15,178 16,324 17,343
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Balance at beginning of period (2,017) (802) (1,7012)
Other comprehensive income (10ss) 83 (1,215) 899
Balance at end of period (1,934) (2,017) (802)
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of period 147 66 1,285
Net income (l0ss) 878 772 (239)
Dividends declared (753) (691) (980)
Balance at end of period 272 147 66
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $ 14,060 15,023 17,191

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Referencesin the Notesto "CenturyLink," "we," "us" and "our" refer to CenturyLink, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the
content otherwise requires and except in Note 3, where such referencesrefer solely to CenturyLink, Inc.

(1) Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

We are an integrated communi cations company engaged primarily in providing an array of communications services to our residential and
business customers. Our communications services include local and long-distance voice, high-speed Internet, Multi-Protocol Label Switching
("MPLS"), private line (including special access), dataintegration, Ethernet, colocation, managed hosting (including cloud hosting), network, public
access, wireless, video and other ancillary services.

The accompanying consolidated financial statementsinclude our accounts and the accounts of our subsidiaries. Intercompany amounts and
transactions with our consolidated subsidiaries have been eliminated.

To simplify the overall presentation of our consolidated financial statements, we report immaterial amounts attributable to noncontrolling
interestsin certain of our subsidiaries asfollows: (i) income attributable to noncontrolling interestsin other income, net, (ii) equity attributable to
noncontrolling interestsin additional paid-in capital and (iii) cash flows attributable to noncontrolling interests in other, net financing activities.

Wereclassified certain prior period amounts to conform to the current period presentation, including the categorization of our revenues and
our segment reporting. See Note 12—Segment Information for additional information. These changes had no impact on total revenues, total
operating expenses or net income (loss) for any period.

Connect America Fund Support Payments

In 2015, we accepted funding from the Federal Communications Commission's ("FCC") Connect America Fund ("CAF") of approximately $500
million per year for six yearsto fund the deployment of voice and high-speed Internet infrastructure for approximately 1.2 million rural households
and businessesin 33 states under the CAF Phase 2 high-cost support program. The funding from the CAF Phase 2 support program in these 33
states will substantially supplant funding from the interstate Universal Service Fund ("USF") high-cost program that we previously utilized to
support voice services in high-cost rural markets. In September of 2015, we began receiving these support payments from the FCC under the new
CAF Phase 2 support program, which included (i) monthly support payments at a higher rate than under the interstate USF support program and (ii)
a one-time cumulative catch-up payment representing the incrementally higher funding under the CAF Phase 2 support program over the interstate
USF support program for the first seven months of 2015. During 2015, we recorded $215 million more revenue than we would have otherwise
recorded during the same period under the interstate USF support program.

Changesin Estimates

Asaresult of our annual reviews to eval uate the reasonableness of the depreciable lives for our property, plant and equipment, effective
January 2014, we changed the estimates of the remaining economic lives of certain switch and circuit network equipment. These changesresulted in
anet increase in depreciation expense of approximately $78 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. This net increase in depreciation expense,
net of tax, reduced consolidated net income by approximately $48 million, or $0.08 per basic and diluted common share, for the year ended December
31, 2014.

Additionally, during the third quarter of 2014, we developed a plan to migrate customers from one of our networks to another over a one-year
period beginning in the fourth quarter of 2014. Asaresult, we implemented changes in estimates that reduced the remaining economic lives of
certain network assets. The increase in depreciation expense from the changesin estimates was more than fully offset by decreasesin depreciation
expense resulting from normal aging of our property, plant and equipment. These changesin the estimated remaining economic livesresulted in an
increase in depreciation expense of approximately $48 million and $12 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This
increase in depreciation expense, net of tax, reduced consolidated net income by approximately $32 million, or $0.06 per basic and diluted common
share and $7 million, or $0.01 per basic and diluted common share, for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. These accounting
principles require us to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions. We believe that the estimates, judgments and assumptions we make
when accounting for specific items and matters, including, but not limited to, investments, long-term contracts, customer retention patterns,
alowance for doubtful accounts, depreciation, amortization, asset valuations, internal labor capitalization rates, recoverability of assets (including
deferred tax assets), impairment assessments, pension, post-retirement and other post-employment benefits, taxes, certain liabilities and other
provisions and contingencies, are reasonable, based on information available at the time they are made. These estimates, judgments and
assumptions can materially affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and components of stockholders' equity as of the dates of the
consolidated balance sheets, aswell as the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and components of cash flows during the periods presented in
our other consolidated financial statements. We also make estimatesin our assessments of potential losses in relation to threatened or pending tax
and legal matters. See Note 11—Income Taxes and Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies for additional information.

For matters not related to income taxes, if alossis considered probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated, we recognize an expense
for the estimated loss. If we have the potential to recover a portion of the estimated loss from athird party, we make a separate assessment of
recoverability and reduce the estimated lossif recovery is also deemed probable.

For mattersrelated to income taxes, if we determine that the impact of an uncertain tax position is more likely than not to be sustained upon
audit by the relevant taxing authority, then we recognize a benefit for the largest amount that is more likely than not to be sustained. No portion of
an uncertain tax position will be recognized if the position hasless than a 50% likelihood of being sustained. Interest is recognized on the amount of
unrecognized benefit from uncertain tax positions.

For all of these and other matters, actual results could differ materially from our estimates.
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue for services when the related services are provided. Recognition of certain payments received in advance of services
being provided is deferred until the service is provided. These advance paymentsinclude activation and installation charges, which we recognize as
revenue over the expected customer relationship period, which ranges from eighteen months to over ten years depending on the service. We also
defer costs for customer activations and installations. The deferral of customer activation and installation costsis limited to the amount of revenue
deferred on advance payments. Costs in excess of advance payments are recorded as expense in the period such costs are incurred. Expected
customer relationship periods are estimated using historical experience. In most cases, termination fees or other fees on existing contracts that are
negotiated in conjunction with new contracts are deferred and recognized over the new contract term.

We offer bundle discounts to our customers who receive certain groupings of services. These bundle discounts are recognized concurrently
with the associated revenue and are allocated to the various services in the bundled offering based on the estimated selling price of services
included in each bundled combination.

Customer arrangements that include both equipment and services are evaluated to determine whether the elements are separable. If the
elements are deemed separabl e and separate earnings processes exist, the revenue associated with the customer arrangement is all ocated to each
element based on the relative estimated selling price of the separate elements. We have estimated the selling prices of each element by reference to
vendor-specific objective evidence of selling prices when the elements are sold separately. The revenue associated with each element isthen
recognized as earned. For example, if we receive an advance payment when we sell equipment and continuing service together, we immediately
recognize as revenue the amount allocated to the equipment as long as all the conditions for revenue recognition have been satisfied. The portion
of the advance payment allocated to the service based upon its relative selling priceis recognized ratably over the longer of the contractual period
or the expected customer relationship period.

We periodically transfer optical capacity assets on our network to other telecommunications service carriers. These transactions are
structured asindefeasible rights of use, commonly referred to as IRUs, which are the exclusive right to use a specified amount of capacity or fiber
for a specified term, typically 20 years. We account for the cash consideration received on transfers of optical capacity assets and on all of the other
elements deliverable under an IRU, asrevenue ratably over the term of the agreement. We have not recognized revenue on any contemporaneous
exchanges of our optical capacity assets for other optical capacity assets.
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In connection with offering products and services provided by third-party vendors, we review the relationship between us, the vendor and
the end customer to assess whether revenue should be reported on agross or net basis. In assessing whether revenue should be reported on a
gross or net basis, we consider whether we act as aprincipal in the transaction, take title to the products, have risk and rewards of ownership or act
as an agent or broker. Based on our agreements with DIRECTV and Verizon Wireless, we offer these services through sal es agency relationships
which are reported on a net basis.

We have service level commitments pursuant to contracts with certain of our customers. To the extent that such service levels are not
achieved or are otherwise disputed due to performance or serviceissues or other serviceinterruptions or conditions, we will estimate the amount of
credits to be issued and record areduction to revenues, with a corresponding increase in the credit reserve.

USF, Gross Receipts Taxesand Other Sur charges

In determining whether to include in our revenues and expenses the taxes and surcharges collected from customers and remitted to
government authorities, including USF charges, sales, use, value added and some excise taxes, we assess, among other things, whether we are the
primary obligor or principal taxpayer for the taxes assessed in each jurisdiction where we do business. In jurisdictions where we determine that we
are the principal taxpayer, we record the surcharges on a gross basis and include them in our revenues and costs of services and products. In
jurisdictions where we determine that we are merely a collection agent for the government authority, we record the taxes on a net basis and do not
include them in our revenues and costs of services and products.

Advertising Costs

Costsrelated to advertising are expensed as incurred and included in selling, general and administrative expensesin our consolidated
statements of operations. Our advertising expense was $210 million, $214 million and $210 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Legal Costs

In the normal course of our business, we incur costs to hire and retain external legal counsel to advise uson regulatory, litigation and other
matters. We expense these costs as the related services are received.

Income Taxes

We file a consolidated federal income tax return with our eligible subsidiaries. The provision for income taxes consists of an amount for taxes
currently payable, an amount for tax consequences deferred to future periods, adjustments to our liabilities for uncertain tax positions and
amortization of investment tax credits. We record deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflecting future tax consequences attributabl e to tax net
operating losses ("NOLS"), tax credit carryforwards and differences between the financial statement carrying value of assets and liabilities and the
tax bases of those assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are computed using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the year in which the differences
are expected to affect taxable income. The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of achange in tax rate isrecognized in earningsin the
period that includes the enactment date.

We establish valuation allowances when necessary to reduce deferred income tax assets to the amounts that we believe are more likely than
not to be recovered. Each quarter we evaluate the need to retain all or aportion of the valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets. See Note 11—
Income Taxes for additional information.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equival entsinclude highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and are not subject to significant risk from
fluctuationsin interest rates. Asaresult, the value at which cash and cash equivalents are reported in our consolidated financial statements
approximatestheir fair value. In evaluating investments for classification as cash equivalents, we require that individual securities have original
maturities of ninety days or less and that individual investment funds have dollar-weighted average maturities of ninety daysor less. To preserve
capital and maintain liquidity, we invest with financial institutions we deem to be of sound financial condition and in high quality and relatively risk-
free investment products. Our cash investment policy limits the concentration of investments with specific financial institutions or among certain
products and includes criteriarel ated to credit worthiness of any particular financial institution.

Book overdrafts occur when checks have been issued but have not been presented to our controlled disbursement bank accounts for
payment. Disbursement bank accounts allow usto delay funding of issued checks until the checks are presented for payment. Until the issued
checks are presented for payment, the book overdrafts are included in accounts payable on our consolidated balance sheet. This activity is
included in the operating activities section in our consolidated statements of cash flows.
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Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivabl e are recogni zed based upon the amount due from customers for the services provided or at cost for purchased and other
receivables less an allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts receivable reflects our best estimate of probable |osses
inherent in our receivable portfolio determined on the basis of historical experience, specific allowances for known troubled accounts and other
currently available evidence. We generally consider our accounts past dueif they are outstanding over 30 days. Our collection process varies by
the customer segment, amount of the receivable, and our evaluation of the customer's credit risk. Our past due accounts are written off against our
alowance for doubtful accounts when collection is considered to be not probable. Any recoveries of accounts previously written off are generally
recognized as areduction in bad debt expense in the period received. The carrying value of accounts receivable net of the allowance for doubtful
accounts approximates fair value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired in connection with our acquisitions was recorded based on its estimated fair value as of its
acquisition date plus the estimated value of any associated legally or contractually required retirement obligations. Purchased and constructed
property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost, plus the estimated value of any associated legally or contractually required retirement
obligations. Property, plant and equipment is depreciated primarily using the straight-line group method. Under the straight-line group method,
assets dedicated to providing telecommunications services (which comprise the majority of our property, plant and equipment) that have similar
physical characteristics, use and expected useful lives are pooled for purposes of depreciation and tracking. The equal life group procedureis used
to establish each pool's average remaining useful life. Generally, under the straight-line group method, when an asset is sold or retired in the course
of normal business activities, the cost is deducted from property, plant and equipment and charged to accumulated depreciation without
recognition of again or loss. A gain or lossis recognized in our consolidated statements of operations only if adisposal isabnormal or unusual.

L easehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the useful lives of the assets or the expected |ease term. Expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are expensed as incurred. Interest is capitalized during the construction phase of network and other internal -use capital projects.
Employee-related costs for construction of network and other internal use assets are also capitalized during the construction phase. Property, plant
and equipment supplies used internally are carried at average cost, except for significant individual items for which cost is based on specific
identification.

We perform annual internal reviewsto evaluate the reasonableness of the depreciable livesfor our property, plant and equipment. Our
reviews utilize models that take into account actual usage, physical wear and tear, replacement history, assumptions about technology evolution
and, in certain instances, actuarially determined probabilities to estimate the remaining useful life of our asset base. Our remaining useful life
assessments anticipate the loss in service value of assets that may precede the physical retirement. Assets shared among many customers may lose
service value as those customers leave the network. However, the asset is not retired until all customers no longer utilize the asset and we determine
thereis no alternative use for the asset.

We have asset retirement obligations associated with the legally or contractually required removal of alimited group of property, plant and
equipment assets from leased properties and the disposal of certain hazardous materials present in our owned properties. When an asset retirement
obligationisidentified, usually in association with the acquisition of the asset, we record the fair value of the obligation asaliability. The fair value
of the obligation isalso capitalized as property, plant and equipment and then amortized over the estimated remaining useful life of the associated
asset. Where the removal obligation is not legally binding, the net cost to remove assets is expensed in the period in which the costs are actually
incurred.

Wereview long-lived tangible assets for impairment whenever facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may
not be recoverable. For assessment purposes, long-lived assets are grouped with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable
cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities, absent amaterial change in operations. An impairment lossis
recognized only if the carrying amount of the asset group is not recoverable and exceedsitsfair value. Recoverability of the asset group to be held
and used is assessed by comparing the carrying amount of the asset group to the estimated undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset group. If the asset group's carrying value is not recoverable, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset group exceedsitsfair value. We determine fair values by using a combination of comparable market values and
discounted cash flows, as appropriate.
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Goodwill, Customer Relationshipsand Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets arising from business combinations, such as goodwill, customer relationships, capitalized software, trademarks and trade
names, areinitially recorded at estimated fair value. We amortize customer relationships primarily over an estimated life of 10to 15 years, using
either the sum-of-the-years-digits or the straight-line methods, depending on the type of customer. We amortize capitalized software using the
straight-line method over estimated lives ranging up to 7 years, except for approximately $237 million of our capitalized software costs, which
represents costs to develop an integrated billing and customer care system which is amortized using the straight-line method over a 20 year period.
We amortize our other intangible assets predominantly using the sum-of-the-years-digits method over an estimated life of 4 years. Other intangible
assets not arising from business combinations are initially recorded at cost. Where there are no legal, regulatory, contractual or other factors that
would reasonably limit the useful life of an intangible asset, we classify the intangible asset as indefinite-lived and such intangibl e assets are not
amortized.

Internally used software, whether purchased or developed by us, is capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method over its estimated
useful life. We have capitalized certain costs associated with software such as costs of employees devoting time to the projects and external direct
costs for materials and services. Costs associated with software to be used for internal purposes are expensed until the point at which the project
has reached the devel opment stage. Subsequent additions, modifications or upgrades to internal -use software are capitalized only to the extent that
they allow the software to perform atask it previously did not perform. Software maintenance, data conversion and training costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. We review the remaining economic lives of our capitalized software annually. Capitalized softwareisincluded
in other intangible assets, net, in our consolidated balance sheets.

Our long-lived intangible assets, other than goodwill, with indefinite lives are assessed for impairment annually, or, under certain
circumstances, more frequently, such as when events or changes in circumstances indicate there may be an impairment. These assets are carried at
the estimated fair value at the time of acquisition and assets not acquired in acquisitions are recorded at historical cost. However, if their estimated
fair value isless than the carrying amount, other indefinite-lived intangibl e assets are reduced to their estimated fair val ue through an impairment
charge to our consolidated statements of operations.

We are required to assess goodwill for impairment at least annually, or more frequently, if an event occurs or circumstances change that would
indicate an impairment may have occurred. We are required to write-down the value of goodwill in periods in which the recorded amount of goodwill
exceedstheimplied fair value of goodwill. Our reporting units are not discrete legal entities with discrete financial statements. Therefore, the equity
carrying value and future cash flows must be estimated each time a goodwill impairment assessment is performed on areporting unit. Asaresult,
our assets, liabilities and cash flows are assigned to reporting units using reasonable and consistent allocation methodologies. Certain estimates,
judgments and assumptions are required to perform these assignments. We believe these estimates, judgments and assumptions to be reasonable,
but changes in many of these can significantly affect each reporting unit's equity carrying value and future cash flows utilized for our goodwill
impairment assessment.

We arerequired to reassign goodwill to reporting units each time we reorganize our internal reporting structure which causes a change in the
composition of our reporting units. Goodwill is reassigned to the reporting units using arelative fair value approach. We utilize the earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization as our allocation methodology as it represents areasonabl e proxy for the fair value of the operations
being reorganized.

See Note 2—Goodwill, Customer Relationships and Other Intangible Assets for additional information.
Pension and Post-Retirement Benefits

We recogni ze the funded status of our defined benefit and post-retirement plans as an asset or aliability on our consolidated bal ance sheet.
Each year's actuarial gains or losses are acomponent of our other comprehensive income (loss), which isthen included in our accumulated other
comprehensive loss. Pension and post-retirement benefit expenses are recognized over the period in which the employee renders service and
becomes eligible to receive benefits. We make significant assumptions (including the discount rate, expected rate of return on plan assets, mortality
and health care trend rates) in computing the pension and post-retirement benefits expense and obligations. See Note 7—Employee Benefits for
additional information.
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Foreign Currency

Our results of operationsinclude foreign subsidiaries, which are translated from the applicable functional currency to the United States Dol lar
using the average exchange rates during the reporting period, while assets and liabilities are translated at the reporting date. We include gains or
losses from foreign currency remeasurement in other income, net in our consolidated statements of operations. Certain non-U.S. subsidiaries
designate thelocal currency astheir functional currency, and we record the translation of their assets and liabilitiesinto U.S. Dollars at the balance
sheet date astranslation adjustments and include them as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in our consolidated balance
sheets.

Common Stock

At December 31, 2015, we had 4 million unissued shares of CenturyLink, Inc. common stock reserved for acquisitions. In addition, we had 25
million shares authorized for future issuance under our equity incentive plans.

Preferred stock

Holders of outstanding CenturyLink, Inc. preferred stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends, receive preferential distributions equal
to $25 per share plus unpaid dividends upon CenturyLink, Inc.'s liquidation and vote as a single class with the holders of common stock.

Dividends

We pay dividends out of retained earnings to the extent we have retained earnings on the date the dividend is declared. If the dividend isin
excess of our retained earnings on the declaration date, then the excessis drawn from our additional paid-in capital.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In 2015, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ ASU”) 2015-03 “ Simplifying the Presentation of Debt | ssuance Costs’ (ASU 2015-03)
and ASU 2015-17 “ Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes’ (ASU 2015-17). Both ASUs are intended to simplify the presentation of financial
information. ASU 2015-03 requires that debt issuance costs be presented as a reduction in the associated debt rather than as an other asset, net.
ASU 2015-17 requiresthat deferred taxes be presented on anet basis by jurisdiction as either anet noncurrent asset or liability. The ASUs affect
neither the timing of expense recognition related to the debt issuance costs nor the timing of income and expense recognition related to deferred
income taxes.

We adopted both ASU 2015-03 and 2015-17 by retrospectively applying the requirements of the ASUs to our previously issued consolidated
financial statements. The retrospective application had no impact on our net income (loss) or earnings (loss) per share for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, but resulted in the following changesin our previously reported consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2014:

* A decrease of $880 millionin Total current assets;

* A decrease of $164 million in Other assets, net;

¢ A decrease of $168 million in Long-term debt; and

* A decrease of $876 million in Deferred income taxes, net.

The adoption of the ASUs had no impact on our net cash provided by operating activities, but did change the presentation of the adjustments
to reconcile net income and changes in other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.

In 2015, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ ASU”) 2015-07 (“* ASU 2015-07"), which retrospectively changed the disclosure
requirements for certain investments that are valued based upon net asset value (“NAV”) asapractical expedient. ASU 2015-07 was issued to
eliminate diversity among entities on what level in the fair value hierarchy such investments were assigned. Under ASU 2015-07, investments
valued using NAV as a practical expedient are no longer assigned to alevel in the fair value hierarchy rather the value associated with the
investmentsis disclosed in areconciliation of the total investments measured at fair value.
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For us, the change in disclosure requirements as aresult of the adoption of ASU 2015-07, only affects the disclosure of the fair value of our
pension and post-retirement plan assets included in footnote 7, “ Employee Benefits’. ASU 2015-07 resultsin $5.749 hillion and $264 million of
pension plan and post-retirement plan assets, respectively as of December 31, 2014, not being assigned to alevel in the fair value hierarchy but
rather disclosed as a separate line added to the fair value hierarchy table to present total plan assets. There was no change in total pension or post-
retirement plan assets as of December 31, 2014 due to the adoption of ASU 2015-07.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Revenue Recognition

On May 28, 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “ Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“ASU 2014-09" or “new standard”). The new
standard replaces virtually all existing generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP’) on revenue recognition and replaces them with a
principles-based approach for determining revenue recognition using a new five step model. The core principle of ASU 2014-09 isthat an entity
should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customersin an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expectsto be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 al so includes new accounting principlesrelated to the
deferral and amortization of contract acquisition and fulfillment costs. We currently do not defer any contract acquisition costs and defer contract
fulfillment costs only up to the extent of any revenue deferred.

On July 9, 2015, the FASB approved the deferral of the effective date of ASU 2014-09 by one year until January 1, 2018. Early adoption is
permitted as of January 1, 2017. ASU 2014-09 may be adopted by applying the provisions of the new standard on aretrospective basisto the
periodsincluded in the financial statements or on a modified retrospective basis which would result in the recognition of a cumulative effect of
adopting ASU 2014-09 in the first quarter of 2017, if adopting early, otherwise in the first quarter of 2018. We have not yet decided which
implementation method we will adopt. We are studying the new standard and are in the early stages of assessing the impact the new standard will
have on us and our consolidated financial statements. We cannot at thistime, however, provide any estimate of the impact of adopting the new
standard.

(2) Goodwill, Customer Relationshipsand Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill, customer relationships and other intangible assets consisted of the following:

Asof December 31,

2015 2014
(Dollarsin millions)

Goodwill $ 20,742 20,755

Customer relationships, less accumulated amortization of $5,648 and $4,682 3,928 4,893

Indefinite-life intangibl e assets 269 268
Other intangibl e assets subject to amortization

Capitalized software, less accumulated amortization of $1,778 and $1,533 1,248 1,338

Trade names and patents, less accumulated amortization of $20 and $196 38 1

Total other intangible assets, net $ 1,555 1,647

Total amortization expense for intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $1.353 hillion, $1.470 billion and
$1.589 hillion, respectively. As of December 31, 2015, the gross carrying amount of goodwill, customer relationships, indefinite-life and other
intangible assets was $33.671 billion.
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We estimate that total amortization expense for intangible assets for the years ending December 31, 2016 through 2020 will be asfollows:

(Dollarsin millions)

2016 $ 1,161
2017 1,056
2018 944
2019 827
2020 726

Our goodwill was derived from numerous acquisitions where the purchase price exceeded the fair value of the net assets acquired.

We assess our goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually, or, under certain circumstances, more frequently,
such as when events or changes in circumstances indicate there may be impairment. We are required to write down the value of goodwill only when
our assessment determines the recorded amount of goodwill exceeds the fair value. Our annual impairment assessment date for goodwill is October
31, at which date we assessed our reporting units, which are business (excluding wholesal€), consumer and wholesale. Our annual impairment
assessment date for indefinite-lived intangible assets other than goodwill is December 31.

Our reporting units are not discrete legal entitieswith discrete financial statements. Our assets and liabilities are employed in and relate to the
operations of multiple reporting units. For each reporting unit, we compare its estimated fair value of equity to its carrying value of equity that we
assign to the reporting unit. If the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is greater than the carrying value, we conclude that no impairment exists.
If the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying value, a second calculation isrequired in which the implied fair value of
goodwill is compared to the carrying value of goodwill that we assigned to the reporting unit. If theimplied fair value of goodwill islessthan its
carrying value, goodwill must be written down to itsimplied fair value.

At October 31, 2015, we estimated the fair value of our business (excluding wholesal€), consumer and whol esale reporting units by
considering both a market approach and a discounted cash flow method, which resulted in aLevel 3 fair value measurement. The market approach
method includes the use of comparable multiples of publicly traded companies whose services are comparable to ours. The discounted cash flow
method is based on the present value of projected cash flows and aterminal value, which represents the expected normalized cash flows of the
reporting units beyond the cash flows from the discrete projection period. We discounted the estimated cash flows for our consumer and wholesale
reporting units using arate that represents their estimated weighted average cost of capital, which we determined to be approximately 6.0% as of the
assessment date (which was comprised of an after-tax cost of debt of 3.3% and a cost of equity of 7.6%). We discounted the estimated cash flows
of our business (excluding wholesal€) reporting unit using arate that representsits estimated weighted average cost of capital, which we
determined to be approximately 7.0% as of the assessment date (which was comprised of an after-tax cost of debt of 3.3% and a cost of equity of
8.6%). We aso reconciled the estimated fair values of the reporting units to our market capitalization as of October 31, 2015 and concluded that the
indicated implied control premium of approximately 24.6% was reasonabl e based on recent transactions in the market place. As of October 31, 2015,
based on our assessment performed with respect to these reporting units as described above, we concluded that our goodwill for our three
reporting units was not impaired as of that date.

The following table shows the rollforward of goodwill assigned to our reportable segments from December 31, 2013 through December 31,
2015.

Business Consumer Wholesale Hosting Total
(Dollarsin millions)

Asof December 31, 2013 $ 6,363 10,348 3,274 689 20,674
Purchase accounting adjustments — — — (12) (12)
November 1, 2014 reorganization 4,022 (70) (3,274) (678) —
Acquisitions 92 — — — 92

As of December 31, 2014 $ 10,477 10,278 — — 20,755
Purchase accounting and other adjustments (13) — — — (13)

As of December 31, 2015 $ 10,464 10,278 — — 20,742
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During the year ended December 31, 2014, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of two companies for total consideration of $95 million, net
of $2 million acquired cash and including immaterial future cash payments of which $92 million was attributed to goodwill and the remainder to
various assets and liabilities. During 2015, we finalized the valuations for these acquisitions resulting in a $14 million decrease in goodwill, a $13
million increase in other intangible assets and a $1 million decrease in deferred income taxes, net. The acquisitions were consummated to expand the
product offerings of our business segment and therefore the goodwill has been assigned to that segment. The goodwill is attributed primarily to
expected future increases in business segment revenue from the sale of new products. The goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.

The acquisitions did not materially impact the consolidated results of operations from the dates of the acquisitionsin 2014 and would not
materially impact pro formaresults of operations.

For additional information on our segments, see Note 12—Segment |nformation.

We completed our qualitative assessment of our indefinite-lived intangible assets other than goodwill as of December 31, 2015 and concluded
itismorelikely than not that our indefinite-lived intangible assets are not impaired; thus, no impairment charge was recorded in 2015.

Asof October 31, 2014, based on our assessment performed, we concluded that our goodwill for our then four reporting units was not
impaired as of that date. During 2013, one of our previous reporting units experienced slower than previously projected revenues and margin growth
and greater than anticipated competitive pressures and as aresult, we recorded a non-cash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairment charge of
$1.092 hillion for goodwill assigned to one of our then four reporting units.
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(3) Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

Long-term debt, including unamortized discounts and premiums and unamortized debt i ssuance costs, consisted of borrowings by
CenturyLink, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries, including Qwest Corporation, Qwest Capital Funding, Inc. and Embarqg Corporation and
subsidiaries ("Embarqg"), were asfollows:

Asof December 31,

Interest Rates Maturities 2015 2014

(Dollarsin millions)
CenturyLink, Inc.

Senior notes 5.150% - 7.650% 2017 - 2042 $ 7,975 7,825
Credit facility and revolving line of credit® 2.010% - 4.250% 2019 410 725
Termloan 2.180% 2019 358 380
Subsidiaries
Qwest Corporation
Senior notes 6.125% - 8.375% 2016 - 2055 7,229 7,311
Termloan 2.180% 2025 100 —
Qwest Capital Funding, Inc.
Senior notes 6.500% - 7.750% 2018 - 2031 981 981
Embarq Corporation and subsidiaries
Senior notes 7.082% - 7.995% 2016 - 2036 2,669 2,669
First mortgage bonds 7.125% - 8.770% 2017 - 2025 232 232
Other 9.000% 2019 150 150
Capital |ease and other obligations Various Various 425 509
Unamortized discounts, net (125) (111)
Unamortized debt i ssuance costs (279) (168)
Total long-term debt 20,225 20,503
L ess current maturities (1,503) (550)
L ong-term debt, excluding current maturities $ 18,722 19,953

@ The aggregate amount outstanding on our Credit Facility and revolving line of credit borrowings at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $410 million and $725
million, respectively, with weighted average interest rates of 2.756% and 2.270%, respectively. These amounts change on a regular basis.

New | ssuances
2015

On September 21, 2015, Qwest Corporation issued $400 million aggregate principal amount of 6.625% Notes due 2055, in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discounts and other expenses, of approximately $386 million. The underwriting agreement included an over-
allotment option granting the underwriters for the offering an opportunity to purchase additional 6.625% Notes due 2055. On September 30, 2015,
Qwest Corporation issued an additional $10 million aggregate principal amount of the 6.625% Notes under this over-allotment option. All of the
6.625% Notes are unsecured obligations and may be redeemed by Qwest Corporation, in whole or in part, on or after September 15, 2020, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.
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On March 19, 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. issued in a private offering $500 million aggregate principal amount of 5.625% Notes due 2025, in
exchange for net proceeds, after deducting underwriting discounts and other expenses, of approximately $494 million. The Notes are senior
unsecured obligations and may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time before January 1, 2025 at a redemption price equal to the greater of
100% of the principal amount of the Notes or the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the
Notes, discounted to the redemption date in the manner described in the Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. At any
time on or after January 1, 2025, CenturyLink, Inc. may redeem the Notes at par plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. In addition,
at any time on or prior to April 1, 2018, CenturyLink, Inc. may redeem up to 35% of the principal amount of the Notes at a redemption price equal to
105.625% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date, with net cash proceeds of certain equity
offerings. Under certain circumstances, CenturyLink, Inc. will be required to make an offer to repurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of the
aggregate principa amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the repurchase date. In October 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. exchanged all of the
unregistered Notes issued on March 19, 2015 for fully-registered Notes.

2014

On September 29, 2014, Qwest Corporation issued $500 million aggregate principal amount of 6.875% Notes due 2054, in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discounts and other expenses, of $483 million. The Notes are senior unsecured obligations and may be
redeemed, in whole or in part, on or after October 1, 2019, at aredemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date.

Repayments
2015

On October 13, 2015, Qwest Corporation redeemed all $250 million of its 7.2% Notes due 2026, which resulted in an immateria gain, and
redeemed $150 million of its 6.875% Notes due 2033, which resulted in an immaterial loss.

On June 15, 2015, Qwest Corporation paid at maturity the $92 million principal amount of its 7.625% Notes.

On February 17, 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. paid at maturity the $350 million principal and accrued and unpaid interest due under its SeriesM
5.00% Notes.

2014
On October 1, 2014, Qwest Corporation paid at maturity the $600 million principal amount of its 7.50% Notes.
On April 1, 2014, asubsidiary of Embarq paid at maturity the $30 million principal amount of its 7.46% first mortgage bonds.

Credit Facility

On December 3, 2014, we amended our existing $2 billion revolving credit facility to extend the maturity date to December 3, 2019. The
amended Credit Facility (the "Credit Facility") has 16 lenders, each with commitments ranging from $3.5 million to $198.5 million. The Credit Facility
allows usto obtain revolving loans and to issue up to $400 million of letters of credit, which upon issuance reduce the amount available for other
extensions of credit. Interest is assessed on borrowings using either the LIBOR or the base rate (each as defined in the Credit Facility) plusan
applicable margin between 1.00% and 2.25% per annum for LIBOR loans and 0.00% and 1.25% per annum for base rate |oans depending on our then
current senior unsecured long-term debt rating. Our obligations under the Credit Facility are guaranteed by nine of our subsidiaries.

Term Loans, Revolving Line of Credit and Revolving Letter of Credit

On March 13, 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. amended its term loan agreement to reduce the interest rate payable by it thereunder and to modify some
covenants to provide additional flexibility.

On February 20, 2015, Qwest Corporation entered into aterm loan in the amount of $100 million with CoBank, ACB. The outstanding unpaid
principal amount of thisterm loan plus any accrued and unpaid interest is due on February 20, 2025. Interest is paid monthly based upon either the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) or the base rate (as defined in the credit agreement) plus an applicable margin between 1.50% to 2.50%
per annum for LIBOR loans and 0.50% to 1.50% per annum for base rate |oans depending on Qwest Corporation's then current senior unsecured
long-term debt rating. At December 31, 2015, the outstanding principal balance on this term loan was $100 million.
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In January 2015, CenturyLink, Inc. entered into a $100 million uncommitted revolving line of credit with one of the lenders under the Credit
Facility. The amount avail able under this uncommitted revolving line of credit isreduced by any amount outstanding under the Credit Facility with
the same lender. Interest is paid monthly based upon the LIBOR plus an applicable margin between 1.00% and 2.25% per annum. At December 31,
2015, CenturyLink, Inc. had $80 million borrowings outstanding under this uncommitted revolving line of credit.

In April 2011, we entered into a $160 million uncommitted revolving letter of credit facility which enables usto provide | etters of credit under
terms that may be more favorable than those under the Credit Facility. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, our outstanding letters of credit totaled $109
million and $124 million, respectively, under thisfacility.

Aggregate Maturities of Long-Term Debt

Set forth below is the aggregate principal amount of our long-term debt (excluding unamortized discounts, net and unamortized debt issuance
costs) maturing during the following years:

(Dallarsin millions)®@

2016 $ 1,503
2017 1,501
2018 251
2019 1,160
2020 1,032
2021 and thereafter 15,082
Total long-term debt $ 20,529

@ Actual principal paid in all years may differ due to the possible future refinancing of outstanding debt or the issuance of new debt.
Interest Expense

Interest expense includes interest on long-term debt. The following table presents the amount of grossinterest expense, net of capitalized
interest:

Y ear s Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(Dollarsin millions)
Interest expense:

Gross interest expense $ 1,364 1,358 1,339

Capitalized interest (52) (47) (42)
Total interest expense $ 1,312 1,311 1,298
Covenants

Certain of our loan agreements contain various restrictions, as described more fully below. Under current circumstances, we believe the
covenants currently in effect place no significant restriction on the transfer of funds from our consolidated subsidiaries to CenturyLink.

The senior notes of CenturyLink, Inc. wereissued under an indenture dated March 31, 1994. This indenture restricts our ability to (i) incur,
issue or create liens upon our property and (ii) consolidate with or merge into, or transfer or lease all or substantially all of our assetsto any other
party. The indenture does not contain any provisionsthat are impacted by our credit ratings or that restrict the issuance of new securitiesin the
event of amaterial adverse change to us. However, if the credit ratings relating to certain of our long-term debt securitiesissued under this
indenture are downgraded in the manner specified thereunder in connection with a"change of control" of CenturyLink, Inc., then we will be
required to offer to repurchase such debt securities.

The senior notes of Qwest Corporation were issued under indentures dated April 15, 1990 and October 15, 1999. These indentures contain
restrictions on the incurrence of liens and the consummation of certain transactions substantially similar to the above-described covenantsin
CenturyLink, Inc.'s March 31, 1994 indenture. The senior notes of Qwest Capital Funding, Inc. were issued under an indenture dated June 29, 1998
containing terms substantially similar to those set forth in Qwest Corporation's indentures.
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Embarq's senior notes were issued pursuant to an indenture dated as of May 17, 2006. While Embarq is generally prohibited from creating
liens on its property unlessits senior notes are secured equally and ratably, Embarq can create liens on its property without equally and ratably
securing its senior notes so long as the sum of all indebtedness so secured does not exceed 15% of Embarq's consolidated net tangible assets. The
indenture contains customary events of default, none of which areimpacted by Embard's credit rating.

None of the above-listed indentures of CenturyLink, Inc., Qwest Corporation, Qwest Capital Funding, Inc. and Embarq contain any financial
covenants or restrictions on the ability to issue new securities in accordance with the terms of the indenture.

Several of our Embarq subsidiaries have outstanding first mortgage bonds. Each issue of these first mortgage bonds is secured by
substantially all of the property, plant and equipment of theissuing subsidiary. Approximately 10% of our net property, plant and equipment is
pledged to secure the long-term debt of subsidiaries.

Under the Credit Facility, we, and our indirect subsidiary, Qwest Corporation, must maintain a debt to EBITDA (earnings beforeinterest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, as defined in our Credit Facility) ratio of not more than 4.0:1.0 and 2.85:1.0, respectively, as of the last day of
each fiscal quarter for the four quarters then ended. The Credit Facility also contains a negative pledge covenant, which generally requires usto
secure equally and ratably any advances under the Credit Facility if we pledge assets or permit liens on our property for the benefit of other
debtholders. The Credit Facility also has a cross payment default provision, and the Credit Facility and certain of our debt securities also have cross
acceleration provisions. When present, these provisions could have awider impact on liquidity than might otherwise arise from a default or
acceleration of asingle debt instrument. Our debt to EBITDA ratios could be adversely affected by awide range of events, including unforeseen
expenses or contingencies. This could reduce our financing flexibility due to potential restrictions on incurring additional debt under certain
provisions of our debt agreements or, in certain circumstances, could result in a default under certain provisions of such agreements.

CenturyLink, Inc. and Qwest Corporation are both indebted under term loans, each of which includes covenants substantially similar to those
set forth in the Credit Facility.

At December 31, 2015, we believe we were in compliance with all of the provisions and covenants contained in our Credit Facility and other
material debt agreements.

Guarantees

We do not guarantee the debt of any unaffiliated parties, but certain of our subsidiaries guarantee the outstanding senior notes issued by
other subsidiaries. In addition, seven of our largest non-regulated subsidiaries guarantee the obligations of (i) CenturyLink, Inc. under the Credit
Facility and itsterm loan and (ii) Qwest Corporation under itsterm loan.

Subsequent Event

In January 2016, Qwest Corporation issued $235 million aggregate principal amount of 7% Notes due 2056, in exchange for net proceeds, after
deducting underwriting discounts and other expenses, of approximately $227 million. All of the 7% Notes are unsecured obligations and may be
redeemed by Qwest Corporation, in whole or in part, on or after February 1, 2021, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount
redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

(4) Accounts Receivable

The following table presents details of our accounts receivable balances:

Asof December 31,

2015 2014
(Dollarsin millions)
Trade and purchased receivables $ 1,789 1,821
Earned and unbilled receivables 288 307
Other 18 22
Total accounts receivable 2,095 2,150
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (152) (162)
Accounts receivable, less allowance $ 1943 1,988
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We are exposed to concentrations of credit risk from residential and business customers within our local service area, business customers
outside of our local service areaand from other telecommunications service providers. We generally do not require collateral to secure our
receivable balances. We have agreements with other telecommunications service providers whereby we agree to bill and collect on their behalf for
services rendered by those providersto our customers within our local service area. We purchase accounts receivable from other
telecommunications service providers primarily on arecourse basis and include these amountsin our accounts receivabl e balance. We have not

experienced any significant loss associated with these purchased receivables.

The following table presents details of our allowance for doubtful accounts:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
(Dollarsin millions)
2015 $ 162 177 (187) 152
2014 $ 155 159 (152) 162
2013 $ 158 152 (155) 155
(5) Property, Plant and Equipment
Net property, plant and equipment is composed of the following:
Depreciable As of December 31,
Lives 2015 2014
(Dollarsin millions)
Land n/a $ 571 575
Fiber, conduit and other outside plant ® 15-45 16,166 15,151
Central office and other network electronics @ 3-10 14,144 13,248
Support assets ©) 3-30 7,000 6,578
Construction in progress ) n/a 904 1,166
Gross property, plant and equi pment 38,785 36,718
Accumulated depreciation (20,716) (18,285)
Net property, plant and equipment $ 18,069 18,433

@

(@)

customers.
(©)
4

under construction.

Fiber, conduit and other outside plant consists of fiber and metallic cable, conduit, poles and other supporting structures.

Central office and other network electronics consists of circuit and packet switches, routers, transmission electronics and electronics providing service to

Support assets consist of buildings, data centers, computers and other administrative and support equipment.

Construction in progress includes inventory held for construction and property of the aforementioned categories that has not been placed in service asit is still

We recorded depreciation expense of $2.836 billion, $2.958 billion and $2.952 hillion for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,

respectively.

In 2014, we recorded an impairment charge of $17 million in connection with a sale-leaseback transaction involving an office building which
closed in the fourth quarter of 2014. Thisimpairment chargeisincluded in selling, general and administrative expense in our consolidated statement

of operationsfor the year ended December 31, 2014.
Ad(ditionally, in 2014 we sold an office building for $12 million.

Asset Retirement Obligations

At December 31, 2015, our asset retirement obligations balance was primarily related to estimated future costs of removing equipment from
leased properties and estimated future costs of properly disposing of asbestos and other hazardous materials upon remodeling or demolishing
buildings. Asset retirement obligations are included in other long-term liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets.
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The following table provides asset retirement obligation activity:

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Dollarsin millions)
Balance at beginning of year $ 107 106 106
Accretion expense 7 7 7
Liabilitiesincurred — 6 =
Liabilities settled 2 2 (4)
Changein estimate (21) (10) ®)
Balance at end of year $ a 107 106

During 2015, 2014 and 2013, we revised our estimates for the cost of removal of network egquipment, asbestos remediation, and other
obligations by $21 million, $10 million and $3 million, respectively. These revisions resulted in areduction of the asset retirement obligation and
offsetting reduction to gross property, plant and equipment and revisions to assets specifically identified are recorded as a reduction to accretion
expense.

(6) Severance and L eased Real Estate

Periodically, we have reductionsin our workforce and have accrued liabilities for the related severance costs. These workforce reductions
resulted primarily from the progression or completion of our post-acquisition integration plans, increased competitive pressures, cost reduction
initiatives and reduced workload demands due to the loss of customers purchasing certain legacy services.

We report severance liabilities within accrued expenses and other liabilities - salaries and benefits in our consolidated balance sheets and
report severance expenses in cost of services and products and selling, general and administrative expensesin our consolidated statements of
operations. As noted in Note 12—Segment | nformation, we do not all ocate these severance expenses to our segments.

We have recognized liabilities to reflect our estimates of the fair values of the existing |ease obligations for real estate for which we have
ceased using, net of estimated sublease rentals. Our fair value estimates were determined using discounted cash flow methods. We recognize
expense to reflect accretion of the discounted liabilities and periodically, we adjust the expense when our actual subleasing experience differsfrom
our initial estimates. We report the current portion of liabilities for ceased-use real estate leasesin accrued expenses and other liabilities-other and
report the noncurrent portion in deferred credits and other liabilitiesin our consolidated balance sheets. We report the related expensesin selling,
general and administrative expensesin our consolidated statements of operations. At December 31, 2015, the current and noncurrent portions of our
leased real estate accrual were $9 million and $71 million, respectively. The remaining lease terms range from 0.3 yearsto 10 years, with aweighted
average of 8 years.

Changesin our accrued liabilities for severance expenses and leased real estate were as follows:

Severance Real Estate
(Dallarsin millions)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 17 113
Accrued to expense 87 1
Payments, net (78) (16)
Reversals and adjustments — 2
Balance at December 31, 2014 26 9%
Accrued to expense 96 —
Payments, net (208) (13)
Reversals and adjustments — (3
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 14 80
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(7) Employee Benefits
Pension, Post-Retirement and Other Post-Employment Benefits

We sponsor various defined benefit pension plans (qualified and non-qualified), which in the aggregate cover a substantial portion of our
employeesincluding legacy CenturyLink, legacy Qwest Communications International, Inc. ("Qwest") and legacy Embarqg employees. On
December 31, 2014, we merged our existing qualified pension plans, which included merging the Qwest Pension Plan and Embarqg Retirement
Pension Plan into the CenturyLink Retirement Plan. The CenturyLink Retirement Plan was renamed the CenturyLink Combined Pension Plan
("Combined Plan"). Pension benefits for participants of the new Combined Plan who are represented by a collective bargaining agreement are based
on negotiated schedules. All other participants' pension benefits are based on each individual participant's years of service and compensation. We
also maintain non-qualified pension plans for certain current and former highly compensated employees. We maintain post-retirement benefit plans
that provide health care and life insurance benefits for certain eligible retirees. We al so provide other post-employment benefits for eligible former
employees. We use a December 31 measurement date for all our plans.

Pension Benefits

Current funding laws regquire a company with a pension shortfall to fund the annual cost of benefits earned in addition to a seven-year
amortization of the shortfall. Our funding policy for our Combined Plan isto make contributions with the objective of accumulating sufficient assets
to pay all qualified pension benefits when due under the terms of the plan. The accounting unfunded status of our qualified pension plan was
$2.215 hillion and $2.403 billion as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

In 2015, we made a voluntary cash contribution of $100 million to our qualified pension plan and paid approximately $6 million of benefits
directly to participants of our non-qualified pension plans. Based on current laws and circumstances, we are not reguired to make any contributions
to our qualified pension plan in 2016, but we estimate that we will pay approximately $5 million of benefits to participants of our non-quaified
pension plans.

Our pension plans contain provisions that allow us, from time to time, to offer lump sum payment options to certain former employeesin
settlement of their future retirement benefits. We record these payments as a settlement only if, in the aggregate, they exceed the sum of the annual
service and interest costs for the plan's net periodic pension benefit costs, which represents the settlement threshold. In September 2015, we offered
to make cash settlement paymentsin December 2015 to agroup of former employees provided they accepted the offer by the end of October 2015.
During the fourth quarter of 2015, we made cash settlement payments for the lump sum offer of approximately $356 million. The total amount of the
lump sum settlement payments for the year ended December 31, 2015, which included the lump sum offer and lump sum elections from employees
who terminated employment during the year, was |ess than the settlement threshold, therefore settlement accounting was not triggered in 2015. On
December 8, 2014, lump sum pension settlement payments to terminated, but not-yet-retired legacy Qwest participants was $460 million, which
exceeded the settlement threshold of $418 million. As aresult, we were required to recognize a settlement charge of $63 millionin 2014 to accelerate
the recognition of a portion of the previously unrecognized actuarial losses in the qualified pension plan, which has been allocated and reflected in
cost of services and products (exclusive of depreciation and amortization) and selling, general and administrative in our consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2014. This charge reduced our recorded net income and retained earnings, with an offset to accumul ated
other comprehensive loss in shareholders’ equity. The amount of any future non-cash settlement charges will depend on the level of lump sum
benefit payments made in 2016 and beyond.

Post-Retirement Benefits

Our post-retirement benefit plans provide post-retirement benefits to qualified retirees and alow (i) eligible employees retiring before certain
datesto receive benefits at no or reduced cost and (ii) eligible employees retiring after certain dates to receive benefits on a shared cost basis. The
post-retirement benefits not paid by the trust are funded by us and we expect to continue funding these post-retirement obligations as benefits are
paid. The accounting unfunded status of our qualified post-retirement benefit plan was $3.374 billion and $3.477 billion as of December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively.

No contributions were made to the post-retirement trusts in 2015, and we do not expect to make a contribution in 2016. However, in 2015 we
paid approximately $116 million of benefits (net of participant contributions and direct subsidies) that were not payable by the trusts. We estimate
that in 2016, we will pay approximately $137 million of benefits (net of participant contributions and direct subsidies) that are not payable by the
trusts.

We expect our health care cost trend rate to decrease between 0.05% to 0.10% per year from 5.00% in 2016 to an ultimate rate of 4.50% in 2025.
Our post-retirement benefit expense, for certain eligible legacy Qwest retirees and certain eligible legacy CenturyLink retirees, is capped at a set
dollar amount. Therefore, those health care benefit obligations are not subject to increasing health care trends after the effective date of the caps.
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A change of 100 basis pointsin the assumed initial health care cost trend rate would have had the following effectsin 2015:

100 Basis
Points Change

Increase (Decrease)

(Dollarsin millions)

Effect on the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of net periodic post-retirement benefit
expense (consolidated statement of operations) $ 3 (3

Effect on benefit obligation (consolidated balance sheet) 73 (68)
Expected Cash Flows

The qualified pension, non-qualified pension and post-retirement health care benefit payments and premiums and life insurance premium
payments are paid by us or distributed from plan assets. The estimated benefit payments provided below are based on actuarial assumptions using
the demographics of the employee and retiree populations and have been reduced by estimated participant contributions.

Post-Retirement MedicarePart D
Pension Plans Benefit Plans Subsidy Receipts

(Dollarsin millions)
Estimated future benefit payments:

2016 $ 1,059 309 )
2017 1,010 300 ©)
2018 991 290 )
2019 973 283 )
2020 954 276 )
2021 - 2025 4,433 1,256 (30)

Net Periodic Benefit Expense

The actuarial assumptions used to compute the net periodic benefit expense for our qualified pension, non-qualified pension and post-
retirement benefit plans are based upon information available as of the beginning of the year, as presented in the following table.

Pension Plans Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

Actuarial assumptions at beginning of year:

Discount rate 3.50% - 4.10% 4.20% - 5.10% 3.50% - 4.20% 3.80% 4.50% 3.60%
Rate of compensation increase 3.25% 3.25% 3.25% N/A N/A N/A
Expected long-term rate of return on plan

assets 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 6.00% - 7.50% 6.00% - 7.30%
Initial health care cost trend rate N/A N/A N/A 6.00% / 6.50% 6.00% / 6.50% 6.50% / 7.00%
Ultimate health care cost trend rate N/A N/A N/A 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%
Y ear ultimate trend rate is reached N/A N/A N/A 2025 2024 2022

N/A-Not applicable
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Net periodic (income) expense for our qualified and non-qualified pension plansincludes the following components:

Pension Plans
Y ear s Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Dollarsin millions)
Service cost $ 83 77 91
Interest cost 568 602 544
Expected return on plan assets (898) (891) (896)
Settlements — 63 —
Recognition of prior service cost 5 5 5
Recognition of actuarial loss 161 22 84
Net periodic pension benefit income $ (81) (122) (172)

Net periodic expense (income) for our post-retirement benefit plans includes the following components:

Post-Retirement Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Dollarsin millions)
Service cost $ 24 22 24
Interest cost 140 159 140
Expected return on plan assets (21) (33) (39)
Recognition of prior service cost 19 20 —
Recognition of actuarial loss — — 4
$ 162 168 129

Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense

We report net periodic benefit (income) expense for our qualified pension, non-qualified pension and post-retirement benefit plansin both
cost of services and products and selling, general and administrative expenses on our consolidated statements of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Benefit Obligations

The actuarial assumptions used to compute the funded status for the plans are based upon information available as of December 31, 2015 and
2014 and are asfollows:

Pension Plans Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
December 31, December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Actuarial assumptions at end of year:

Discount rate 3.50% - 4.50% 3.50% - 4.10% 4.15% 3.80%
Rate of compensation increase 3.25% 3.25% N/A N/A
Initial health care cost trend rate N/A N/A 5.00% / 5.25% 6.00% / 6.50%
Ultimate health care cost trend rate N/A N/A 4.50% 4.50%
Y ear ultimate trend rateis reached N/A N/A 2025 2024

N/A-Not applicable

In 2015, we adopted the revised mortality table and projection scale released by the Society of Actuaries ("SOA"), which decreased the
projected benefit obligation of our benefit plans by $379 million. In 2014, to better reflect the expected lifetimes of our plan participants, we adopted
anew mortality table for our defined benefit plan. The table used was based on SOA tables and increased the projected benefit obligation by
approximately $1.3 billion. The 2014 increase in the projected obligation was recognized as part of the net actuarial loss and isincluded in the other
comprehensive loss, aportion of which is subject to be amortized over the remaining estimated life of plan participants (approximately 8 years).
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The following tables summarize the change in the benefit obligations for the pension and post-retirement benefit plans:

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Plan amendments
Actuarial loss (gain)
Settlements
Benefits paid by company
Benefits paid from plan assets
Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in benefit obligation

Pension Plans
Y ear s Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(Dollarsin millions)

15,042 13,401 14,881
83 7 91
568 602 544
(100) 4 —
(800) 2,269 (1179)
— (460) —

(6) (©) ®)
(1,438) (845) (931)
13,349 15,042 13,401

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(Dollarsin millions)

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 3,830 3,688 4,075
Service cost 24 22 24

I nterest cost 140 159 140
Participant contributions 57 69 9%
Plan amendments — 23 141
Direct subsidy receipts 8 9 13
Actuarial loss (gain) (148) 245 (399)
Benefits paid by company (181) (166) (266)
Benefits paid from plan assets (163) (219) (136)
3,567 3,830 3,688

Benefit obligation at end of year

Our aggregate benefit obligation as of December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $16.916 hillion, $18.872 hillion and $17.089 hillion, respectively.

Plan Assets

We maintain plan assets for our qualified pension plan and certain post-retirement benefit plans. The qualified pension plan's assets are used
for the payment of pension benefits and certain eligible plan expenses. The post-retirement benefit plan's assets are used to pay health care benefits
and premiums on behalf of eligible retirees and to pay certain eligible plan expenses. The expected rate of return on plan assetsis the long-term rate
of return we expect to earn on the plans' assets, net of administrative expenses paid from plan assets. The rate of return is determined by the
strategic allocation of plan assets and the long-term risk and return forecast for each asset class. The forecasts for each asset class are generated
primarily from an analysis of the long-term expectations of various third party investment management organizations. The expected rate of return on
plan assetsis reviewed annually and revised, as necessary, to reflect changesin the financial markets and our investment strategy.
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The following tables summarize the change in the fair value of plan assets for the pension and post-retirement benefit plans:

Pension Plans
Y ear s Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(Dollarsin millions)
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 12,571 12,346 12,321
Return on plan assets (161) 1,373 810
Employer contributions 100 157 146
Settlements — (460) —
Benefits paid from plan assets (1,438) (845) (931)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 11,072 12571 12,346

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
Y ears Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(Dallarsin millions)
Changein plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 353 535 626
Return on plan assets 3 37 45
Benefits paid from plan assets (163) (219) (136)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 193 353 535

Pension Plans: Our investment objective for the qualified pension plan assetsisto achieve an attractive risk-adjusted return over time that
will provide for the payment of benefits and minimize therisk of large losses. Our pension plan investment strategy is designed to meet this
objective by broadly diversifying plan assets across numerous strategies with differing expected returns, volatilities and correlations. The pension
plan assets have target allocations of 45% to interest rate sensitive investments and 55% to investments designed to provide higher expected
returns than the interest rate sensitive investments. Interest rate sensitive investments include 30% of plan assets targeted primarily to long-
duration investment grade bonds, 10% targeted to high yield and emerging market bonds and 5% targeted to diversified strategies, which primarily
have exposures to global bonds, as well as some exposures to global stocks and commodities. Assets expected to provide higher returns than the
interest rate sensitive assets include broadly diversified equity investments with targets of approximately 15% to U.S. equity markets and 15% to
non-U.S. developed and emerging markets. Approximately 7% is targeted to broadly diversified multi-asset class strategies that have the flexibility
to adjust exposures to different asset classes. Approximately 10% is allocated to private markets investments including funds primarily invested in
private equity, private debt and hedge funds. Real estate investments are targeted at 8% of plan assets. At the beginning of 2016, our expected
annual long-term rate of return on pension assets before consideration of administrative expensesis assumed to be 7.5%. However, projected
increasesin PBGC (Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation) premium rates have now become large enough to reduce the annual long-term expected
return net of administrative expensesto 7.0%.

Our non-qualified pension plans are not funded. We pay benefits directly to the participants of these plans.
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Post-Retirement Benefit Plans: Our investment objective for the post-retirement benefit plans' assetsis to achieve an attractive risk-adjusted
return and minimize the risk of large losses over the expected life of the assets. Investment risk is managed by broadly diversifying assets across
numerous strategies with differing expected returns, volatilities and correlations. Our investment strategy is designed to be consistent with the
investment objective, with particular focus on providing liquidity for the reimbursement of our union-represented employees' post-retirement health
care costs. Theliquid post-retirement benefit plan assets (excluding private market investments) have target all ocations of 20% to equities and 80%
to non-equity investments. Specific target allocations within these broad categories are allowed to vary to meet reimbursement requirements. Liquid
equity investments are broadly diversified with exposure to publicly traded U.S., non-U.S. and emerging market stocks. The 80% non-equity
alocation includes investment grade bonds, real estate, hedge funds and diversified strategies. While no new private market investments have been
made in recent years, the percent allocation to existing private market investments is expected to increase as liquid, publicly traded stocks are drawn
down for the reimbursement of health care costs. At the beginning of 2016, our expected annual long-term rate of return on post-retirement benefit
plan assetsis assumed to be 7.0%.

Permitted investments: Plan assets are managed consistent with the restrictions set forth by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, as amended, which requires diversification of assets and also generally prohibits defined benefit and welfare plans from investing more than
10% of their assets in securitiesissued by the sponsor company. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the pension and post-retirement benefit plans did
not directly own any shares of our common stock or any of our debt.

Derivative instruments: Derivative instruments are used to reduce risk as well as provide return. The pension and post-retirement benefit
plans use exchange traded futures and swaps to gain exposure to equity and interest rate markets consistent with target asset allocations and to
reduce risk relative to measurement of the benefit obligation, which is sensitive to interest rate changes. Foreign exchange forward contracts are
used to manage currency exposures. Credit default swaps are used to manage credit risk exposures in a cost effective and targeted manner relative
to transacting with physical corporate fixed income securities. Options are currently used to manage interest rate exposure taking into account the
implied volatility and current pricing of the specific underlying market instrument. Some derivative instruments subject the plans to counterparty
risk. The external investment managers, a ong with Plan Management, monitor counterparty exposure and mitigate thisrisk by diversifying the
exposure among multiple high credit quality counterparties, requiring collateral and limiting exposure by periodically settling contracts.

The gross notional exposure of the derivative instruments directly held by the plansis shown below. The notional amount of the derivatives
corresponds to market exposure but does not represent an actual cash investment.

Gross Notional Exposure

Post-Retirement
Pension Plans Benefit Plans

Y ears Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(Dollarsin millions)

Derivative instruments:

Exchange-traded U.S. equity futures $ 79 134 — 7
Exchange-traded Treasury and other interest rate futures 1,767 2,451 — —
Interest rate swaps 550 579 — —
Credit default swaps 189 382 — —
Foreign exchange forwards 992 1,195 — 13
Options 285 529 — —

Fair Value Measurements: Fair valueis defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly
transaction between independent and knowl edgeabl e parties who are willing and able to transact for an asset or liability at the measurement date.
We use valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when determining fair value
and then we rank the estimated values based on the reliability of the inputs used following the fair value hierarchy set forth by the FASB. For
additional information on the fair value hierarchy, see Note 10—Fair Value Disclosure.
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At December 31, 2015, we used the following val uation techniques to measure fair value for assets. There were no changes to these
methodol ogies during 2015:

* Level 1—Assetswere valued using the closing price reported in the active market in which the individual security was traded.

+ Level 2—Assetswere valued using quoted pricesin markets that are not active, broker dealer quotations, net asset value of shares held by
the plans and other methods by which al significant inputs were observable at the measurement date.

* Level 3—Assets were valued using unobservable inputsin which little or no market data exists as reported by the respective institutions
at the measurement date.

Thetables below present the fair value of plan assets by category and the input levels used to determine those fair values at December 31,
2015. It isimportant to note that the asset all ocations do not include market exposures that are gained with derivatives. Investments include
dividend and interest receivables, pending trades and accrued expenses.

Fair Value of Pension Plan Assetsat December 31, 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollarsin millions)
Investment grade bonds (a) $ 841 1,045 —  $ 1,886
High yield bonds (b) — 544 13 557
Emerging market bonds (c) 208 232 1 441
Convertible bonds (d) — 2 — 2
U.S. stocks (f) 1,201 — — 1,201
Non-U.S. stocks (g) 1,127 1 — 1,128
Multi-asset strategies (m) 376 — — 376
Derivatives (n) 2 (6) — 4
Cash equivalents and short-term investments (0) = 192 — 192
Total investments, excluding investments valued at NAV $ 3,755 2,010 14 5,779
Investments valued at NAV 5,293
Total pension plan assets $ 11,072

Fair Value of Post-Retirement Plan Assets
at December 31, 2015

Leve 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollarsin millions)

Investment grade bonds (a) $ 2 1 — 3

High yield bonds (b) — 1 — 1
U.S. stocks (f) 16 — — 16
Non-U.S. stocks (g) 12 — — 12
Emerging market stocks (h) 4 — — 4
Cash equivalents and short-term investments (o) — 4 — 4
Total investments, excluding investments valued at NAV $ 34 6 = 40
Investments valued at NAV 153
Total post-retirement plan assets $ 193
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Thetables below present the fair value of plan assets by category and the input levels used to determine those fair values at December 31,
2014. 1t isimportant to note that the asset allocations do not include market exposures that are gained with derivatives. Investmentsinclude

dividend and interest receivable, pending trades and accrued expenses.

Investment grade bonds (a)

High yield bonds (b)

Emerging market bonds (c)

Convertible bonds (d)

U.S. stocks (f)

Non-U.S. stocks (g)

Derivatives (n)

Cash equivalents and short-term investments (0)

Total investments, excluding investments valued at NAV
Investments valued at NAV

Total pension plan assets

Investment grade bonds (a)

High yield bonds (b)

U.S. stocks (f)

Non-U.S. stocks (g)

Emerging market stocks (h)

Cash equivalents and short-term investments (0)

Total investments, excluding investments valued at NAV
Investments valued at NAV

Total post-retirement plan assets

Fair Value of Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollarsin millions)
$ 1,068 1,278 — 3 2,346
— 647 7 654
208 407 — 615
— — 4
1,389 — 1,390
1,169 — 1,170
2 15 — 17
— 626 — 626
$ 3,836 2,979 7 6,822
5,749
$ 12,571
Fair Value of Post-Retirement Plan Assets
at December 31, 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollarsin millions)
$ 5 1 — $ 6
— 1 — 1
35 — — 35
33 — — 33
6 — — 6
— 8 — 8
$ 79 10 — 89
264
$ 353
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Thetable below presentsthe fair value of plan assets valued at NAV by category for our pension and post-retirement plans at December 31,
2015 and 2014. See Note 1 - Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for additional information regarding the 2015
adoption of ASU 2015-07.

Fair Value of Plan AssetsValued at NAV

Pension Plans at Post-Retirement Benefit Plans at
December 31, December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(Dollarsin millions)
Investment grade bonds (a) $ 115 148 35 71
High yield bonds (b) 512 860 1 14
Emerging market bonds (c) 9 27 — —
Convertible bonds (d) — 10 — —
Diversified strategies (€) 516 718 54 89
U.S. stocks (f) 70 86 — —
Non-U.S. stocks (g) 289 384 — —
Emerging market stocks (h) 64 102 — —
Private equity (i) 526 673 21 28
Private debt (j) 371 394 2 3
Market neutral hedge funds (k) 825 1,026 17 25
Directional hedge funds (k) 594 558 1 1
Real estate (1) 968 699 20 28
Multi-asset strategies (m) 386 — — —
Cash equivalents and short-term investments (0) 48 64 2 5
Total investments valued at NAV $ 5,293 5,749 153 264

The plans' assets are invested in various asset categories utilizing multiple strategies and investment managers. For several of the
investments in the tables above and discussed below, the plans own unitsin commingled funds and limited partnerships that invest in various
types of assets. Interests in commingled funds are valued using the net asset value ("NAV") per unit of each fund. The NAV reported by the fund
manager is based on the market value of the underlying investments owned by each fund, minusitsliabilities, divided by the number of shares
outstanding. Commingled funds can be redeemed at NAV within ayear of the financial statement date. Investmentsin limited partnerships represent
long-term commitments with afixed maturity date, typically ten yearsand are also valued at NAV. Valuation inputs for these limited partnership
interests are generally based on assumptions and other information not observable in the market. The assumptions and val uation methodol ogies of
the pricing vendors, account managers, fund managers and partnerships are monitored and eval uated for reasonableness. Below is an overview of
the asset categories, the underlying strategies and valuation inputs used to value the assets in the preceding tables:

(a) Investment grade bonds represent investments in fixed income securities as well as commingled bond funds comprised of U.S.
Treasury securities, agencies, corporate bonds, mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed securities and commercial mortgage-backed securities.
Treasury securities are valued at the bid price reported in the active market in which the security istraded and are classified asLevel 1. The
valuation inputs of other investment grade bonds primarily utilize observable market information and are based on a spread to U.S. Treasury
securities and consider yields available on comparabl e securities of issuers with similar credit ratings. The primary observableinputsinclude
references to the new issue market for similar securities, the secondary trading markets and dealer quotes. Option adjusted spread models are
utilized to evaluate securities such as asset backed securities that have early redemption features. These securities are classified as Level 2. The
commingled funds are valued at NAV based on the market value of the underlying fixed income securities using the same valuation inputs
described above.

(b) High yield bonds represent investmentsin bel ow investment grade fixed income securities aswell as commingled high yield bond
funds. The valuation inputs for the securities primarily utilize observable market information and are based on a spread to U.S. Treasury securities
and consider yields available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings. These securities are primarily classified asLevel 2. The
commingled funds are valued at NAV based on the market val ue of the underlying high yield instruments using the same valuation inputs described
above.
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(c) Emerging market bonds represent investments in securities issued by governments and other entities located in developing
countries as well as registered mutual funds and commingled emerging market bond funds. The valuation inputs for the securities utilize observable
market information and are primarily based on dealer quotes or a spread relative to the local government bonds. The registered mutual fund is
classified asLevel 1 whileindividual securities are classified as Level 2. The commingled funds are valued at NAV based on the market value of the
underlying emerging market bonds using the same valuation inputs described above.

(d) Convertible bonds primarily represent investments in corporate debt securities that have features that allow the debt to be converted
into equity securities under certain circumstances. The valuation inputs for the individual convertible bonds primarily utilize observable market
information including a spread to U.S. Treasuries and the value and volatility of the underlying equity security. Convertible bonds are classified as
Level 2.

(e) Diversified strategies represent an investment in acommingled fund that primarily has exposures to global government, corporate
and inflation linked bonds, global stocks and commodities. The commingled fund isvalued at NAV based on the market value of the underlying
investments. The valuation inputs utilize observable market information including published prices for exchange traded securities, bid prices for
government bonds, and spreads and yields available for comparable fixed income securities with similar credit ratings.

(f) U.S. stocks represent investments in stocks of U.S. based companies aswell as commingled U.S. stock funds. The valuation inputs for
U.S. stocks are based on the last published price reported on the major stock market on which the securities are traded and are classified as Level 1.
The commingled funds are valued at NAV based on the market val ue of the underlying investments using the same valuation inputs described
above.

(g) Non-U.S. stocks represent investments in stocks of companies based in developed countries outside the U.S. aswell as commingled
funds. The valuation inputs for non-U.S. stocks are based on the last published price reported on the major stock market on which the securities are
traded and are primarily classified asLevel 1. The commingled funds are valued at NAV based on the market value of the underlying investments
using the same valuation inputs described above.

(h) Emerging market stocks represent investmentsin aregistered mutual fund and commingled funds comprised of stocks of companies
located in developing markets. Registered mutual funds trade at the daily NAV, as determined by the market value of the underlying investments,
and are classified as Level 1. The commingled funds are valued at NAV based on the market val ue of the underlying investments using the same
valuation inputs described previously for individual stocks.

(i) Private equity represents non-public investments in domestic and foreign buy out and venture capital funds. Private equity funds are
structured as limited partnerships and are valued according to the valuation policy of each partnership, subject to prevailing accounting and other
regulatory guidelines. The partnerships are valued at NAV using valuation methodol ogies that give consideration to arange of factors, including
but not limited to the price at which investments were acquired, the nature of the investments, market conditions, trading values on comparable
public securities, current and projected operating performance, and financing transactions subsequent to the acquisition of the investments. These
valuation methodol ogies involve a significant degree of judgment.

(j) Private debt represents non-public investmentsin distressed or mezzanine debt funds. Mezzanine debt instruments are debt
instruments that are subordinated to other debt issues and may include embedded equity instruments such as warrants. Private debt funds are
structured as limited partnerships and are valued at NAV according to the val uation policy of each partnership, subject to prevailing accounting
and other regulatory guidelines. The valuation of underlying fund investments are based on factors including the issuer's current and projected
credit worthiness, the security's terms, reference to the securities of comparable companies, and other market factors. These valuation
methodologies involve a significant degree of judgment.

(k) Market neutral hedge funds hold investmentsin adiversified mix of instruments that are intended in combination to exhibit low
correlations to market fluctuations. These investments are typically combined with futures to achieve uncorrelated excess returns over various
markets. Directional hedge funds—This asset category represents investments that may exhibit somewhat higher correlations to market
fluctuations than the market neutral hedge funds. Investments in hedge funds include both direct investments and investmentsin diversified funds
of funds. Hedge Funds are valued at NAV based on the market value of the underlying investments which include publicly traded equity and fixed
income securities and privately negotiated debt securities. The hedge funds are valued by third party administrators using the same valuation
inputs previously described.
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(1) Real estate represents investments in commingled funds and limited partnershipsthat invest in adiversified portfolio of real estate
properties. These investments are valued at NAV according to the valuation policy of each fund or partnership, subject to prevailing accounting
and other regulatory guidelines. The valuation inputs of the underlying properties are generally based on third-party appraisals that use comparable
sales or a projection of future cash flowsto determine fair value.

(m) Multi-asset strategiesisanew allocation in 2015 and represents broadly diversified strategies that have the flexibility to tactically
adjust exposures to different asset classes through time. This asset category includesinvestmentsin aregistered mutual fund which is classified as
Level 1 and acommingled fund which isvalued at NAV based on the market value of the underlying investments.

(n) Derivatives include exchange traded futures contracts which are classified as Level 1, aswell as privately negotiated over-the-
counter swaps and options that are valued based on the change in interest rates or a specific market index and are classified as Level 2. The market
values represent gains or losses that occur dueto fluctuations in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, security prices, or other factors.

(0) Cash equivalents and short-terminvestments represent investments that are used in conjunction with derivatives positions or are
used to provide liquidity for the payment of benefits or other purposes. The valuation inputs of securities are based on a spread to U.S. Treasury
Bills, the Federal Funds Rate, or London Interbank Offered Rate and consider yields available on comparable securities of issuerswith similar credit
ratings and are classified as Level 2. The commingled funds are valued at NAV based on the market value of the underlying investments using the
same valuation inputs described above.

Concentrations of Risk: Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as significant world events, interest rate, credit, foreign
currency and overall market volatility risk. These risks are managed by broadly diversifying assets across numerous asset classes and strategies
with differing expected returns, volatilities and correlations. Risk is also broadly diversified across numerous market sectors and individual
companies. Financial instruments that potentially subject the plansto concentrations of counterparty risk consist principally of investment
contracts with high quality financial institutions. These investment contracts are typically collateralized obligations and/or are actively managed,
limiting the amount of counterparty exposure to any one financial institution. Although the investments are well diversified, the value of plan assets
could change materially depending upon the overall market volatility, which could affect the funded status of the plans.

Thetable below presents arollforward of the pension plan assets valued using Level 3 inputs:

Pension Plan AssetsValued Using Level 3 Inputs

High
Yield Emerging Market
Bonds Bonds Total
(Dollarsin millions)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ = = =
Net transfers 6 —
Acquisitions 1 — 1
Dispositions (3) — (3)
Actual return on plan assets:
Gains relating to assets sold during the year 4 — 4
(Losses) gainsrelating to assets still held at year-end (2) — (1)
Baance at December 31, 2014 7 — 7
Net transfers 4 1 5
Acquisitions 4 — 4
Dispositions 2 — 2
Actual return on plan assets:
Gains relating to assets sold during the year — — —
(Losses) gainsrelating to assets still held at year-end — — —
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 13 1 14

Certain gains and losses are all ocated between assets sold during the year and assets still held at year-end based on transactions and
changesin valuations that occurred during the year. These allocations also impact our cal culation of net acquisitions and dispositions.
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For the year ended December 31, 2015, the investment program produced actual losses on qualified pension and post-retirement plan assets
of $158 million as compared to expected returns of $919 million for a difference of $1.077 billion. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the
investment program produced actual gains on pension and post-retirement plan assets of $1.410 billion as compared to the expected returns of $924
million for a difference of $486 million. The short-term annual returns on plan assets will almost always be different from the expected long-term
returns and the plans could experience net gains or losses, due primarily to the volatility occurring in the financial markets during any given year.

Unfunded Status

The following table presents the unfunded status of the pensions and post-retirement benefit plans:

Post-Retirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans
Y ears Ended December 31, Y ears Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(Dollarsin millions)

Benefit obligation $ (13,349) (15,042) (3,567) (3,830)
Fair value of plan assets 11,072 12,571 193 353
Unfunded status (2217) (2411) (3374) (3477)
Current portion of unfunded status $ (5) (6) (135) (134)
Non-current portion of unfunded status $ (2,272 (2,465) (3,239) (3,343)

The current portion of our post-retirement benefit obligationsis recorded on our consolidated balance sheets in accrued expenses and other
current liabilities-salaries and benefits.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss-Recognition and Deferrals

The following tables present cumulative items not recognized as a component of net periodic benefits expense as of December 31, 2014, items
recognized as a component of net periodic benefits expense in 2015, additional items deferred during 2015 and cumul ative items not recognized as a
component of net periodic benefits expense as of December 31, 2015. The items not recognized as a component of net periodic benefits expense
have been recorded on our consolidated balance sheets in accumul ated other comprehensive loss:

Asof and for the Years Ended December 31,

Recognition
of Net
Periodic Net
Benefits Changein
2014 Expense Deferrals AOCL 2015
(Dallarsin millions)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Pension plans:
Net actuarial (loss) gain $ (2,760) 161 (258) 97) (2,857)
Prior service (cost) benefit (32) 5 9 104 72
Deferred income tax benefit (expense) 1,072 (63) 61 2 1,070
Total pension plans (1,720) 103 (98) 5 (1,715)
Post-retirement benefit plans:
Net actuarial (loss) gain (277) — 130 130 (147)
Prior service (cost) benefit (166) 19 — 19 (147)
Deferred income tax benefit (expense) 171 W) (50) (57) 114
Total post-retirement benefit plans (272) 12 80 92 (180)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (1,992) 115 (18) 97 (1,89%)

103



The following table presents estimated items to be recognized in 2016 as a component of net periodic benefit expense of the pension, non-
qualified pension and post-retirement benefit plans:

Pension Post-Retirement
Plans Plans

(Dollarsin millions)
Estimated recognition of net periodic benefit (cost)/incomein 2016:

Net actuarial loss $ (168) —
Prior service (cost)/income 8 (20)
Deferred income tax benefit 61 8
Estimated net periodic benefit expense to be recorded in 2016 as a component of other comprehensive
income (loss) $ (99 (12

Medicare Prescription Drug, | mprovement and Modernization Act of 2003

We sponsor post-retirement health care plans with several benefit options that provide prescription drug benefits that we deem actuarially
equivalent to or exceeding Medicare Part D. We recognize the impact of the federal subsidy received under the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 in the calculation of our post-retirement benefit obligation and net periodic post-retirement benefit
expense.

Other Benefit Plans
Health Careand Life Insurance

We provide health care and life insurance benefits to essentially all of our active employees. We are largely self-funded for the cost of the
health care plan. Our health care benefit expense for current employees was $381 million, $381 million and $362 million for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Union-represented employee benefits are based on negotiated collective bargaining agreements.
Employees contributed $125 million, $136 million and $117 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our group
basic lifeinsurance plans are fully insured and the premiums are paid by us.

401(k) Plans

We sponsor qualified defined contribution plans covering substantially all of our employees. Under these plans, employees may contribute a
percentage of their annual compensation up to certain maximums, as defined by the plans and by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"). Currently,
we match a percentage of employee contributionsin cash. At both December 31, 2015 and 2014, the assets of the plansincluded approximately 8
million shares of our common stock as aresult of the combination of previous employer match and participant directed contributions. We
recognized expenses related to these plans of $83 million, $81 million and $89 million and for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plans

We sponsored non-qualified unfunded deferred compensation plans for various groups that included certain of our current and former highly
compensated employees. The value of liabilities related to these plans was not significant.

(8) Share-based Compensation

We maintain equity programs that allow our Board of Directors (through its Compensation Committee or our Chief Executive Officer asits
delegate) to grant incentives to certain employees and our outside directorsin any one or acombination of several forms, including incentive and
non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units and market and performance shares. Stock
options generally expire ten years from the date of grant. Until June 30, 2014, we offered an employee stock purchase plan, which allowed eligible
employees to purchase our common stock at a 15% discount based on the lower of the beginning or ending stock price during recurring six month
offering periods.
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Stock Options

The following table summarizes activity involving stock option awards for the year ended December 31, 2015:

Weighted-
Average
Number of Exercise
Options Price
(in thousands)

Outstanding and Exercisable at December 31, 2014 4106 $ 37.99
Exercised (335) 26.00
Forfeited/Expired (246) 30.33

Outstanding and Exercisable at December 31, 2015 3,525 39.67

The aggregate intrinsic value of our options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2015 was $1 million. The weighted average
remaining contractual term for such optionswas 1.9 years.

During 2015, we received net cash proceeds of $9 million in connection with our option exercises. The tax benefit realized from these exercises
was $1 million. The total intrinsic value of options exercised for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, was $4 million, $9 million and $11
million, respectively.

Restricted Stock Awards

For equity based awards that contain only service conditions for vesting, we calculate the award fair value based on the closing stock price
on the accounting grant date. For equity based restricted stock awards that contain market conditions, the award fair valueis cal culated through
Monte-Carlo simulations.

During the first quarter of 2015, we granted approximately 496 thousand shares of restricted stock to certain executive-level employees as part
of our long-term incentive program, of which approximately 198 thousand contained only service conditions and will vest on a straight-line basis on
February 23, 2016, 2017 and 2018. The remaining awards contain market and service conditions and are scheduled to vest on February 23, 2018.
These shares, with market and service conditions, represent only the target for the award, as each recipient has the opportunity to ultimately receive
anumber of shares between 0% and 200% of the target restricted stock award depending on our total shareholder return versus that of selected
peer companies for 2015, 2016 and 2017.

At the end of thefirst quarter of 2015, we granted approximately 1.2 million sharesto certain key employees as part of our annual equity
compensation program. These awards contained only service conditions and will vest on a straight-line basis on March 12, 2016, 2017 and 2018.
During the third quarter of 2015 we granted shares to certain key employees as part of our long-term equity retention program. These awards will
vest over athree to seven year period with approximately 193 thousand, 423 thousand and 230 thousand shares vesting on August 14, 2018, 2020
and 2022, respectively, and 55 thousand shares vesting equally on August 14, 2017, 2019, and 2021. The remaining awards granted throughout 2015
to certain other key employees and our outside directors were made as part of our equity compensation and retention programs. These awards
require only service conditions for vesting and typically vest equally over athree year period.

During the first quarter of 2014, we granted approximately 440 thousand shares of restricted stock to certain executive-level employees as part
of our long-term incentive program, of which approximately 250 thousand contained only service conditions and will vest on a straight-line basis on
February 20, 2015, 2016 and 2017. The remaining awards contain market and service conditions and are scheduled to vest on February 20, 2017.
These shares, with market and service conditions, represent only the target for the award, as each recipient has the opportunity to ultimately receive
anumber of shares between 0% and 200% of the target restricted stock award depending on our total shareholder return versus that of selected
peer companies for 2014, 2015 and 2016.

During the second quarter of 2014, we granted approximately 1.5 million shares to certain key employees as part of our annual equity
compensation program. These awards contained only service conditions and will vest on a straight-line basis on March 26, 2015, 2016 and 2017.
During the third quarter of 2014 we granted shares to certain key employees as part of our long-term equity retention program. These awards will
vest over athree to seven year period with approximately 105 thousand, 325 thousand and 220 thousand vesting on August 4, 2017, 2019 and 2021,
respectively. The remaining awards granted throughout 2014 to certain other key employees and our outside directors were made as part of our
equity compensation and retention programs. These awards require only service conditions for vesting and typically vest equally over athree year
period.
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During the second quarter of 2013, we granted approximately 335 thousand shares of restricted stock to certain executive-level employees as
part of our long-term incentive program, of which approximately 223 thousand contained only service conditions and are scheduled to vest on a
straight-line basis on May 23, 2014, 2015 and 2016. The remaining awards contain market and service conditions and will vest on May 23, 2016.
These shares, with market and service conditions, represent only the target for the award as each recipient has the opportunity to ultimately receive
anumber of shares between 0% and 200% of the target restricted stock award depending on, our total shareholder return versus that of selected
peer companiesfor 2013, 2014 and 2015.

In addition, during the first and second quarter of 2013, we granted approximately 1.2 million shares to certain key employees as part of our
annual equity compensation program. These awards contained only service conditions. The remaining awards granted throughout 2013 to certain
other key employees and our outside directors were made as part of our equity compensation and retention programs. These awards require only
service conditions for vesting and typically vest equally over athree year period.

The following table summarizes activity involving restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards for the year ended December 31, 2015:

Weighted-
Average
Number of Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
(in thousands)

Non-vested at December 31, 2014 4400 $ 36.59
Granted 2,904 31.83
Vested (1,724) 35.71
Forfeited (678) 38.95

Non-vested at December 31, 2015 4,902 33.86

During 2014, we granted 2.9 million shares of restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards at a weighted-average price of $35.87. The total
fair value of restricted stock that vested during 2015, 2014 and 2013, was $59 million, $53 million and $52 million, respectively.

Compensation Expense and Tax Benefit

We recognize compensation expense related to our market and performance share-based awards with graded vesting that only have a service
condition on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. Total compensation expense for all share-based payment
arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, was $73 million, $75 million and $63 million, respectively. Our tax benefit
recognized in the consolidated statements of operations for our share-based payment arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014
and 2013, was $28 million, $29 million and $25 million, respectively. At December 31, 2015, there was $113 million of total unrecognized compensation
expense related to our share-based payment arrangements, which we expect to recognize over aweighted-average period of 2.5 years.
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(9) Earnings (L oss) Per Common Share

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were cal culated as follows:

Y ears Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Dollarsin millions, except per share amounts, sharesin
thousands)

Income (Loss) (Numerator):

Net income (l0ss) $ 878 772 (239)
Earnings applicable to non-vested restricted stock = = =
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock for computing basic earnings (1oss) per

common share 878 772 (239)
Net income (loss) as adjusted for purposes of computing diluted earnings (10ss) per
common share $ 878 772 (239)

Shares (Denominator):
Weighted average number of shares:

Outstanding during period 559,260 572,748 604,404
Non-vested restricted stock (4,982) (4,313) (3,512
Weighted average shares outstanding for computing basic earnings (10ss) per
common share 554,278 568,435 600,892
Incremental common shares attributable to dilutive securities:
Sharesissuable under convertible securities 10 10 —
Shares issuable under incentive compensation plans 805 1,294 —
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of computing diluted earnings (loss) per
common share 555,093 569,739 600,892
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 1.58 1.36 (0.40)
Diluted earnings (10ss) per common share $ 158 136 (0.40)

Our calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per common share excludes shares of common stock that are issuable upon exercise of stock options
when the exercise priceis greater than the average market price of our common stock. We also exclude unvested restricted stock awards that are
antidilutive as aresult of unrecognized compensation cost. Such shares averaged 3.1 million, 2.5 million and 2.7 million for 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2013, due to the net loss position, we excluded from the cal culation of diluted loss per share 1.3
million shares which were potentially issuable under incentive compensation plans or convertible securities, astheir effect, if included, would have
been anti-dilutive.

(10) Fair Value Disclosure

Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and long-term debt, excluding capital
lease obligations. Dueto their short-term nature, the carrying amounts of our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable
approximate their fair values.

Fair valueis defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between
independent and knowledgeabl e parties who are willing and able to transact for an asset or liability at the measurement date. We use valuation
techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when determining fair value and then we rank
the estimated values based on the reliability of the inputs used following the fair value hierarchy set forth by the FASB.

We determined the fair values of our long-term debt, including the current portion, based on quoted market prices where available or, if not
available, based on discounted future cash flows using current market interest rates.
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Thethreeinput levelsin the hierarchy of fair value measurements are defined by the FASB generally asfollows:

Input Level Description of Input

Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted market pricesin active markets.
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 Unobservable inputsin which little or no market data exists.

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our long-term debt, excluding capital lease and other
obligations, aswell astheinput levels used to determine the fair valuesindicated bel ow:

Asof December 31, 2015 Asof December 31, 2014
Input Carrying Carrying
Level Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

(Dallarsin millions)
Liabilities-Long-term debt excluding capital lease and other
obligations 2 $ 19,800 19,473 19,994 21,255

(12) Income Taxes

Y ear s Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(Dallarsin millions)
Income tax expense was as follows:

Federal
Current $ 28 18 1
Deferred 329 305 403
State
Current 40 26 62
Deferred 21 (14) (8)
Foreign
Current 16 3 9
Deferred 4 — 4)
Total income tax expense $ 438 338 463

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(Dollarsin millions)
Income tax expense was allocated as follows:
Income tax expense in the consolidated statements of operations:
Attributable to income $ 438 338 463
Stockholders' equity:

Compensation expense for tax purposes in excess of amounts recognized for
financial reporting purposes (5) (5) (14)
Tax effect of the change in accumul ated other comprehensive loss 59 (744) 554
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Thefollowing isareconciliation from the statutory federal income tax rate to our effective income tax rate:

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Per centage of pre-tax income)
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0 % 35.0 %
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 26% 2.7% 28 %
Impairment of goodwill — % —% 188.5 %
Changein liability for unrecognized tax position 0.4% 0.4 % (24.5)%
Foreign income taxes 0.7 % 0.4 % 2.7%
Nondeductible accounting adjustment for life insurance — % — % 31%
Affiliate debt rationalization (2.6)% — % — %
Rel ease state val uation allowance — % —% (2.3)%
Research and development credits (2.1)% — % — %
Loss on worthless investment in foreign subsidiary — % (54)% — %
Other, net (0.7% (2.6)% 14%
Effective income tax rate 333 % 305 % 206.7 %

The 2015 effective tax rateis 33.3% compared to 30.5% for 2014. The 2015 rate reflects atax benefit of approximately $34 million related to
affiliate debt rationalization, research and development tax credits of $28 million for 2011 through 2015 and a $16 million tax decrease due to changes
in state taxes caused by apportionment changes, state tax rate changes and the changesin the expected utilization of net operating losses
("NOLSs"). The 2014 rate reflects a $60 million tax benefit associated with a deduction for tax basis for worthless stock in awholly-owned foreign
subsidiary as aresult of developmentsin bankruptcy proceedingsinvolving its sole asset and a $13 million tax decrease due to changesin the state
taxes caused by apportionment changes, state tax rate changes and the changes in the expected utilization of NOLs. The 2013 rate reflects the tax
effect of a$1.092 hillion non-deductible goodwill impairment charge, afavorable settlement with the Internal Revenue Service of $33 million, a$22
million reduction due to the reversal of an uncertain tax position and the tax effect of a $17 million unfavorable accounting adjustment for non-
deductible life insurance costs. Also in 2013, the tax rate was decreased by a $5 million reduction to the valuation allowance due to the estimated
ability to utilize more state NOL s than previously expected.

The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities were as
follows:

Asof December 31,

2015 2014

(Dollarsin millions)

Deferred tax assets
Post-retirement and pension benefit costs $ 2,154 2,276
Net operating loss carryforwards 487 1,001
Other employee benefits 182 214
Other 458 602
Gross deferred tax assets 3,281 4,183
Less valuation allowance (380) (409)
Net deferred tax assets 2,901 3,774
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, primarily due to depreciation differences (3,841) (3,869)
Goodwill and other intangibl e assets (2,588) (2,908)
Other (38) (147)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (6,467) (6,924)
Net deferred tax liability $ (3,566) (3150)
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Of the $3.566 hillion and $3.150 billion net deferred tax liahility at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, $3.569 billion and $3.154 hillionis
reflected as along-term liability and $3 million and $4 million is reflected as a net noncurrent deferred tax asset at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

At December 31, 2015, we had federal NOLs of $72 million and state NOLs of $13 billion. If unused, the NOLswill expire between 2016 and
2032; however, no significant amounts expire until 2021. At December 31, 2015, we had federal tax credits of $28 million. Additionally, we had $36
million ($23 million net of federal income tax) of state investment tax credit carryforwards that will expire between 2016 and 2025 if not utilized. In
addition, at December 31, 2015, we had $79 million of federal alternative minimum tax, or AMT, credits. Our acquisitions of Qwest and SAVVIS, Inc.
("Sawvis") caused "ownership changes' within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code (" Section 382"). Asaresult, our ability to
usethese NOLsand AMT credits are subject to annual limitsimposed by Section 382. Despite this, we expect to use substantially all of these tax
attributes to reduce our future federal tax liabilities, although the timing of that use will depend upon our future earnings and future tax
circumstances.

We establish valuation allowances when necessary to reduce the deferred tax assets to amounts we expect to realize. As of December 31,
2015, avaluation allowance of $380 million was established asit is more likely than not that this amount of net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards will not be utilized prior to expiration. Our valuation allowance at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is primarily related to state NOL
carryforwards. This valuation allowance decreased by $29 million during 2015.

A reconciliation of the change in our gross unrecognized tax benefits (excluding both interest and any related federal benefit) from January 1
to December 31 for 2015 and 2014 is asfollows:

2015 2014
(Dallarsin millions)
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year $ 17 14
Increasein tax positions taken in the current year 1 —
Increasein tax positions taken in the prior year 7 9
Decrease due to the reversal of tax positionstaken in aprior year 9 2
Decrease from the lapse of statute of limitations 1) (1)
Settlements — @)
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year $ 15 17

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would impact the effective income tax rate was $32 million at both
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Our policy isto reflect interest expense associated with unrecognized tax benefitsin income tax expense. We had accrued interest (presented
before related tax benefits) of approximately $33 million and $30 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

We fileincometax returns, including returns for our subsidiaries, with federal, state and local jurisdictions. Our uncertain income tax positions
arerelated to tax yearsthat are currently under or remain subject to examination by the relevant taxing authorities.

In 2013, Qwest filed an amended 2009 federal income tax return primarily to report the carryforward impact of prior year settlements. The
refund for the 2009 amended return filed in 2013 was received in 2014. In 2014, Qwest filed an amended federal income tax return for 2010. The refund
claim filed for 2010 was accepted by the IRS, and the refund was received in 2015. The 2010 amended return rel eased certain general business credits
that were required to be carried back to 2009. As aresult, a subsequent 2009 federal amended return was filed by Qwest in 2014 to reflect the
carrybacks from 2010. The 2009 refund claim filed in 2014 was accepted by the IRS and the refund was received in 2015.

Beginning with the 2012 tax year, our federal consolidated returns are subject to annual examination by the IRS.

110



Our open income tax years by major jurisdiction are as follows at December 31, 2015:

Jurisdiction Open Tax Years

Federal 2012—current

State
Arizona 2010—current
Florida 2010—current
Other states 2011—current

Since the period for assessing additional liability typically begins upon the filing of areturn, it is possible that certain jurisdictions could
assess tax for years prior to the open tax years disclosed above. Additionally, it is possible that certain jurisdictionsin which we do not believe we
have an income tax filing responsibility, and accordingly did not file areturn, may attempt to assess aliability, or that other jurisdictions to which we
pay taxes may attempt to assert that we owe additional taxes.

Based on our current assessment of various factors, including (i) the potential outcomes of these ongoing examinations, (ii) the expiration of
statute of limitations for specific jurisdictions, (iii) the negotiated settlement of certain disputed issues, and (iv) the administrative practices of
applicabletaxing jurisdictions, it is reasonably possible that the related unrecognized tax benefits for uncertain tax positions previously taken may
decrease by up to $11 million within the next 12 months. The actual amount of such decrease, if any, will depend on several future developments
and events, many of which are outside our control.

(12) Segment Information

We are organized into operating segments based on customer type, business and consumer. These operating segments are our two
reportable segmentsin our consolidated financial statements:

*  Business Segment. Consists generally of providing strategic, legacy and data integration products and services to small, medium and
enterprise business, wholesale and governmental customers, including other communication providers. Our strategic products and
services offered to these customersinclude our MPLS, private line (including special access), Ethernet, high-speed Internet, col ocation,
managed hosting, cloud hosting and other ancillary services. Our legacy services offered to these customers primarily include switched
access and local and long-distance voice services, including the sale of unbundled network elements ("UNEs") which allow our wholesale
customersto use al or part of our network to provide voice and data servicesto their customers. Our dataintegration offerings include the
sale of telecommunications equipment located on customers' premises and related professional services. These services include network
management, installation and maintenance of data equipment and the building of proprietary fiber-optic broadband networks; and

+  Consumer Segment. Consists generally of providing strategic and legacy products and servicesto residential customers. Our strategic
products and services offered to these customers include our high-speed Internet, video (including our Prism TV services) and wireless
services. Our legacy services offered to these customers include local and long-distance voice services.
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The following table summarizes our segment results for 2015, 2014 and 2013 based on the segment categorization we were operating under at
December 31, 2015.

Y ear s Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Dollarsin millions)

Total segment revenues $ 16,668 17,028 17,095
Total segment expenses 8,459 8,509 8,167
Total segment income $ 8,209 8,519 8,928
Total margin percentage 49% 50% 52%
Business segment:

Revenues $ 10,647 11,034 11,091

Expenses 6,034 6,089 5,808

Income $ 4,613 4,945 5,283

Margin percentage 43% 45% 48%
Consumer segment:

Revenues $ 6,021 5,994 6,004

Expenses 2,425 2,420 2,359

Income $ 3,596 3,574 3,645

Margin percentage 60% 60% 61%

Product and Service Categories
We categorize our products, services and revenues among the following four categories:

e Strategic services, which include primarily high-speed Internet, MPLS (which is adata networking technology that can deliver the quality
of service required to support real-time voice and video), private line (including special access), Ethernet, col ocation, hosting (including
cloud hosting and managed hosting), video (including our facilities-based video services, which we now offer in 16 markets), Vol P and
Verizon Wireless and other ancillary services,

+  Legacy services, which include primarily local and long-distance voice services, including the sale of UNEs, switched access and
Integrated Services Digital Network ("ISDN") services (which use regular telephone lines to support voice, video and data applications);

+ Dataintegration, which includes the sale of telecommunications equipment located on customers' premises and related professional
services, such as network management, installation and maintenance of data equipment and building of proprietary fiber-optic broadband
networks for our governmental and business customers; and

»  Other operating revenues, which consist primarily of CAF support payments, USF support payments and USF surcharges. We receive
federal support payments from both CAF Phase 1 and CAF Phase 2 programs, and support payments from both federal and state USF
programs. These support payments are government subsidies designed to reimburse us for various costs related to certain
telecommunications services, including the costs of deploying, maintaining and operating voice and high-speed Internet infrastructurein
high-cost rural areas where we are not able to recover our costs from our customers. USF surcharges are the amounts we collect based on
specific itemswe list on our customers' invoices to fund the FCC's universal service programs. We also generate other operating revenues
from leasing and subleasing of space in our office buildings, warehouses and other properties. Because we centrally manage the activities
that generate these other operating revenues, these revenues are not included in our segment revenues.
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Our operating revenues for our products and services consisted of the following categories for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and

2013

Strategic services

Business high-bandwidth data services (1)
Business |ow-bandwidth data services (2)

Business hosting services (3)
Other business strategic services (4)

Consumer high-speed Internet services (5)

Other consumer strategic services (6)
Total strategic services revenues

Legacy services
Business legacy voice services (7)
Other business legacy services (8)
Consumer legacy voice services (7)
Other consumer legacy services (9)
Total legacy services revenues

Y ear s Ended December 31,

Dataintegration
Business dataintegration
Consumer dataintegration
Total dataintegration revenues

Other revenues
High-cost support revenue (10)
Other revenue (11)
Total other revenues

Total revenues

€
@)
©)
4
®)
(6
@)
8
€)
(10
(11)

2015 2014 2013
(Dollarsin millions)

2,816 2,579 2,230
2,052 2,345 2,577
1,281 1,316 1,259
162 76 60
2,611 2,469 2,358
421 381 292
9,343 9,166 8,776
2,590 2,780 2,916
1,175 1,252 1,398
2,676 2,864 3,101
31 276 248
6,752 7,172 7,663
571 686 651
2 4 5
573 690 656
732 528 547
500 475 453
1,232 1,003 1,000
17,900 18,031 18,095

Includes MPLS and Ethernet revenue
Includes private line and high-speed Internet revenue

Includes colocation, hosting (including cloud hosting and managed hosting) and hosting area network revenue

Includes primarily VolP, video and I T services revenue

Includes high-speed Internet and related services revenue

Includes video and Verizon wireless revenue

Includes local and long-distance voice revenue

Includes UNEs, public access and other ancillary revenue

Includes switched access and other ancillary revenue

Includes CAF Phase 1, CAF Phase 2 and federal and state USF support revenue
Includes USF surcharges
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During the first quarter of 2015, we determined that certain products and services associated with our acquisition of Savvis are more closely
aligned to legacy servicesthan to strategic services. Asaresult, these operating revenues are now reflected as legacy services. Therevision
resulted in areduction of revenue from strategic services of $34 million and $47 million and a corresponding increase in revenue from legacy
servicesfor the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

We recognize revenues in our consolidated statements of operations for certain USF surcharges and transaction taxes that we bill to our
customers. Our consolidated statements of operations also reflect the related expense for the amounts we remit to the government agencies. The
total amount of such surcharges that we included in revenues aggregated approximately $544 million, $526 million and $489 million for the years
ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Those USF surcharges, where we record revenue, areincluded in "other" operating revenues
and transaction tax surcharges are included in "legacy services' revenues. We also act as a collection agent for certain other USF and transaction
taxes that we are required by government agenciesto include in our billsto customers, for which we do not record any revenue or expense because
we only act as a pass-through agent.

Allocations of Revenues and Expenses

Our segment revenues include all revenues from our strategic, legacy and data integration operations as described in more detail above.
Segment revenues are based upon each customer's classification to an individual segment. We report our segment revenues based upon all
services provided to that segment's customers. Our segment expenses for our two segments include specific expensesincurred as adirect result of
providing services and products to segment customers, along with selling, general and administrative expenses that are directly associated with
specific segment customers or activities; and allocated expenses which include network expenses, facilities expenses and other expenses such as
fleet and real estate expenses. We do not assign depreciation and amortization expense or impairments to our segments, as the related assets and
capital expenditures are centrally managed and are not monitored by or reported to the chief operating decision maker ("CODM") by segment.
Generally speaking, severance expenses, restructuring expenses and certain centrally managed administrative functions (such as finance,
information technology, legal and human resources) are not assigned to our segments. Interest expenseis also excluded from segment results
because we manage our financing on atotal company basis and have not allocated assets or debt to specific segments. Other income, net is not
monitored as a part of our segment operations and is therefore excluded from our segment results.

The following table reconciles segment income to net income for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013:

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Dollarsin millions)
Total segment income $ 8,209 8,519 8,928
Other operating revenues 1,232 1,003 1,000
Depreciation and amortization (4,189) (4,428) (4,541)
Impairment of goodwill — — (1,092)
Other unassigned operating expenses (2,647) (2,684) (2,842)
Other expenses, net (1,289) (1,300) (1,229)
Income tax expense (438) (338) (463)
Net income (loss) $ 878 772 (239)

We do not have any single customer that provides more than 10% of our total consolidated operating revenues. Substantially all of our
consolidated revenues come from customers located in the United States.
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(23) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

2015

Operating revenues

Operating income

Net income

Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share
2014

Operating revenues

Operating income

Net income

Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

(Dollarsin millions, except per share amounts)

4,451 4,419 4,554 4,476 17,900

649 549 656 751 2,605

192 143 205 338 878

0.34 0.26 0.37 0.62 158

0.34 0.26 0.37 0.62 158

4,538 4,541 4,514 4,438 18,031

653 655 619 483 2,410

203 193 188 188 772

0.35 0.34 0.33 0.33 1.36

0.35 0.34 0.33 0.33 1.36

During the third quarter of 2015, we recognized an incremental $158 million of revenue associated with the FCC's CAF Phase 2 support
program, and an additional incremental $57 million in the fourth quarter of 2015. During the fourth quarter of 2015, we also recognized atax benefit of
approximately $34 million related to affiliate debt rationalization, research and development tax credits of $28 million for 2011 through 2015, and a $16
million tax decrease due to changesin state taxes caused by apportionment changes, state tax rate changes and the changes in the expected

utilization of net operating losses ("NOLS").

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we recognized a $60 million tax benefit associated with a deduction for the tax basisfor worthless stock in a
wholly-owned foreign subsidiary as aresult of developmentsin bankruptcy proceedings involving its sole asset that occurred in thefirst quarter of
2014. During the fourth quarter of 2014, we also recognized a pension settlement charge of $63 million.
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(14) Commitmentsand Contingencies

We are vigorously defending against all of the matters described below under the headings "Pending Matters" and " Other Proceedings and
Disputes." Asamatter of course, we are prepared both to litigate these matters to judgment, as well asto evaluate and consider all reasonable
settlement opportunities. In this Note, when we refer to aclass action as "putative" it is because a class has been alleged, but not certified in that
matter. We have established accrued liabilities for these matters described below where losses are deemed probable and reasonably estimable.

Pending Matters

In William Douglas Fulghum, et a. v. Embarq Corporation, et a., filed on December 28, 2007 in the United States District Court for the District
of Kansas, agroup of retireesfiled a class action lawsuit challenging the decision to make certain modifications in retiree benefits programs rel ating
to life insurance, medical insurance and prescription drug benefits, generally effective January 1, 2006 and January 1, 2008 (which, at the time of the
modifications, was expected to reduce estimated future expenses for the subject benefits by more than $300 million). Defendants include Embarqg,
certain of its benefit plans, its Employee Benefits Committee and the individual plan administrator of certain of its benefits plans. Additional
defendantsinclude Sprint Nextel and certain of its benefit plans. The Court certified a class on certain of plaintiffs' claims, but rejected class
certification asto other claims. On October 14, 2011, the Fulghum lawyersfiled anew, related lawsuit, Abbott et al. v. Sprint Nextel et al. In Abbott,
approximately 1,500 plaintiffs allege breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the changesin retiree benefits that also are at issue in the Fulghum
case. The Abbott plaintiffs are all members of the class that was certified in Fulghum on claims for allegedly vested benefits (Counts | and [11), and
the Abbott claims are similar to the Fulghum breach of fiduciary duty claim (Count I1), on which the Fulghum court denied class certification. The
Court has stayed proceedings in Abbott indefinitely, except for limited discovery and motion practice asto approximately 80 of the plaintiffs. On
February 14, 2013, the Fulghum court dismissed the mgjority of the plaintiffs' claimsin the case. On interlocutory appeal, the United States Court of
Appealsfor the Tenth Circuit ruled on February 24, 2015, that the plan documents reviewed do not support any claim for vested benefits, and
affirmed the district court's dismissal of claims based on those documents. The Tenth Circuit decision allowed a subset of claims for vested benefits
to return to the district court for further proceedings. The Tenth Circuit aso affirmed the district court's dismissal of al age discrimination claims.
The Tenth Circuit reversed the district court's determination that the statute of repose under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,
asamended ("ERISA"), isatime bar to the breach of fiduciary duty claims of fifteen named plaintiffs. On June 10, 2015, the district court in Fulghum
granted summary judgment to defendants on an additional group of claimsfor vested benefits. On July 27, 2015, pursuant to the terms of a
stipulation by the parties, the district court in Fulghum granted judgment in favor of defendants on all remaining and unadjudicated vested benefits
claims. Thisjudgment iswithout prejudice to any rightsthe parties may have to pursue any additional appellate relief. Asto any further
proceedings that may occur in the district court, defendants will continue to vigorously contest any remaining claimsin Fulghum and Abbott. We
have not accrued aliability for these matters because we believeit is premature (i) to determine whether an accrual is warranted and (ii) if so, to
determine areasonable estimate of probable liability.

On July 16, 2013, Comcast MO Group, Inc. ("Comcast") filed alawsuit in Colorado state court against Qwest Communications
International, Inc. ("Qwest"). Comcast alleges Qwest breached the parties' 1998 tax sharing agreement ("TSA") when it refused to partially
indemnify Comcast for atax liability settlement Comcast reached with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in a dispute to which we were not a
party. Comcast seeks approximately $80 million in damages, excluding interest. Qwest and Comcast are partiesto the TSA in their capacities as
successors to the TSA's original parties, U SWEST, Inc., atelecommunications company, and MediaOne Group, Inc., a cable television company,
respectively. In October 2014, the state court granted summary judgment in Qwest's favor. In December 2015, the Colorado Court of Appeals
affirmed the judgment. Comcast has filed a petition with the Colorado Supreme Court to review the Court of Appeals judgment. We have not
accrued aliability for this matter because we do not believe that liability is probable.

The local exchange carrier subsidiaries of CenturyLink are among hundreds of defendants nationwide in dozens of lawsuits filed by Sprint
Communications Company and affiliates of Verizon Communications Inc. The plaintiffsin these suits have challenged the right of local exchange
carriersto bill interexchange carriersfor switched access charges for certain calls between mobile and wireline devices that are routed through an
interexchange carrier. In the lawsuits, the plaintiffs are seeking refunds of access charges previously paid and relief from future access charges. In
addition, these and some other interexchange carriers have ceased paying switched access charges on these calls. These lawsuitsinvolving our
local exchange carriers and many other carriers have been consolidated for pretrial purposesin the United States District Court for the District of
Northern Texas. In November 2015, the Court dismissed the plaintiffs federal law claims and granted them leaveto file state law claims, if any. Some
of the defendants, including our affiliated carriers, have petitioned the Federal Communications Commission to address these issues on an industry-
wide basis.
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Asboth an interexchange carrier and alocal exchange carrier, we both pay and assess significant amounts of the access chargesin question.
The outcome of these disputes and suits, as well as any related regulatory proceedings that could ensue, are currently not predictable. If we are
required to stop assessing these charges or to pay refunds of any such charges, our financial results could be negatively affected.

Other Proceedings and Disputes

From time to time, we are involved in other proceedings incidental to our business, including patent infringement allegations, administrative
hearings of state public utility commissions relating primarily to our rates or services, actions relating to employee claims, various tax issues,
environmental law issues, grievance hearings before labor regulatory agencies, and miscellaneous third party tort actions.

We are currently defending several patent infringement lawsuits asserted against us by non-practicing entities, many of whom are seeking
substantial recoveries. These cases have progressed to various stages and one or more may go to trial in the coming 24 monthsif they are not
otherwise resolved. Where applicable, we are seeking full or partial indemnification from our vendors and suppliers. Aswith all litigation, we are
vigorously defending these actions and, as amatter of course, are prepared to litigate the matters to judgment, as well as to evaluate and consider
all reasonabl e settlement opportunities.

We are subject to various foreign, federal, state and local environmental protection and health and safety laws. From time to time, we are
subject to judicial and administrative proceedings brought by various governmental authorities under these laws. Several such proceedings are
currently pending, but none is reasonably expected to exceed $100,000 in fines and penalties.

The outcome of these other proceedingsis not predictable. However, based on current circumstances, we do not believe that the ultimate
resolution of these other proceedings, after considering available defenses and any insurance coverage or indemnification rights, will have a
material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Capital Leases

We lease certain facilities and equipment under various capital |ease arrangements. Depreciation of assets under capital leasesisincludedin
depreciation and amortization expense in our consolidated statements of operations. Payments on capital leases are included in repayments of long-
term debt, including current maturitiesin our consolidated statements of cash flows.

The tables below summarize our capital lease activity:

Y ear s Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(Dallarsin millions)
Assets acquired through capital |eases $ 17 37 12
Depreciation expense 9% 126 136
Cash payments towards capital |eases 89 118 119

As of December 31,

2015 2014
(Dallarsin millions)
Assetsincluded in property, plant and equipment $ 722 850
Accumulated depreciation 352 393
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The future annual minimum payments under capital |ease arrangements as of December 31, 2015 were as follows:

Future Minimum
Payments

(Dollarsin millions)
Capital lease obligations:

2016 $ 85
2017 78
2018 76
2019 62
2020 47
2021 and thereafter 223
Tota minimum payments 571
L ess: amount representing interest and executory costs (153)
Present value of minimum payments 418
Less: current portion (56)
Long-term portion $ 362

Operating Leases

CenturyLink leases various equipment, office facilities, retail outlets, switching facilities, and other network sites. These |eases, with few
exceptions, provide for renewal options and escal ations that are either fixed or based on the consumer price index. Any rent abatements, along with
rent escalations, are included in the computation of rent expense calculated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The |ease term for most
leasesincludes the initial non-cancelable term plus any term under renewal optionsthat are reasonably assured. For the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013, our gross rental expense was $467 million, $446 million and $455 million, respectively. We al so received sublease rental income
for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 of $12 million, $14 million and $16 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2015, our future rental commitments for operating leases were asfollows:

Future Minimum

Payments
(Dallarsin millions)
2016 $ 301
2017 289
2018 268
2019 235
2020 209
2021 and thereafter 1,075
Total future minimum payments @ $ 2,377

@ Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of $87 million due in the future under non-cancelable subleases.
Purchase Commitments

We have several commitments primarily for marketing activities and support services from avariety of vendorsto be used in the ordinary
course of business totaling $625 million at December 31, 2015. Of this amount, we expect to purchase $364 million in 2016, $144 million in 2017
through 2018, $46 million in 2019 through 2020 and $71 million in 2021 and thereafter. These amounts do not represent our entire anticipated
purchasesin the future, but represent only those items for which we were contractually committed as of December 31, 2015.
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(15) Other Financial Information

Other Current Assets

The following table presents details of other current assetsin our consolidated bal ance sheets:

Asof December 31,

2015 2014
(Dallarsin millions)
Prepaid expenses $ 238 260
Materials, supplies and inventory 144 132
Assets held for sale 8 14
Deferred activation and installation charges 105 103
Other 86 71
Total other current assets $ 581 580

Assets held for saleincludes several assets that we expect to sell within the next twelve months. During 2014, we sold our remaining 700 MHz
A-Block wireless spectrum licenses, which we purchased in 2008 but never placed into service. Asaresult of changesin market conditions and
prevailing spectrum prices, we recorded an impairment charge of $14 million, which isincluded in other income, net in our consolidated statements
of operationsfor the for the year ended December 31, 2014. The sale closed on November 3, 2014, and we received $39 millionin cash in the

aggregate.

In January 2013, we sold $43 million of our wireless spectrum assets held for sale. The sale resulted in again of $32 million, which is recorded
as other income, net on our consolidated statements of operations.

Selected Current Liabilities

Current liahilities reflected in our consolidated balance sheets include accounts payable and other current liabilities as follows:

Asof December 31

2015 2014
(Dallarsin millions)

Accounts payable $ 968 1,226
Other current liabilities:

Accrued rent $ 32 34

Legal reserves 20 27

Other 168 149

Total other current liabilities $ 220 210

Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2015 and 2014, were $68 million and $80 million, respectively, representing book overdrafts and
$94 million and $185 million, respectively, associated with capital expenditures.

(16) Labor Union Contracts

Approximately 37% of our employees are members of various bargaining units represented by the Communications Workers of America
("CWA") or the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers ("IBEW"). As of December 31, 2015, approximately three hundred, or 2%, of our
employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements that expired in 2015. We believe that relations with our employees continue to be
generally good. We are currently negotiating the terms of new agreements covering these employees. Approximately one thousand, or 6%, of our
employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements that expirein 2016.
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(17) Repurchase of CenturyLink, Inc. Common Stock

In February 2014, our Board of Directors authorized a 24-month program to repurchase up to an aggregate of $1 hillion of our outstanding
common stock. This 2014 stock repurchase program took effect on May 29, 2014, immediately upon the completion of our predecessor 2013 stock
repurchase program. On December 7, 2015, we completed the 2014 stock repurchase program, repurchasing over the course of the program atotal of
32.3 million shares in the open market at an average purchase price of $30.99 per share. During the year ended December 31, 2015, we repurchased
27.1 million shares of our outstanding common stock in the open market. These shares were repurchased for an aggregate market price of $800
million, or an average purchase price of $29.56 per share. The repurchased common stock has been retired.

(18) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The table below summarizes changes in accumul ated other comprehensive loss recorded on our consolidated bal ance sheet by component for
the year ended December 31, 2015:

Foreign Currency

Translation
Post-Retirement Adjustment
Pension Plans Benefit Plans and Other Total
(Dollarsin millions)
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ (1,720) (272 (25) (2,017)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications (98) 80 (14) (32)
Amounts reclassified from accumul ated other comprehensive
income 103 12 — 115
Net current-period other comprehensive income (10ss) 5 92 (14) 83
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ (1,715) (180) (39) (1,934)

Thetable below presents further information about our reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive loss by component for the
year ended December 31, 2015:

Affected Line Item in Consolidated Statement of
Operations or Footnote Where Additional
Decr ease (I ncrease) Information is Presented If The Amount is not
Year Ended December 31, 2015 in Net Income Recognized in Net Incomein Total

(Dollarsin millions)
Amortization of pension & post-retirement plans

Net actuarial loss $ 161  See Note 7—Employee Benefits
Prior service cost 24 See Note 7—Employee Benefits
Total before tax 185
Income tax expense (benefit) (70)  Incometax expense

Net of tax $ 115

The table below summarizes changes in accumul ated other comprehensive loss recorded on our consolidated bal ance sheet by component for
the year ended December 31, 2014:

Foreign Currency

Translation
Post-Retirement Adjustment
Pension Plans Benefit Plans and Other Total
(Dollarsin millions)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ (669) (122) (11) (802)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications (1,107) (162) (15) (1,284)
Amounts reclassified from accumul ated other comprehensive
income 56 12 1 69
Net current-period other comprehensive income (10ss) (1,051) (150) (14) (1,215)
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ (1,720) (272) (25) (2,017)
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Thetable below presents further information about our reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive loss by component for the
year ended December 31, 2014:

Affected Lineltem in Consolidated Statement of
Operations or Footnote Where Additional
Decr ease (I ncrease) Information is Presented If The Amount is not
Year Ended December 31, 2014 in Net Loss Recognized in Net Incomein Total

(Dollarsin millions)
Amortization of pension & post-retirement plans

Net actuarial loss $ 85  SeeNote 7—Employee Benefits
Prior service cost 25  See Note 7—Employee Benefits
Total before tax 110
Income tax expense (benefit) (42) Income tax expense
Insignificant items 1

Net of tax $ 69

(19) Dividends

Our Board of Directors declared the following dividends payable in 2015 and 2014:

Dividend
Date Declared Record Date Per Share Total Amount Payment Date
(in millions)

November 10, 2015 11/24/2015 $ 0540 $ 293 12/8/2015
August 25, 2015 9/8/2015 0.540 300 9/22/2015
May 20, 2015 6/2/2015 0.540 303 6/16/2015
February 23, 2015 3/6/2015 0.540 303 3/20/2015
November 11, 2014 11/24/2014 0.540 307 12/5/2014
August 19, 2014 8/29/2014 0.540 308 9/12/2014
May 28, 2014 6/9/2014 0.540 307 6/20/2014
February 24, 2014 3/10/2014 0.540 309 3/21/2014

The declaration of dividendsis solely at the discretion of our Board of Directors.
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ITEM 9. CHANGESIN AND DISAGREEMENTSWITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLSAND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act (the “ Exchange
Act”)) designed to provide reasonabl e assurance that the information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reportsthat it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC' s rules and forms. These
include controls and procedures designed to ensure that thisinformation is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management,
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to alow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer, Glen F. Post, 111, and our Chief Financia Officer, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr., evaluated
the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2015. Based on this evaluation, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as

of December 31, 2015, at the reasonabl e assurance level.

The effectiveness of our or any system of disclosure controls and procedures is subject to certain limitations, including the exercise of
judgment in designing, implementing and evaluating the controls and procedures, the assumptions used in identifying the likelihood of future
events and the inability to eliminate misconduct completely. Asaresult, there can be no assurance that our disclosure controls and procedures will
detect all errorsor fraud. By their nature, our or any system of disclosure controls and procedures can provide only reasonable assurance regarding
management's control objectives.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act), a process designed to provide reasonabl e assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principlesin the United States. Under
the supervision and with the participation of management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the COSO. Based on our evaluation under the framework of COSO, management concluded that our internal control over financial
reporting was effective at December 31, 2015. The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting at December 31, 2015 has been
audited by KPMG LLP, as stated in their report. See the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on our internal control over
financial reporting in Item 8, which isincorporated herein by reference.

Management’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management has prepared and isresponsible for the integrity and objectivity of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015. The consolidated financial statementsincluded in this Annual Report have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States and necessarily include amounts determined using our best judgments and estimates.

Our consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, who have
expressed their opinion with respect to the fairness of the consolidated financial statements. Their audit was conducted in accordance with
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directorsis composed of independent directors who are not officers or employees. The Committee
meets periodically with the external auditors, internal auditors and management. The Committee considers the independence of the external auditors
and the audit scope and discussesinternal control, financial and reporting matters. Both the external and internal auditors have free accessto the
Committee.

Changesin Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changesin our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2015 that materially affected, or
that we believe are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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/sl Glen F. Post, 111 /9 R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

GlenF. Pogt, 111 R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Assistant
Chief Executive Officer, President and Director Secretary

February 24, 2016
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART |11

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERSAND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by Item 10 isincorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Theinformation required by Item 11 isincorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERSAND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2015 about our equity compensation plans under which Common Shares are

authorized for issuance:

Number of securities

Number of securities
remaining available

to beissued upon Weighted-average for futureissuance
exer cise of exer cise price of under plans
outstanding options outstanding options (excluding securities
and rights and rights reflected in column (a))
(@) (b) ©
Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders 1,731,186 @ $ 4443 @ 20,759,094
Equit sati I t ed by sharehold
(3)qu| y compensation plans not approved by shareholders 2 640563 38,07 .
Totals 4371749 @ $ 39.67 @ 20,759,094

() These amounts include restricted stock units, which represent the difference between the number of shares of restricted stock subject to market conditions
granted at target and the maximum possible payout for these awards. Depending on performance, the actual share payout of these awards may range between 0-

200% of target.

(@ The amounts in column (a) include restricted stock units, which do not have an exercise price. Consequently, those awards were excluded from the calculation

of this exercise price.

(3 These amounts represent common shares to be issued upon exercise of options that were assumed in connection with certain acquisitions.

The balance of the information required by Item 12 isincorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPSAND RELATED TRANSACTIONSAND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 isincorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEESAND SERVICES

Theinformation required by Item 14 isincorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITSAND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Exhibitsidentified in parentheses below are on file with the SEC and are incorporated herein by reference. All other exhibits are provided as part of
this electronic submission.

Exhibit
Number

Description

31

3.2

4.2

43

44

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of CenturyLink, Inc., asamended through May 23, 2012 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 30, 2012).

Bylaws of CenturyLink, Inc., asamended and restated through May 28, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 2,

2014).

Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'s Revolving Credit Facility.

a

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2012, by and among CenturyLink, Inc. and the lenders and
agents named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File

No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 11, 2012, as amended by the First Amendment to
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 3, 2014, among CenturyLink, Inc. and the lenders and
agents named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of CenturyLink's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 5, 2014).

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2012, by and among the original guarantors named therein (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 11, 2012), as assumed by two additional guarantors under an assumption agreement, dated as
of May 23, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2013 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2013), as
amended by the Amendment to Guarantee Agreement and Reaffirmation Agreement, dated as of December 3, 2014, among
CenturyLink, Inc. and the affiliated guarantors named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 5, 2014).

Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'s Term Loan.

a

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2012, by and among CenturyLink, Inc., the several banks and other financial
institutions or entities from time to time parties thereto, and CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 20, 2012), as amended by the amendment dated as of March 13, 2015.

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2012, by and among the original guarantors named therein (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 20, 2012), as assumed by two additional guarantors under an assumption agreement, dated as
of May 23, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2013 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2013), as
amended by the amendment dated as of March 13, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3(b) of CenturyLink's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2015 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 6, 2015).

Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'s public senior debt. @

a

Indenture, dated as of March 31, 1994, by and between Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc. (currently named
CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank (successor-in-interest to First American Bank & Trust of Louisiana), as Trustee.

(). Form of 7.2% Senior Notes, Series D, due 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.27 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 18, 1996).

(ii). Form of 6.875% Debentures, Series G, due 2028, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 16, 1998).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

b.

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 26, 2007, by and between CenturyTel, Inc. (currently named
CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank, as Trustee, designating and outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyLink's 6.0%
Senior Notes, Series N, due 2017 and 5.5% Senior Notes, Series O, due 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 29, 2007).

(). Form of 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 2017 and 5.5% Senior Notes, Series O, due 2013 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 29, 2007).

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 21, 2009, by and between CenturyTel, Inc. (currently named
CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank, as Trustee, designating and outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyLink's 7.60%
Senior Notes, Series P, due 2039 and 6.15% Senior Notes, Series Q, due 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 22, 2009).

(). Form of 7.60% Senior Notes, Series P, due 2039 and 6.15% Senior Notes, Series Q, due 2019 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 22, 2009).

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 16, 2011, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. and Regions Bank, as Trustee,
designating and outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyLink's 5.15% Senior Notes, Series R, due 2017 and 6.45%
Senior Notes, Series S, due 2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16, 2011).

(). Form of 5.15% Senior Notes, Series R, due 2017 and 6.45% Senior Notes, Series S, due 2021 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16, 2011).

Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 12, 2012, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. and Regions Bank, as
Trustee, designating and outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyLink's 5.80% Senior Notes, Series T, due 2022 and
7.65% Senior Notes, Series U, due 2042 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink's Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2012).

(). Form of 5.80% Senior Notes, Series T, due 2022 and 7.65% Senior Notes, Series U, due 2042 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2012).

Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 21, 2013, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. and Regions Bank, as Trustee,
designating and outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyLink's 5.625% Senior Notes, Series V, due 2020 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 21, 2013).

(). Form of 5.625% Senior Notes, Series V, due 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 21, 2013).

Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 27, 2013, by and between CenturyL ink, Inc. and Regions Bank, as
Trustee, designating and outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyLink's 6.75% Senior Notes, Series W, due 2023
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 27, 2013).

(@) Form of 6.75% Senior Notes, Series W, due 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 27, 2013).

Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 19, 2015, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. and Regions Bank, as Trustee,

designating and outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyLink's 5.625% Senior Notes, Series X, due 2025 (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on March 19, 2015).

(@) Form of 5.625% Senior Notes, Series X, due 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 19, 2015).
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Exhibit

Number  Description

45 Instruments relating to indebtedness of Qwest Communications International, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

a

Indenture, dated as of April 15, 1990, by and between The Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company (currently
named Qwest Corporation) and The First National Bank of Chicago (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Qwest
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 13, 2004).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 16, 1991, by and between U S WEST Communications, Inc.
(currently named Qwest Corporation) and The First National Bank of Chicago (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 of Qwest Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-
03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 13, 2004).

Indenture, dated as of April 15, 1990, by and between Northwestern Bell Telephone Company (predecessor to Qwest
Corporation) and The First National Bank of Chicago (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 10, 2012).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 16, 1991, by and between U S WEST Communications, Inc.
(currently named Qwest Corporation) and The First National Bank of Chicago (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 of Qwest Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-
03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 13, 2004).

Indenture, dated as of June 29, 1998, by and among U SWEST Capital Funding, Inc. (currently named Qwest Capital
Funding, Inc.), U SWEST, Inc. (predecessor to Qwest Communications International Inc.) and The First National Bank of
Chicago, astrustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) of U SWEST, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-
14087) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 18, 1998).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 30, 2000, by and among U S WEST Capital Funding, Inc. (currently
named Qwest Capital Funding, Inc.), U SWEST, Inc. (predecessor to Qwest Communications International Inc.) and
Bank One Trust Company, N.A., astrustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 001-15577) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 11, 2000).

Indenture, dated as of October 15, 1999, by and between US West Communications, Inc. (currently named Qwest
Corporation) and Bank One Trust Company, N.A., astrustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(b) of Qwest
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 (File No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on March 3, 2000).

(). Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 16, 2007, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest Communications International Inc.'s Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 18, 2007).

(i) Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 13, 2009, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest Communications International Inc.'s Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 13, 2009).

(iii) Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 8, 2011, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-03040)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 7, 2011).

(iv) Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 21, 2011, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-03040)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 20, 2011).

V) Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 4, 2011, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 4, 2011).

(vi) Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 2, 2012, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-03040) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2012).
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(vii) Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 25, 2012, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-
03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 22, 2012).

(viii)  Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 23, 2013, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 of Qwest Corporation’'s Form 8-A (File No. 001-
03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 22, 2013).

(ix) Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 29, 2014, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S.
Bank National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-
03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 26, 2014).

() Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 21, 2015, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S.
Bank National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-
03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 21, 2015).

(xi) Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 29, 2016, by and between Qwest Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.16 of Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-
03040) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 29, 2016).

e Credit Agreement, dated as of February 20, 2015, by and among Qwest Corporation, the several lenders from timeto time
parties thereto, and CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent.
4.6 Instruments relating to indebtedness of Embarq Corporation.®
a Indenture, dated as of May 17, 2006, by and between Embarq Corporation and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National

Association, anational banking association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Embarq Corporation's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32732) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 18, 2006).

b. 7.082% Global Note due 2016 of Embarq Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Embarqg Corporation's
Annua Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 9, 2007).

C. 7.995% Global Note due 2036 of Embarq Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Embarqg Corporation's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 9, 2007).

4.7 Intercompany debt instruments.

a Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of April 2, 2012 pursuant to which Embarqg Corporation may borrow from an affiliate of
CenturyLink, Inc. up to $2.5 billion on arevolving basis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 8, 2012).

b. Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of April 18, 2012, pursuant to which Qwest Corporation may borrow from an affiliate of
CenturyLink, Inc. up to $1.0 billion on arevolving basis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 8, 2012).

C. Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of September 27, 2012, pursuant to which Qwest Communications International, Inc.
may borrow from an affiliate of CenturyLink, Inc. up to $3.0 billion on arevolving basis (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.7(c) of CenturyLink Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 (File No. 001-07844)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2013).

10.1 Qualified Employee Benefit Plans of CenturyLink, Inc. (excluding several narrow-based qualified plans that cover union employees or
other limited groups of employees).
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a

CenturyLink Dollars & Sense 401(k) Plan and Trust, as amended and restated through December 31, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2007), as amended by the First Amendment
and the Second Amendment thereto, each dated as of December 31, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008), as amended by the Third Amendment thereto dated as of
November 20, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009),
as amended by the Fourth Amendment thereto dated as of June 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009), as amended by the Fifth Amendment thereto dated as of
September 15, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010), as
amended by the Sixth Amendment thereto, dated as of December 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010), as amended by the Seventh Amendment thereto, effective May 20,
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 5, 2010) and as
amended by the Eighth Amendment thereto, effective January 1, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2011).

CenturyLink Union 401(k) Plan and Trust, as amended and restated through December 31, 2006 (incorporated by referenceto
Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-07784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2007), as amended by the First Amendment thereto dated as
of May 29, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended March 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 7, 2008), as
amended by the Second Amendment thereto dated as of December 31, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008), as amended by the Third Amendment thereto dated as of
November 20, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009),
as amended by the Fourth Amendment thereto dated as of June 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009), as amended by the Fifth Amendment thereto dated as of
September 15, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010), as
amended by the Sixth Amendment thereto, dated as of December 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010), as amended by the Seventh Amendment thereto, effective May 20,
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 5, 2010) and as
amended by the Eighth Amendment thereto, effective January 1, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2011).
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C.

CenturyLink Retirement Plan, as amended and restated through December 31, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-07784) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2007), as amended by Amendment No. 1 thereto dated as of April 2,
2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 7, 2008), as amended by
Amendment No. 2 thereto dated as of December 31, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008), as amended by Amendment No. 3 thereto dated as of October 24, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009), as amended
by Amendment No. 4 dated as of June 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 7, 2009), as amended by Amendment No. 5 thereto dated as of September 15, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010), as amended by Amendment No. 6
thereto, dated as of December 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 1, 2010), as amended by Amendment No. 7 thereto, effective at various dates during 2010 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 5, 2010) and as amended by Amendment No. 8
thereto, effective January 1, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 1, 2011).

10.2 Stock-based Incentive Plans and Agreements of CenturyLink.

a

Amended and Restated 1983 Restricted Stock Plan, as amended and restated through February 23, 2010 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annua Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010).

Amended and Restated 2000 I ncentive Compensation Plan, as amended through May 23, 2000 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 001-07784) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 11, 2000) and amendment thereto dated as of May 29, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,
2003 (File No. 001-7784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2003).

(@) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the 2000 I ncentive Compensation Plan and dated as of May 21, 2001,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 (File No. 001-07784) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 15, 2002).

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the 2000 I ncentive Compensation Plan and dated as of February 25,
2002, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(d) (ii) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-07784) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 27, 2003).

Amended and Restated 2002 Directors Stock Option Plan, dated as of February 25, 2004 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-07784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2004) and amendment thereto dated as of October 24, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(d) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009).

(@) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. in
connection with options granted to the outside directors as of May 10, 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2002 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2002).
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(i)

(i)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. in
connection with options granted to the outside directors as of May 9, 2003 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(¢) (ii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2004).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. in
connection with options granted to the outside directors as of May 7, 2004 (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2(d) (iii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2006).

d. Amended and Restated 2002 M anagement I ncentive Compensation Plan, dated as of February 25, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2004) and amendment thereto dated as of
October 24, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009).

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vi)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and
certain of its officers and key employees at various dates during 2002 following May 9, 2002 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30,
2002 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2002).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to foregoing plan and dated as of February 24, 2003, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) (ii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 27, 2003).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to foregoing plan and dated as of February 25, 2004, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) (iii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 12, 2004).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of February 24, 2003, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2003 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 14, 2003).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of February 25, 2004, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) (v) of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2004 (File No. 000-50260) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 7, 2004).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to foregoing plan and dated as of February 17, 2005, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) (v) of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 (File No. 000-50260) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2005).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of February 17, 2005, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) (vi) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2004 (File No. 000-50260) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2005).

Amended and Restated 2005 Directors Stock Plan, as amended and restated through February 23, 2010 (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010).

0

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and
each of itsoutside directors as of May 13, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-50260) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13,
2005).
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and
each of its outside directors as of May 12, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2006 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 3, 2006).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and
each of its outside directors as of May 11, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) (iii) of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and
each of itsoutside directors as of May 9, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 (f) (iv) of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of May 8, 2009, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directors on such date who remained on the Board following

July 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7,
2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of May 8, 2009, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directors who retired on July 1, 2009 (incorporated by referenceto
Exhibit 10.2(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of July 2, 2009, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directors named to the Board on July 1, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(d) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of July 2, 2009, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and William A. Owensin payment of Mr. Owens' 2009 supplemental chairman's fees (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,
2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2010, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and seven of its outside directors on such date (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 6, 2010).

f. Amended and Restated 2005 M anagement Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated through February 23, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(g) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010).

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and
certain officers and key employees at various dates since May 12, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2005 (File No. 001-07784) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2005).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and
certain officers and key employees at various dates since May 12, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2005 (File No. 001-07784) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2005).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of February 21, 2006, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(g) (iii) of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annua Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-07784) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2006).
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(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of February 21, 2006, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(g) (iv) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-07784) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2006).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of February 26, 2007, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 9, 2007).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of February 26, 2007, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 9, 2007).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of February 21, 2008, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and its executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 7, 2008).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of February 26, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(g) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended March 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of March 8, 2010 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2010
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 7, 2010).

0. Amended and Restated CenturyLink Legacy Embarqg 2008 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated through February
23, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(h) of CenturyLink, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010).

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2010, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and four of its outside directors as of such date (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 6, 2010).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2010, entered into
between CenturyLink, Inc. and William A. Owensin payment of Mr. Owens' 2010 supplemental chairman's fees
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 6, 2010).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, dated as of September 7, 2010, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and
Dennis G. Huber (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 5, 2010).

h. Form of Retention Award Agreement, pursuant to the equity incentive plans of CenturyLink or Embarq and dated as of
August 23, 2010, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and certain officers and key employees as of such date
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 5, 2010).

i CenturyLink 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix B of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Proxy Statement for
its 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 6,

2011).
0]

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for executive officersused in 2011 and 2012 (incorporated by referenceto
Exhibit 10.2(a) (i) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2011 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 9, 2011).
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10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for non-management directors used since 2011 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(a) (ii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2011 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 9, 2011).

(iii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for executive officers used since May 2013.

Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plan, dated as of January 1, 1984, as amended and restated as of November 16, 1995
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(f) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 18, 1996) and amendment thereto dated as of
November 21, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(f) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1996 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 17, 1997), amendment thereto
dated as of February 25, 1997 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended March 31, 1997 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 8, 1997), amendment
thereto dated as of April 25, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended March 31, 2001 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 15, 2001),
amendment thereto dated as of April 17, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 15,
2002) and amendment thereto dated as of February 27, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 8, 2007).

Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, 2008 Restatement, effective January 1, 2008, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3(c) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on February 29, 2009) and amendment thereto dated as of October 24, 2008 (incorporated by referenceto
Exhibit 10.3(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 27, 2009) and amendment thereto dated as of December 27, 2010 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2011).

Supplemental Defined Benefit Pension Plan, effective as of January 1, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on February 28, 2012).

Amended and Restated Salary Continuation (Disability) Plan for Officers, dated as of November 26, 1991 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1991).

2015 Executive Officer Short-Term Incentive Program (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A of CenturyLink's 2015 Proxy Statement
on Form 14A (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 8, 2015).

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its directors as of July 1, 2009 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 99.3 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on July 1, 2009).

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its officers as of July 1, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

Change of Control Agreement, effective January 1, 2011, by and between Glen F. Post, |11 and CenturyLink, Inc. (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.11 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2011).

Form of Change of Control Agreement, effective January 1, 2011 between CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its other executive officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annua Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2011).

CenturyLink Executive Severance Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2014 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24, 2015.)
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10.13

10.14

10.15

Amended and Restated CenturyLink, Inc. Bonus Life Insurance Plan for Executive Officers, dated as of April 3, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 7, 2008) and First Amendment thereto (incorporated by referenceto
Exhibit 10.13 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 5, 2010).

Certain Material Agreements and Plans of Embarg Corporation.

a

Embarq Corporation 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the
Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed by CenturyLink, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on July 1, 2009).

Form of 2007 Award Agreement for executive officers of Embarqg Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Embarqg Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 27, 2007).

Form of 2008 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Embarqg Corporation's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 4, 2008).

Form of 2009 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Embarqg Corporation's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32732) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 5, 2009).

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Embarqg Corporation's Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 4, 2008).

Amendment to Outstanding RSUs granted in 2007 and 2008 under the Embarq Corporation 2006 Equity |ncentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of Embarq Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 13, 2009).

Form of 2006 Award Agreement, entered into between Embarq Corporation and Richard A. Gephardt (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Embarq Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on August 1, 2006), as amended by the amendment thereto dated as of June 26, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 (m) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

Amended and Restated Executive Severance Plan, including Form of Participation Agreement entered into between Embarq
Corporation and William E. Cheek (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Embarg Corporation's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2008 (File No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on October 30, 2008).

Embarqg Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and restated as of January 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.27 of Embarg Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-32372)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 13, 2009), amendment thereto dated as of December 27, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14(o) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2011) and second
amendment thereto as of dated as of November 15, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14(k) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Annua Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 28, 2012).

Certain Material Agreements and Plans of Qwest Communications International Inc. or Sawvvis, Inc.

a

Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated by reference to Annex A of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (File No. 001-15577) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 29, 2007).
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12*
21*
23*
3L.1*
31.2*
32*

b.

Forms of restricted stock, performance share and option agreements used under Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and
restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Communications International Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 24, 2005; Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest
Communication International Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-15577)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 16, 2006; Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Communication

International Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2006 (File No. 001-15577) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 3, 2006; Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Communication International Inc.'s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 8, 2007; Exhibit 10.3 of Qwest Communication International Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 15, 2008; Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest
Communication International Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2009 (File No. 001-15577)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 30, 2009; and Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Communication
International Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-15577) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 15, 2011).

Deferred Compensation Plan for Nonemployee Directors, as amended and restated, Amendment to Deferred Compensation
Plan for Nonemployee Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Communications International Inc.'s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 16, 2005
and Exhibit 10.8 to Qwest Communication International Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended

September 30, 2008 (File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 29, 2008) and
Amendment No. 2011-1 to Deferred Compensation Plan for Nonemployee Directors (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.15(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2011 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 28, 2012).

Qwest Nonqualified Pension Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of Qwest Communications International Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 16, 2010).

SAVVIS, Inc. Amended and Restated 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of
SAVVIS, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2006 (File No. 000-29375) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 5, 2006), as amended by Amendment No. 1 (incorporated by referenceto
Exhibit 10.6 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 000-29375) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 26, 2007); Amendment No. 2 (incorporated by referenceto
Exhibit 10.1 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-29375) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 15, 2007); Amendment No. 3 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2007 (File No. 000-29375) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on July 31,

2007); Amendment No. 4 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File

No. 000-29375) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 22, 2009); and Amendment No. 5 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-29375) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 22, 2009).

Ratio of Earningsto Fixed Charges.

Subsidiaries of CenturyLink, Inc.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Consent

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of CenturyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of CenturyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of CenturyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.
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101* Financial statements from the Annual Report on Form 10-K of CenturyLink, Inc. for the period ended December 31, 2015, formatted in
XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Statements of Operations, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iii) the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders'
Equity and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Exhibit filed herewith.

(€]

Certain of the itemsin Sections 4.4, 4.5 and 4.6 (i) omit supplemental indentures or other instruments governing debt that has been retired, or (ii) refer to trustees
who may have been replaced, acquired or affected by similar changes. In accordance with Item 601(b) (4) (iii) (A) of Regulation S-K, copies of certain instruments
defining the rights of holders of certain of our long-term debt are not filed herewith. Pursuant to this regulation, we hereby agree to furnish a copy of any such
instrument to the SEC upon request.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CenturyLink, Inc.
Date: February 24, 2016 By: /s/ David D. Cole

David D. Cole

Executive Vice President, Controller and Operations
Support
(Chief Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Chief Executive Officer,

/sl Glen F. Post, 111 President and Director February 24, 2016
GlenF. Pogt, 111
/s William A. Owens Chairman of the Board February 24, 2016

William A. Owens

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
/s R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. Officer and Assistant Secretary February 24, 2016

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

Executive Vice President, Controller and

/s/ David D. Cole Operations Support February 24, 2016
David D. Cole
/s MarthaBejar Director February 24, 2016
MarthaBejar
/s/ VirginiaBoulet Director February 24, 2016
VirginiaBoulet
/9 Peter C. Brown Director February 24, 2016
Peter C. Brown
/s Richard A. Gephardt Director February 24, 2016
Richard A. Gephardt
/s/ W. Bruce Hanks Director February 24, 2016
W. Bruce Hanks
/s/ Mary L. Landrieu Director February 24, 2016

Mary L. Landrieu
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/sl Gregory J. McCray

Gregory J. McCray
/9 C. G. Méelville, Jr.

C. G. Mdlville, Jr.
/s Harvey P. Perry

Harvey P. Perry
/sl Michael J. Roberts

Michael J. Roberts
/s/ Laurie A. Siegel

LaurieA. Siegel

(Back To Top)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Section 2: EX-12 (EXHIBIT 12)
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February 24, 2016

February 24, 2016

February 24, 2016

February 24, 2016

February 24, 2016

Income before income taxes and cumul ative effect

of change in accounting principle
Less: income from equity investee
Add: estimated fixed charges

Add: estimated amortization of capitalized interest

Add: distributed income of equity investee
Less: interest capitalized

Total earnings available for fixed charges
Estimate of interest factor on rentals

Interest expense, including amortization of
premiums, discounts and debt issuance costs

Interest capitalized
Total fixed charges

Exhibit 12
CENTURYLINK, INC.
CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(UNAUDITED)
Y ears Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(Dollarsin millions)
$ 1,316 1,110 224 1,250 948
(25) (22 (24) (15) (13)
1,516 1,502 1,486 1,504 1,223
19 17 16 15 12
19 22 14 12 14
(52) (47) (41) (43) (25)
$ 2,793 2,582 1,675 2,723 2,159
$ 152 144 147 142 126
1,312 1,311 1,298 1,319 1,072
52 47 41 43 25
$ 1,516 1,502 1,486 1,504 1,223
184 172 113 181 177

Ratio of earningsto fixed charges

(Back To Top)

Section 3: EX-21 (EXHIBIT 21)
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015

Subsidiary

Actel, LLC

Bloomingdal e Telephone Company, Inc. (20%)
Century Cellunet International, Inc.

Cellunet of IndiaLimited

Century Telephone of West Virginia, Inc.
CenturyLink — Clarke M. Williams Foundation
CenturyLink Communications, LLC
Cognilytics, Inc.

Cognilytics Software and Consulting Private Limited
Qwest International Services Corporation
Qwest N Limited Partnership (98.5%)

Qwest Transoceanic, Inc.

Qwest Communications International Ltd.
Qwest Holdings, BV

CenturyLink Belgium Sprl

Qwest France SAS

Qwest Germany GmbH

Qwest Netherlands BV

Qwest Peru SR.L.

Qwest Telecommunications Asia, Limited
Qwest Australia Pty Limited

Qwest Communications Japan Corporation
Qwest Communications Korea, Limited
Qwest Hong Kong Telecommunications, Limited
Qwest Singapore Pte Ltd.

Qwest Taiwan Telecommunications, Limited
CenturyTel of Adamsville, Inc.

CenturyTel of Arkansas, Inc.

CenturyTel Broadband Services, LLC
CenturyTel TeleVideo, Inc.
CenturyTel/Teleview of Wisconsin, Inc.
Qwest Broadband Services, Inc.

CenturyTel Broadband Wireless, LLC
CenturyTel of Central Indiana, Inc.
CenturyTel of Central Louisiana, LLC
CenturyTéel of Chatham, LLC

CenturyTel of Chester, Inc.

CenturyTel of Claiborne, Inc.

CenturyTel of East Louisiana, LLC
CenturyTel of Evangeline, LLC

State of
incor poration
or formation

Delaware
Michigan
Louisiana
Mauritius
West Virginia
Colorado
Delaware
California
India
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom
Netherlands
Belgium
France
Germany
Netherlands
Peru

Hong Kong
Australia
Japan
Korea
Hong Kong
Singapore
Taiwan
Tennessee
Arkansas
Louisiana
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Delaware
Louisiana
Indiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
lowa
Tennessee
Louisiana
Louisiana



Subsidiary

CenturyTel Holdings, Inc.

Century Marketing Solutions, LLC
CenturyTel Arkansas Holdings, Inc.
CenturyTel of Central Arkansas, LLC
CenturyTel of Northwest Arkansas, LLC
CenturyTel Holdings Alabama, Inc.
CenturyTel of Alabama, LLC

CenturyTel Holdings Missouri, Inc.
CenturyTel of Missouri, LLC
CenturyTel Investments of Texas, Inc.
CenturyTel of the Northwest, Inc.
Brown Equipment Corp.

Carter Company, Inc.

Honomach PR, Inc.

Cascade Autovon Company
CenturyTel/Cable Layers, Inc.
CenturyTel of Central Wisconsin, LLC
CenturyTel of Colorado, Inc.

CenturyTel of Eagle, Inc.

CenturyTel of Eastern Oregon, Inc.
CenturyTel Entertainment, Inc.
CenturyTel of Fairwater-Brandon-Alto, LLC
CenturyTel of Forestville, LLC
CenturyTel of the Gem State, Inc. (97%)
CenturyTel of Inter Island, Inc.
CenturyTel of Larsen-Readfield, LLC
CenturyTel of the Midwest-Kendall, LLC
CenturyTel of the Midwest-Wisconsin, LLC
CenturyTel of Minnesota, Inc.
CenturyTel of Monroe County, LLC
CenturyTel of Montana, Inc. (99%)
CenturyTel of Northern Wisconsin, LLC
CenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin, LLC
CenturyTel of Oregon, Inc.

CenturyTel of Paradise, Inc.

CenturyTel of Cowiche, Inc.

CenturyTel of Postville, Inc.

CenturyTel of Southern Wisconsin, LLC
CenturyTel of the Southwest, Inc.
CenturyTel Telecom Service, Inc.
CenturyTel Telephone Utilities, Inc.
CenturyTel of Upper Michigan, Inc.
CenturyTel of Washington, Inc.
CenturyTel/WORLDVOX, Inc.

State of
incorporation
or formation

Louisiana
Louisiana
Arkansas
Louisiana
Louisiana
Alabama
Louisiana
Missouri
Louisiana
Delaware
Washington
Nevada
Hawaii
Puerto Rico
Washington
Wisconsin
Delaware
Colorado
Colorado
Oregon
Washington
Delaware
Delaware
Idaho
Washington
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Minnesota
Delaware
Oregon
Delaware
Delaware
Oregon
Washington
Washington
lowa
Delaware
New Mexico
Washington
Washington
Michigan
Washington
Oregon



Subsidiary
CenturyTel of Wyoming, Inc.
Eagle Valley Communications Corporation

International Communications Holdings, Inc.

Pecific Telecom, Inc. (Shell)

PTI Communications of Ketchikan, Inc.
PTI Communications of Minnesota, Inc.
PTI Transponders, Inc.

Universal Manufacturing Corp.
CenturyTel of Idaho, Inc.

CenturyTel Internet Holdings, Inc.
centurytel.com, LLC

CenturyTel Investments, LLC
CenturyTel of Michigan, Inc.

CenturyTel Midwest - Michigan, Inc.
CenturyTel Mobile Communications, Inc.
CenturyTel of Mountain Home, Inc.
CenturyTel of North Louisiana, LLC
CenturyTel of North Mississippi, Inc.
CenturyTel of Northern Michigan, Inc.
CenturyTel of Northwest Louisiana, Inc.
CenturyTel of Odon, Inc.

CenturyTel of Ohio, Inc.

CenturyTel of Ooltewah-Collegedale, Inc.
CenturyTel of Port Aransas, Inc.
CenturyTel of Redfield, Inc.

CenturyTéel of Ringgold, LLC

CenturyTel SM Telecorp, Inc.
CenturyTel Telecommunications, Inc.
CenturyTel of San Marcos, Inc.
CenturyTel San Marcos Investments, LLC
CenturyTel Security Systems, Inc.
CenturyTel Service Group, LLC
CenturyTel of South Arkansas, Inc.
CenturyTel of Southeast Louisiana, LLC
CenturyTel of Southwest Louisiana, LLC
CenturyTel Supply Group, Inc.
CenturyTel/Tele-Max, Inc.

CenturyTel of Lake Dallas, Inc.
CenturyTel Web Solutions, LLC
CenturyTel of Wisconsin, LLC

Embarq Corporation

Carolina Telephone and Telegraph Company LLC

NOCUTS, Inc.
SC One Company

State of
incorporation
or formation

Wyoming
Colorado
Delaware
Oregon
Alaska
Minnesota
Oregon
Wisconsin
Delaware
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Michigan
Michigan
Louisiana
Arkansas
Louisiana
Mississi ppi
Michigan
Louisiana
Indiana
Ohio
Tennessee
Texas
Arkansas
Louisiana
Texas
Texas
Texas
Delaware
Louisiana
Louisiana
Arkansas
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Texas
Texas
Louisiana
Louisiana
Delaware
North Carolina
Pennsylvania
Kansas



Subsidiary

Centel Corporation

Centel Capital Corporation

Centel-Texas, Inc.

Central Telephone Company of Texas

EQ Central Texas Equipment LLC

Central Telephone Company

Central Telephone Company of Virginia

Embarq Florida, Inc.

The Winter Park Telephone Company
CenturyLink Intellectual Property LLC

Embarq Directory Trademark Company, LLC
CenturyLink Public Communications, Inc.
CenturyLink Sales Solutions, Inc.

Embarq, Inc.

Embarqg Capital Corporation

SC Seven Company

Embarq Interactive HoldingsLLC

Embarq Interactive Markets LLC

Embarg Management Company

EQ Management Equipment LP

Embarq Mid-Atlantic Management Services Company
Embarqg Minnesota, Inc.

Embarq Missouri, Inc.

SC Eight Company

Embarg Network Company LLC

EQ Equipment Leasing, Inc.

United Telephone Company of the CarolinasLLC
SC Two Company

United Telephone Company of Eastern Kansas
United Telephone Company of Florida

United Telephone Company of Indiana, Inc.

SC Four Company

United Telephone Company of Kansas

Embarg Midwest Management Services Company
United Teleservices, Inc.

United Telephone Company of New Jersey, Inc.
United Telephone Company of the Northwest
United Telephone Company of Ohio

SC Five Company

United Telephone Company of PennsylvaniaLLC, The
SC Six Company

Valley Network Partnership (40% aggregate)
United Telephone Company of Southcentral Kansas
United Telephone Company of Texas, Inc.

State of
incorporation
or formation

Kansas
Delaware
Texas
Texas
Texas
Delaware
Virginia
Florida
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Delaware
Kansas
Delaware
Kansas
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Nevada
North Carolina
Minnesota
Missouri
Kansas
Delaware
Delaware
South Carolina
Kansas
Delaware
Florida
Indiana
Kansas
Kansas
Kansas
Kansas
New Jersey
Oregon
Ohio
Kansas
Pennsylvania
Kansas
Virginia
Arkansas
Texas



Subsidiary

EQ United Texas Equipment LLC

United Telephone Company of the West
United Telephone Southeast LLC

SC Three Company

Hillsboro Telephone Company, Inc. (20%)
Lafayette MSA Limited Partnership (49%)
Madison River Communications Corp.
Gallatin River HoldingsL.L.C.

Gallatin River CommunicationsL.L.C.
Madison River Finance Corp.

Madison River HoldingsLLC

Madison River LTD FundingLLC

Coastal Utilities, Inc.

Gulf Coast Services, LLC

Gulf Telephone Company, LLC

Madison River Management LLC

Mebtel, Inc.

Pacific Telecom Cellular of Alaska RSA #1, Inc.
Qwest Communications International, Inc.
EUnet International Limited

EUnet International B.V.

QwestB.V.

KPNQwest N.V. (44.34%)

Qwest Capital Funding, Inc.

Qwest Europe LLC

Qwest Services Corporation

CenturyLink Investment Management Company
Qwest Corporation

1200 Landmark Center Condominium Association, Inc.

Block 142 Parking Garage Association
Qwest Database Services, Inc.

SMS/800, Inc. (33.3%)

Qwest IndiaHoldings, LLC

CenturyLink Technologies India Private Limited
The El Paso County Telephone Company
MoveARoo, LLC (33.3%)

Qwest Dex Holdings, Inc.

Qwest Government Services, Inc.

Qwest Wireless, L.L.C.

SAVVIS, Inc.

AppFog, Inc.

CenturyLink Australia Pty. Ltd.
CenturyLink do Brasil Participagdes Ltda.
CenturyLink Comunicag8es L tda.

State of
incorporation
or formation

Texas
Delaware
Virginia
Kansas
Wisconsin
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Georgia
Alabama
Alabama
Delaware
North Carolina
Alaska
Delaware
United Kingdom
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Colorado
Delaware
Colorado
Colorado
Colorado
Nebraska
Colorado
Colorado
District of Columbia
Delaware
India
Colorado
Delaware
Delaware
Colorado
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Australia
Brazil

Brazil



Subsidiary

CenturyLink Europe B.V.

CenturyLink Europe B.V., The Netherlands, filial Sweden
SAVVIS Europe BV Sucursal en Espaia
CenturyLink France SA.S.

CenturyLink Germany GmbH

CenturyLink ItaliaSur.l.

CenturyLink Japan, Ltd

CenturyLink New Zealand Limited
CenturyLink Philippines, Inc.

CenturyLink Poland Sp Zo.o.

CenturyLink Singapore Pte. Ltd.

CenturyLink Switzerland A.G.

CenturyLink Taiwan Limited

CenturyLink Technology Hong Kong Limited
CenturyLink IT Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
CenturyLink Technology Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.
CenturyLink Technology UK Limited
CenturyLink Austria GmbH

CenturyLink Limited

CenturyLink (Thailand) Limited

DataGardens, Inc.

Digital SavwvisHK 3V

Digital SavvisHK Holding 1 Limited

Digital SavvisInvestment Management HK Limited
Digital Savvis Management Subsidiary Limited
SAVVIS Canada, Inc.

SAVVIS Communications Canada, Inc.
SAVVIS Communications Chile, S.A.
SAVVIS Communications Corporation
SAVVIS Federa Systems, Inc.

SAV VIS Communications International, Inc.
CenturyLink Korea Limited

SAVVIS Communications Private Limited
SAVVISdo Brasil Ltda

SAVVIS Telecommunicacdes Ltda.
SAVVISHungary Telecommunications KFT
SAVVIS Mexico, SA. deC.V.

Tier 3, Inc.

SkyComm Technol ogies Corporation (50.0%)
Spectra Communications Group, LLC

TelUSA Holdings, LLC (89%)

Telephone USA of Wisconsin, LLC

Western Re, Inc.
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State of
incorporation
or formation

Netherlands
Sweden
Spain
France
Germany
Italy

Japan

New Zeaand
Philippines
Poland
Singapore
Switzerland
Taiwan
Hong Kong
China
Malaysia
United Kingdom
Austria
United Kingdom
Thailand
Canada
British VI
British VI
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Delaware
Canada
Chile
Missouri
Delaware
Delaware
Korea

India

Brazil

Brazil
Hungary
Mexico
Washington
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Deaware
Louisiana



Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
CenturyLink, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (No. 333-202411 and No. 333-187366) on Form S-3, the Registration
Statements (No. 33-60061, No. 333-160391, No. 333-37148, No. 333-60806, No. 333-150157, No. 333-124854, No. 333-150188, and No. 333-174571) on
Form S-8, and the Registration Statements (No. 33-48956, No. 333-17015, No. 333-167339, No. 333-174291, No. 333-155521, and No. 333-206725) on
Form S-4 of CenturyLink, Inc. of our reports dated February 24, 2016, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of CenturyLink, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows, and
stockholders' equity for each of the yearsin the three-year period ended December 31, 2015, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2015, which reports appear in the December 31, 2015 annual report on Form 10-K of CenturyLink, Inc.

Our report on the consolidated financial statements dated February 24, 2016 refersto a change in accounting for debt issuance costs and
accounting for deferred income taxes.

/9 KPMGLLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
February 24, 2016

(Back To Top)

Section 5: EX-31.1 (EXHIBIT 31.1)

Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Glen F. Post, |11, Chief Executive Officer and President, certify that:

1. | havereviewed thisannual report on Form 10-K of CenturyLink, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of amaterial fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by thisreport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in thisreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. Theregistrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(€) and 15d-15 (€)) and interna control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposesin accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions



about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosedinthisreport any changein theregistrant'sinternal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant'sinternal control over financial reporting; and

5. Theregistrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's Board of Directors:

a) dl significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financia information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant rolein the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 24, 2016 /9 GlenF. Pogt, 111
GlenF. Pogt, 111

Chief Executive Officer and President
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr., Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Secretary, certify that:

1. | havereviewed thisannual report on Form 10-K of CenturyLink, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, thisreport does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by thisreport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in thisreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. Theregistrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(€) and 15d-15 (€)) and interna control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosedinthisreport any changein theregistrant'sinternal control over financia reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant'sinternal control over financial reporting; and



5. Theregistrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's Board of Directors:

a) al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financia information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant rolein the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 24, 2016 /s R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Assistant
Secretary
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Exhibit 32

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pur suant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Each of the undersigned, acting in his capacity asthe Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of CenturyLink, Inc. ("CenturyLink"),
certifiesthat, to his knowledge, the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 of CenturyLink fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of CenturyLink as of the dates and for the periods covered by such report.

A signed original of this statement has been provided to CenturyLink and will be retained by CenturyLink and furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Date: February 24, 2016

/9 Glen F. Post, 111 /s R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
GlenF. Pogt, 111 R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chief
Chief Executive Officer and Financial Officer and Assistant
President Secretary
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